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Annual Separate Management Report
The present Management Report has been prepared in accordance with the requirements under Article 39
of the Accountancy Act and Article 187E, Article 247, paragraphs 1, 2 and 3 from the Commercial Act.
The Management Report also contains the information required under Appendix No.10 to Ordinance
No.2 of the Financial Supervision Commission, relevant to the persons under §1E from the Additional
provisions of Public Offering of Securities Act, on the grounds of Article 100n, paragraph 7, item 2 of
Public Offering of Securities Act.
I. General information
Company name

TPP MARITSA EAST 2 EAD

UIC number

123531939

Address

Kovachevo, Radnevo Municipality,
Stara Zagora District – Postal code 6265

Scope of Activity

Electrical power production, construction and repair works in the field of
electrical and heat power industry, investment activity, acquisition and
disposition of copyright, rights on inventions, trademarks and industrial
designs, know-how and other intellectual property objects, as well as any
other activity not prohibited by law or another regulation, and where issue
of permit or license is required, after obtaining the permit or license

Directors

As at 31.12.2021 the Company is managed by a Board of Directors (BoD),
as follows:
Prof. Dr. Eng. Boncho Ivanov Bonev - Chairman of the BoD
Zhivko Dimitrov Dinchev, MSc - Member of the BoD and Executive
Director
Boyan Ivanov Boev - Member of the BoD
Ruslan Tanev Germanov - Member of the BoD
Milan Angelov Milanov - Member of the BoD

Auditor

DZZD “AUDIT BEH” with participants in the association of auditing
companies Grant Thornton OOD and Zaharinova Nexia OOD, registered
under reg. 032 and reg. 138 respectively of the Register of Registered
Auditors

Basis for preparation of The company prepares its financial statements according to the
the financial statements requirements of the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS),
adopted by the European Union. The Company prepares also consolidated
financial statements in accordance with Article 31 of the Accounting Act.
TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD operates its activity in compliance with the
Bulgarian legislation.
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II. Establishment, management and structure of the Company
Legal status
TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD was incorporated as a sole shareholding company with 100% state share. In
pursuance of Order № SG-267/26.06.2000 of the Chairman of the State Agency for Energy and Energy
Resources and decision № 2591/30.06.2000 of District Court, town of Stara Zagora, TPP Maritsa East 2
EAD was established by spin-off from NEK EAD – Sofia and registered in the Commercial Register.
Since 18 September 2008 the capital of the Company has been owned by Bulgarian Energy Holding EAD
(BEH EAD). BEH EAD is a joint-stock company with 100% state share. It comprises Mini Maritsa Iztok EAD, NPP Kozloduy EAD, Natsionalna Elektricheska Kompania EAD, Electricity System
Operator EAD, Bulgargaz EAD, Bulgartransgaz EAD and Bulgartel EAD. All companies, brought
together in the holding structure, preserve their operational independence, by all of them are owned and
directly subordinated to BEH EAD.
TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD is a sole stock company with a single tier management system. The company is
managed by a 5 (five)-member Board of Directors and represented by an Executive Director.
Background
TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD is a base-load condensing TPP with installed capacity of 1 610 MW, situated in
the Maritsa-East power complex. It is located near Radetzki village, 60 km south-east of Stara Zagora city.
The TPP was designed to burn lignite coal mined in the Maritsa East complex, which are characterized by
low calorific value and high ash and sulphur content.
TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD is a producer of strategic importance for the country. It is a key element in the
Bulgarian electric power system by providing the base load for consumption and frequency regulation in
the system. By decision No.755 of the Council of Ministers dated 21 September 2004, the TPP was
included in the list of strategic objects of national importance in the “Energy” sector and by Ordinance
No.181 of the Council of Ministers dated 20 July 2009 it was designated as a strategic object of
importance for the national security. TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD is the only TPP connected to the three
voltage levels of the electric power system (EPS) of Republic of Bulgaria – 110, 220 and 400 kV, which
makes it a major factor for the sustainable operation of the EPS, limitation of spreading of severe
accidents, and supporting the rapid system recovery.
TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD is a key element of the electric power system, providing both the main load for
consumption and full participation in the regulation of the frequency and exchange capacity in the system
at the lowest cost among other thermal power plants. The participation of the units No. 1 – No. 8 in the
secondary regulation of the EPS load is carried out by setting a change of the active power of each of
them (Automated Dispatch Control System) by the central controller of the Central Dispatch Office,
transmitted automatically by telemechanics and performed by the control systems of the respective unit,
in accordance with the set control parameters (adjustment range, speed of change of power and delay of
execution of the task). The boilers in TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD can be ignited with fuel oil as well as by
the newly introduced gas ignition installation. This makes it possible to simultaneously ignite and connect
in parallel with the electric power system up to 4 power units (2 units with fuel oil and at the same time
start up of 2 units with natural gas), i.e. the power plant can put into operation up to 1/2 of its installed
capacity within 8-9 hours.
The construction of the plant was carried out in three stages:
- During the first stage comprising the period 1963-1969 four generating units with rated capacity of 150
MW were constructed.
- Two extensions of the TPP followed: The first extension included two units of rated capacity of 210
MW, commissioned in 1985. The second extension included two units of rated capacity of 215 MW, by
the unit 7 has been into operation since 1990, and unit 8 was commissioned in December 1995.
Since 2003 unit 2 has been operating with a new turbine of 165 MW rated capacity.
The old part of the TPP – units 1 - 4 – operates in the so called “double-block” scheme, i.e. one singleshaft condensing turbine with three cylinders and two co-current boilers, PK-38-4 type. The units in the
new part of the plant were constructed as per the scheme “mono-block”, i.e. one turbine with one boiler.
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In 2007 TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD finished the rehabilitation of units 1 and 2, which started in 2005. Unit
1 was put back to operation in September 2007 with up-rated capacity of 177 MW, and unit 2 – in May
2007 with rated capacity of 165 MW.
After the commissioning of the first two units, units 3 and 4 were also shut down for rehabilitation. Unit
3, up-rated to 177 MW, was put back into operation in November 2008, and unit 4 – in the beginning of
2009. In 2010 the reconstruction of unit 6 (232 MW) was finalized and in the beginning of 2011 unit 8
was commissioned and put into operation after analogical reconstruction.
In December 2014 the project for rehabilitation (reconstruction and modernization) of unit 5 and 7
turbines was completed, due to which the installed capacity of the TPP reached 1610 MW upon the same
steam consumption (or 20 MW of installed capacity producing entirely green energy), by, in this way, the
output capacity was increased, as well as the TPP’s flexibility in providing reserves for the EPS.
The pollution of atmospheric air by gas and dust emissions emitted from the energy industry operation
exerts the worst effect on the environment in ecological aspect. The main pollutants from the production
process are the sulphur dioxides (SO2), nitrogen oxides (NOX), carbon dioxide (CO2) and dust. In this
respect, the first FGD plants in Bulgaria were erected at units 7 and 8 of TPP Maritsa East 2 and
commissioned in August 2002. TPP Maritsa East 2 operates FGDs at all of its power units, about which
the company was certified to ISO 14001:2004. The project for reconstruction of combustion plants for
the purpose of nitrogen oxides (NOX) reduction to levels below 200 mg/Nm3 is in the final stage.
The Company operates in compliance with the energy legislation in Bulgaria. The prices of electricity,
designated for the Public Provider, are regulated by the Energy and Water Regulatory Commission
(EWRC) according to the requirements of the Energy Act and the Ordinance on Electricity Prices
Regulation. The Company participates on the free market, concluding deals at freely negotiated prices
with all commercial participants having “Active” status according to the Electricity Trading Rules. The
Company was certified by EWRC for electric power generation by licence under Reg. No. L-091-01 dated
21 February 2001 for a 20 (twenty)-year period as the license term was extended by 20 years in
accordance with Decision No. I1-L-091 dated 02.07.2020 issued by EWRC and licence issued by EWRC
under Reg. No. L-498-15 dated 31 January 2018 for the activity “Electricity trading”, which secures the
future development and enhances the opportunity of the plant to enter into transactions. The Company
participates actively on the balancing market, by as of 1 February 2014 the units 1 to 4 /old part/ of TPP
Maritsa East 2 EAD were registered as balancing energy suppliers for participation in the secondary
regulation, and units 5 to 8 /new part/ were registered as balancing energy suppliers for participation in
the primary and secondary regulation as the register is being kept by ESO EAD.
Share capital
The rights of the sole shareholder of TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD are exercised by Bulgarian Energy
Holding EAD, UIC 831373560. The authorized capital of the company as at 31.12.2021 is BGN 687 631
610.00 (six hundred and eighty-seven million six hundred and thirty-one thousand six hundred and ten
BGN), distributed in 68 763 161 (sixty-eight million and seven hundred sixty-three thousand and one
hundred and sixty-one) shares with par value of BGN 10 (ten) each.
Shareholders
Bulgarian Energy Holding EAD

Share
100%

Number of
shares
68 763 161

Nominal value
(thousand BGN)
687 632

Affiliates
TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD is a part of economically related group under the control of BEH EAD, which
includes the following subsidiaries: Natsionalna Elektricheska Kompania EAD, NPP Kozloduy EAD,
Mini Maritsa - Iztok EAD, Bulgargaz EAD, Bulgartel EAD, Bulgartransgaz EAD, Electricity System
Operator EAD, NPP Kozloduy – NB EAD, HPP Kozloduy EAD, Interpriborservice OOD, BulgartelSkopje DOOEL, Balkan Gas Hub EAD. All companies, brought together in the holding structure,
preserve their operational independence, by all of them are owned by and directly subordinated to the
corporate centre BEH EAD.
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100%
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TPP
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East 2
EAD
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EAD
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EAD

Bulgargaz
EAD
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nsgaz
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PFC
BEROE
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As at 31 December 2021 TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD holds investments in the following companies:
Company
PFC Beroe – Stara Zagora EAD
ZAD Energy

Share
100%
0.96%

Nominal value
(thousand BGN)
5 480*
173

* Information on actions taken by TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD, sole owner of the capital of
Professional Football Club Beroe - Stara Zagora EAD, for the sale of shares of Professional
Football Club Beroe - Stara Zagora EAD
In compliance with the government's policy for optimizing the costs of the state energy companies, the
Board of Directors of TPP Maritsa East EAD, as per it. 13 of Protocol No. 54/15.12.2021 decided to
take the necessary actions to transfer the ownership of all available, ordinary, registered shares in the
amount of 5,480,000, owned by TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD, representing 100% of the capital of
Professional Football Club Beroe - Stara Zagora ”EAD, after receiving prior consent from Bulgarian
Energy Holding EAD - sole owner of the capital of TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD.
In connection with the above, with a decision under item II.9 of Protocol No. 67-2021/22.12.2021, the
Board of Directors of Bulgarian Energy Holding EAD gave prior consent to the above decisions and
assigned to the Executive Director of TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD before implementing the legal and factual
actions for the transfer of the ownership of the shares to report all preliminary agreed terms of the
dispositive transaction in order the Board of Directors of Bulgarian Energy Holding EAD to make a final
decision.
Pursuant to the above-mentioned decisions, on 25 February 2022, in the city of Stara Zagora, a contract
was concluded between TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD and NGO “Association for Support of Football –
Beroe”, UIC 206794473, for the purchase and sale of 5,480,000 shares, representing 100% (one hundred
percent) of the capital of Professional Football Club Beroe - Stara Zagora EAD.
On 10 March 2022 the changes in the current status of Professional Football Club Beroe - Stara Zagora
EAD were published in the Commercial Register. From this date the sole proprietor of the capital of
Professional Football Club Beroe - Stara Zagora EAD is NGO "Association for Support of Football Beroe".
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The investment in the subsidiary “Professional Football Club Beroe - Stara Zagora” EAD as at
31.12.2021 is impaired up to the sale price of BGN 1 (one) and is classified in accordance with IFRS 5 as
an asset held for sale.
Information on the remunerations of key management personnel
As at 31 December 2021 remunerations were paid to the members of the BoD for the total amount of
BGN 303 thousand, including BGN 288 thousand for salaries and BGN 15 thousand for social insurance
contributions
Information about company shares’ acquision and ownership by BoD members
The Members of the BoD do not participate in other companies.
The Members of the BoD do not possess any shares and bonds of the company. They are not entitled to
privileges or exclusive rights to acquire shares and bonds of the Company. All shares are 100% owned by
BEH EAD.
There are no notifications and signed contracts under Art. 240b of the Commercial Act.
Workforce
As at 31.12.2021 the operation activities of the Company are performed by 2,291 persons allocated
according to their functions, as follows:
Operation and operational management;
Equipment repair and maintenance;
Material and technical supply and storage facilities;
Transportation and mechanization;
Financial and economic activity;
Investment activity;
Supervisory activity;
Social and domestic activity.
The organizational structure is developed to comply with the Rules on Operation in the Energy
Production System and the Safety Rules. In relation to the organization of activities the workforce of the
Company is divided into six Directorates – “Operation Directorate”, ”Finance and Economy
Directorate”, “Marketing and Public Procurement Directorate”, “Repairs Directorate”, “Administrative,
Tax and Finance Control Directorate” and “Security Directorate”.
Departments and structural units directly subordinate to the Executive Director are, as follows:
Occupational Safety and Health dept., Technical Inspection of Operation dept., Technical Control and
Quality dept., Legal dept., Environment dept., Secretary, Management and Development of Human
Resources dept., Security and Crisis Management dept., Metal type “C” Control Authority, Coal Testing
Laboratory, Information and Public Relations dept., Investments Department, Corporate Planning Unit,
Internal Audit Unit, Specialized Control Service under the MMLA and Personal Data Protection Unit and
Personal Data Protection Unit.
“Operation Directorate” includes: Shift engineers on duty and dispatcher, Boiler House, Turbine House,
Control and Measurement Instruments, Automation and Control Information Systems dept., Electrical
dept., Chemical water treatment and regimes dept., Flue gas desulphurization plants dept., Ash and Slag
Disposal dept., Coal Handling and Ash Storage dept., Railway Station, Production and Technology dept.,
Technical Personnel Unit.
“Finance and Economy Directorate” includes Finances and Accounting, Planning and Analysis dept.
“Marketing and Public Procurements” Directorate comprises: Material and Technical Supply dept.,
Commercial dept., Construction and Technology dept., Energy Market Unit.
“Repairs” Directorate includes: Mechanical Repair Workshop, Motor Transport Facility, Administration
Service dept., Vibrodiagnostics Laboratory, Technical Personnel Unit.
“Administrative, Tax and Finance Control” Directorate includes: Internal Departmental Financial Control
Unit, Document Control Unit, Documents Registration Unit.
The Security Directorate is responsible for the protection of classified information, crisis management
and defense mobilization training, protection of national and European critical infrastructure,
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management of network and IT infrastructure, as well as network and information security of TPP
Maritsa East 2 EAD. The directorate includes the following departments: "Crisis Security and
Management", "Information Technology" and "Network and Information Security".
For 2021 the average number of Company employees was 2,291 persons. For the period 01.01.2021 –
31.12.2021 the newly appointed persons were 72, and 114 left.
Classification of TPP ME 2 workforce as at 31.12.2021 by education and sex
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Classification of TPP ME 2 workforce as at 31.12.2021 by age and sex
under 18
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MISSION AND OBJECTIVES
Mission
The mission of the Company is to achieve the following objectives:
Strategic objectives
-Improving the security of electric power supplies;
-Reinforcing its position on the regional and European markets;
-Enhancing the investment attractiveness of Bulgarian energy sector;
Operational objectives
- Continuous improvement of the ecological condition of the power plant, the region and the
country;
-Transparency and good management practices;
-Improving the regulatory environment;
-Sustainability of financial position;
-Maintaining a balanced investment policy;
-Improving the quality of human resources;
Vision
The introduction of innovations is among the main priorities of the management. In this way
improvement of the work process and increase of generation are achieved, by at the same time the
consumption of resources is reduced.
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III. Main results for 2021
Technical and economical indicators achieved:
Indicators

Business
plan 2021

Statement
2021

Fulfillment
of the
budget
%

Symbol

Measure

Eavail

10 438 598.10

10 696 532.64

102.47

+

Eavail

MWh
MWh

3 995 525.17

5 563 535.40

139.24

+

3. Electricity generation – gross

Egross

MWh

4 161 871.56

5 963 807.71

143.29

+

4. Electricity consumption for
auxiliaries

Eaux

%

16.42

14.73

89.71

+

3 478 449.43

5 085 062.52

146.19

+

3 523 339.17

5 123 105.40

145.40

+

457.18

444.90

97.31

+

1. Available capacity – gross /possible /
2. Available capacity – realized

5.Produced and supplied active electric
power - net
6.Sold electric power, including
balancing market
7. Specific consumption of equivalent
fuel for el. power generation - net

Note:

MWh
Enet
MWh
Enet
Celnet

g/kWh

" - " - non-fulfillment of indicator of the Budget
" + " - overfulfillment of indicator of the Budget

Analysis of the technical and economical indicators achieved – Availability, electric power
generation and fulfillment of dispatcher schedule
For the past 2021 year TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD reported 10,696,532.46 MWh of available capacity,
which is by 257,934.54 MWh more than the scheduled capacity. According to the planned repair schedule
coordinated with ESO EAD and NEK EAD, the agreed available capacity of the power units and
outages for planned maintenance in 2021, the power plant had to provide availability of 10,438,598.10
MWh. The shut down units for planned repair has a capacity of 214,815,790 MWh, which is about 1/3 of
the expected 5% of possible production.
According to reporting data for 2021, availability of 5,563,535.40 MW was realized, which is 39.24% more
than planned availability.
In 2021 TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD generated 5,963,807.71 MWh of gross electric power, and the
electricity exported to the EES was 5,085,062.52 MWh. The planned generation of gross electric power
for 2021 was overfulfilled by 43.29%.
Sales on the free market for the year amounted to 3,069,758.60 MWh, which is equal to 60.37% of
production, and 1,934,607 MWh were sold on the regulated market - 38.05% of production.
The amount of 2,600,000 MWh determined by the Order of the Minister of Energy No. E-RD-16-295 of
25.06.2020 was provided to NEK EAD (based on requests from the Public Provider) in the period from
01.07.2020 to 19:00 hours on 14.05.2021. By Order No. E-RD-16-377 of 05.05.2021 of the Minister of
Energy on the grounds of Art. 70, para 1 and para 3, in connection with para 2, it. 1 and para 4 of the
Energy Act, TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD was assigned with an additional obligation to serve the public,
consisting in providing NEK EAD with additional quantities of electricity in excess of the quantities
determined by Order No. E-RD-16-295 of 25.06.2020 of the Minister of Energy, in the amount of up to
300 000 MWh to meet the needs of the regulated market and guarantee the supply of electricity until
30.06.2021.
By order No. E-RD-16-479 of 25.06.2021 on the grounds of art. 4, para 2, it. 8 of the Energy Act, the
Minister of Energy allocated to TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD a total annual quota of 1,000,000 MWh for
mandatory purchase of electricity produced from local primary fuel sources, representing approximately
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3.3 % of the total primary energy required for the production of electricity consumed in the country in
the calendar year 2021.
As per the same order, the total annual quota should be produced by TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD for the
period 01.07.2021 - 30.06.2022. Pursuant to Art. 93a, para 1, item 3 of the Energy Act, this total annual
quota should be purchased by the Public Provider, and as per Art. 35, para 2, item 2 of the Energy Act,
the costs in connection with this order are costs arising from an imposed obligation to society.
With Decision No. TZ - 27 of 01.07.2021 of the Energy and Water Regulatory Commission (EWRC) the
quantities of electricity from the total annual quota of TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD in the amount of 1 000
000 MWh, determined according to Order No. E- RD-16-479 of 25.06.2021 of the Minister of Energy
are included in the total amount of electricity sold by NEK EAD to ensure the consumption of
customers of final suppliers.
Based on the above orders, the price decisions of the EWRC from 01.07.2020 and 01.07.2021, EWRC
has distributed the quantities for delivery on a monthly basis, and the power plant has concluded
Agreements for supply of electricity with NEK-EAD for the respective regulatory periods. For the first
half of the year the quota of the plant is 1,464,450 MWh, of which 300,000 MWh by Order No. E-RD16-295 of 25.06.2020. 1,404,285 MWh (95.9% performance) were sold to NEK-Public Provider at
regulated prices for the first half of 2021. In the second half of 2021, 504,226 MWh were agreed, and
530,322 MWh (105.2% of the quota) were supplied to the regulated market. In total for the whole of
2021 the power plant realized at regulated prices 1,934,607 MWh or 98.3% of the 1,968,676 MWh annual
quota. At the request of ESO-EAD, units 5 and 6 were put into operation on January 22, 2021, of which
3,040,554 MWh of electricity was provided in the market administration system as activated cold reserve
on the same date, although TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD has no obligations to supply cold reserve for the
power system.
TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD participates in the free market, offering quantities on all IBEX platforms. The
centralized market for bilateral contracts mainly sells quantities that ensure a minimum base load of the
available capacities (minimum load). Quantities are available on the Day Ahead market to optimize the
load of the operating units in the range up to the maximum possible load. The quantities sold through the
trading platforms of IBEX EAD in 2021 are a total of 3,069,758.6 MWh, of which 871,401.8 MWh were
sold on the Day Ahead market and 22,398.8 MWh on the Intraday market. Under long-term contracts of
centralized market for bilateral contracts segment the power plant sold 2,175,958 MWh for the entire
2021 year. In the second half of the year, 99.7% of all sales were realized on the free market, since the
price conditions of the market from August allowed the company to offer its production on economically
advantageous terms.
In 2021 for participation in the load regulation and the frequency of the power system, electricity from
participation in secondary regulation upward was reported - 110 898,237 MWh and electricity from
participation in secondary regulation downward - 50 939,408 MWh.
In case of impossibility to fulfill the registered schedules (in case of emergency shutdown of unit) TPP
Maritsa East 2 EAD enters the balancing market and buys the energy shortage (negative imbalance) from
ESO-EAD. In 2021,148.8 MWh to compensate for the shortage were purchased from IBEX EAD
through Intraday market.
Since 01.06.2014 the company has been operating under the current Electricity Trading Rules. During tha
past year the power plant worked with ESO EAD under a Contract for access, provision of additional
services and participation in the balancing energy market, which was signed by the two companies on
30.01.2014 in pursuance of Electricity Trading Rules. At the end of 2020, a part of the terms of the above
contract were re-signed by a new “Contract for access to and transmission through the electricity grid
with an electricity producer” from 16.10.2020. Also, due to the changes in the Energy Act and the
Electricity Trading Rules, on 03.12.2020 the power plant signed a new “Contract for provision of
additional services and participation in the balancing energy market by registered providers of additional
services” for the purpose of regulated participation in tender procedures for additional services –
availability for reserve for primary and reserve for secondary regulation and settlement of energy
payments from participation in the balancing market.
During the past 2021, only 0.04% emergency rate of the main plant equipment was reported, which is
equal to 4 750,94 MWh of unproduced electricity. The reason is the simultaneous emergency shutdown
of the Madrets and Zornitsa power lines in September. For 2020, a lower emergency rate (0.004%) of the
main facilities in the plant was reported, which amounted to 399.6 MWh of unproduced electricity.
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The reported net specific equivalent fuel consumption for 2021 was 444.90 g/kWh and it was by 12.28
g/kWh lower than the planned one in the Updated Business Program (457.18 g/kWh). The coal
consumption of coal in 2021 was 9,409,187.30 tons of natural fuel.
The number of shutdowns and start-ups of boilers in 2021 was smaller – 55 in number, while in 2020
they were 60. In 2021 the power plant consumed 1,144 tons of fuel oil (black oil), which is by 167 tons
less than the consumption in 2020, mainly due to the replacement of fuel oil with natural gas. 506 tons of
black oil were burned in boilers PK-38-4, or 44,23 % from the total quantity of black oil, and for boilers
P-62 – 638 tons or 55,77 % of the black oil in total.
The consumption of natural gas for ignition of boilers in 2021 amounted to 1 680,987 thousand nm3
compared to 1 747,458 thousand nm3 for 2020.
Higher electricity generation is the main reason for the reported higher limestone consumption required
for the operation of FGD – from 407,910 tonnes in 2020 to 570,266 tonnes in 2020.
Repair program implementation
The planned maintenance and regular repairs of all equipment were carried out in accordance with the
approved schedule under the Repair Program of the Company for 2021, with the major portion of
completed repair works having done by the workforce of the power plant. The total repair costs for the
year 2021 amounted to BGN 20,267 thousand.

Type of expenses
Materials applied
External services
TOTAL:

2021
(updated schedule)
8 369
15 543
23 912

in thousand BGN
Total expenses
Completed
for 2021
as at 31.12.2021 (%)
6 852
81.87%
13 415
86.31%
20 267
84.76%

Investment and modernization
The approved updated Investment program of TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD for 2021 includes completion
and commissioning of transitional sites, constructing new ones, reconstruction and modernization of the
plant.
in thousand BGN
2021
Completed as at
Completed as at
By type of financing
(updated schedule)
31.12.2021
31.12.2021 (%)
Own funding
85 401
70 578
82.64%
Total
85 401
70 578
82.64%
Integrated Management System
The Quality Management System (QMS) at TPP Maritsa East 2 was certified in 2006 by TÜV Rheinland
Bulgaria EOOD as per ISO 9001:2000 with the scope of “Electric power production and provision of
services – available capacity, primary and secondary frequency regulation and voltage regulation”.
Over the past years, the certification authority has been conducting recertification and supervisory audits
on an yearly basis, thus controlling and monitoring the implementation of the requirements resulting of
the relevant versions of ISO 9001 standard. The QMS is constantly developing, always complying with
the requirements of the standard and satisfying the needs of the Company. In 2018, the new requirements
of BDS EN ISO 9001:2015 were implemented. The current certification cycle started in 2021, and the
scope of the certificate is: "Production and sale of electricity, provision of availability, ancillary services
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for frequency and exchange capacity regulation, balancing energy and voltage regulation". Proof of this is
the certificate issued by the certification body TÜV Rheinland Bulgaria EOOD.
The achievements and high performance of the functioning QMS through continuous improvement and
success are recognition of the efforts and competence of the company's management and staff in seeking
and enforcing modern solutions, mechanisms and tools to meet the requirements of legislation, market,
customers and other stakeholders. Proof of this is the fulfillment of the stated objectives in the Quality
and Context Policy of the Company, its strategic focus on the continuous improvement of the quality of
the provided products and services and the management commitment to:
•
Continuous research and satisfaction of the requirements and expectations of the interested
parties for the production and sale of electricity of the desired quality and in compliance with the
standards, regulations and contracts;
•
Identifying, updating and achieving high quality objectives in the context of the Company, for the
activities and services provided, taking into account the risks and opportunities secured with the necessary
resources to implement, maintain and continuously improve the management system;
•
Providing and engaging qualified staff at all levels in the Company to efficiently and effectively
implement quality activities, instructing and training of staff to maintain and improve their qualifications,
competence and awareness of their personal responsibilities;
•
Identifying and managing processes and their interconnections as a system to efficiently and
effectively achieve the quality objectives;
•
Providing monitoring, measuring, analyzing and evaluating processes in terms of product and
service quality, decision-making based on evidence of the suitability, adequacy, efficiency and
effectiveness of the QMS;
•
Continuously improving the efficiency and effectiveness of the QMS in the pursuit of new
opportunities for development and improvement of the performance of activities related to the quality of
products and services provided;
•
Ensuring transparency and correctness of the relationship with all stakeholders.
Activity on provision of occupational health and safety (OHS)
To achieve efficiency of activity on provision of occupational health and safety, the Company carries out
active social policy on safety and health, where the Occupational Safety and Health Management System
plays the leading role. The policy of the Company in this field focuses on a comprehensive approach for
encouraging provision of “occupational welfare”. For the implementation of the strategic targets related
to occupational safety and health and announced in the Management Statement, in 2021 there were
common and particular measurable targets determined for the separate organizational units. Achievement
of those targets was assured by approval of Program for occupational safety and health management for
2021. That Program included a total number of 64 activities, as 22 activities were fulfilled and 4 activities
are in process of completion.
• Improvement of labour conditions, normalization of the working environment parameters and
improving the hygiene of labour in the working premises;
• Securing the workplaces by application of effective means for collective protection;
• Improving the health services.
Occupational traumatism
Indicators of the frequency and severity of occupational traumatism

Reported
period

Total
number
of
accidents

Fatalities

2021

2

-

Number of
recoveries

Frequency
rate
(Rf)
TPP 2

Severity
rate
(Rs)
TPP 2

Occup.
traum.rate
(Rot)
in TPP 2

Occup.
traum.rate
for the
country
(Rotc)

Occup.
traum.rate
for the
sector
(Roti)

2

0,44

0,006

0.48

0.62

1.02
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In 2021 a total of 2 /two/ occupational accidents were registered in TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD - 1
occupational accident under Article 55, para 1 of the Social Security Code and 1 /one/ occupational
accident under Article 55, para 2 of the Social Security Code.
Environment
The management policy of TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD is directed at limiting the harmful impact on the
components of the environment, by controlling the impacts they exert on their main activity: generation
and supply of electric energy.
The main objective of the company is constant improvement of the ecological status of the plant, the
region and the country. Power generation with high reliability and energy efficiency, providing the best
available techniques for environmental protection and bringing the activity to the requirements of
national regulations, European directives and environmental standards.
The aspects of all major and ancillary activities at the site of the company are identified and evaluated and
those that are managed in the short and long term are defined to improve the environmental
performance.
The Company brought its activity in line with the European and national environmental legislation.
The main pollutants emitted into the atmosphere - sulfur dioxide, nitrogen oxides, carbon dioxide, carbon
monoxide and dust are the result of lignite coal mined in Maritsa East basin and burned in the power
boilers (PB) of TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD. Lignite coal from Mini - Maritsa East EAD is characterized by
high sulfur content, low calorific value, high moisture and ash.
The reduction of harmful emissions is carried out through the operation of atmospheric emissions
treatment plants permitted by the IPPC Permit No 50/2005:
- 1 pc. FGD (1/2) and 1 pc. electrostatic precipitator for each of Boiler 1, Boiler 2, Boiler 3 and Boiler
4 for purifying flue gases to the exhaust device Stack 1 N-135 m;
- 1 pc. FGD (3/4) and 1 pc. electrostatic precipitator for each of Boiler 5, Boiler 6, Boiler 7 and Boiler
8 for purifying flue gases to the exhaust device Stack 2 N-135 m;
- 1 pc. FGD (5/6) and 1 pc. (two-section) electrostatic precipitator for each of Boiler 9 and Boiler 10
for purifying flue gases to the exhaust device Stack N-135 m - 5,6;
- 1 pc. FGD 7 and 1 pc. (two-section) electrostatic precipitator for Boiler 11 for purifying flue gases to
the exhaust device Stack N-135 m - 7;
- 1 pc. FGD 8 and 1 pc. (two-section) electrostatic precipitator for Boiler 12 for purifying flue gases to
the exhaust device Stack N-135 m - 8.
The purification of the flue gases from the total suspended particles is carried out through the built
electrostatic precipitators to each of the power boilers.
The built-up FGDs for cleaning the flue gases from sulrphur dioxide based on “wet limestone method”,
located behind the electric precipitators along the flue gas path further reduces the emissions of dust
released into the ambient air.
In order to comply with Directive 2010/75/EU on industrial emissions (integrated pollution prevention
and control), in order to meet the limits for permissible emissions of harmful substances emitted into the
atmosphere, the Company has implemented the following environmental projects:
- Full engineering of a gas-fired chamber of energy boilers from 1 to 8:
Completed for Boiler No.1, Boiler No.2, Boiler No.5, Boiler No.6, Boiler No.7 and Boiler No.8. The
detailed design for gas-fired chambers of Boiler No.3 and Boiler No.4 will be implemented during the
overhaul of the power unit. The elements necessary for the realization of the project have been made and
delivered.
- Modernization and reconstruction of unit 5 and unit 7: Completed.
- Full engineering of a gas-fired power plant of energy boilers from 1 to 12:
Completed for Boiler No.1, Boiler No.2, Boiler No.5, Boiler No.6, Boiler No.7, Boiler No.8, Boiler No.11 and
Boiler No.12. External gas network has been constructed as well as 5 pcs of gas control points (GCP) - GCP
1, GCP 3, GCP 4, GCP 7 and GCP 8. The necessary use permits have been issued by the Directorate for
National Construction Control. The construction of gas and black oil firing system for natural gas is planned
for Boiler No. 3, Boiler No. 4, Boiler No. 9, Boiler No. 10 and the relevant GCP 2, GCP 5 and GCP 6 are to
be constructed during major overhauls of Boiler No. 2, Boiler No. 5 and Boiler No. 6.
- Full engineering of low emission burners of energy boilers from 1 to 12:
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Implemented for Boiler No.1÷10 and Boiler No.12. The combustion system of Boiler No.11 will be
reconstructed during the overhaul of Boiler No.7. The elements necessary for the realization of the
project have been made and delivered. The overhaul of Boiler No.7 is scheduled for 2022.
The construction and commissioning of gas-fired instalations of 1 to 12 boilers, an internal gas network
and 8 gas-regulating points for energy units 1 to 8, aims to replace the firing fuel-oil by natural gas during
the commissioning operations of the energy boilers.
The heavy oil will remain as a backup firing fuel in the event of a natural gas supply shut-down. The
implementation of the project will lead to:
increased efficiency of the plant operation and reduction of the negative impact on the environmental
components;
reducing the equivalent amount of greenhouse gases, the annual emission of dust and the amount of
sulphur dioxide emitted into the air during the start-up operations of energy boilers.
TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD, as an operator of an installation for production of electricity with a total rated
heat capacity exceeding 20 MW has the right to participate in the free allocation of allowances for
greenhouse gas emissions in the period 2021 - 2030, according to Art. 10c of Directive 2003/87/EC (as
amended by Directive (EU) 2018/410). As an eligible beneficiary, the Company has submitted an
application for participation in the National Investment Framework (NIF) for the period 2021 - 2030,
which provides an opportunity for free allocation of allowances for the energy sector modernization.
In view of Commission Implementing Decision No. 2017/1442/EU of 31 July 2017 establishing Best
Available Techniques (BAT) Conclusions for large combustion plants under Directive 2010/75/EU of
the European Parliament and of the Council, information and evidence on the application of best
available techniques (BAT) was prepared, by a request for derogation for sulphur dioxide (SO2) and
mercury (Hg) pollutants was submitted in time to the EEA.
Decision No. 50-N0-I0-A5/2018 was issued on 21.12.2018 for updating the Integrated Pollution
Prevention and Control (IPPC) Permit No.50/2005 of TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD. The decision is being
appealed by the Association "For the Earth - Access to Justice". With Decision No. 252/17.06.2019 of
Stara Zagora Administrative Court, at the request of TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD, preliminary execution of
Decision No. 50-N0-I0-A5/2018 was allowed.
With the granting of a derogation, new stricter emission limit values (ELV/BAT-AEL) have been
introduced for harmful substances emitted into the atmosphere during the operation of the Combustion
Plant for the production of electricity: for dust, sulfur dioxide (SO2), nitrogen oxides ( NOx) and carbon
monoxide (CO). ELV/BAT-AEL have been introduced for mercury (Hg), hydrogen chloride (HCl) and
hydrogen fluoride (HF) and monitoring of metals and non-metals (As, Cd, Co, Cr, Cu, Mn, Ni, Pb, Sb,
Se, Tl , V, Zn).
As an operator of an existing installation, obliged to comply with the applicable environmental
regulations, the Company has undertaken to implement an Investment Program to comply with the
requirements of Decision No.2017/1442/EU to formulate BAT conclusions for large combustion plants,
by implementing the following measures:
FGD 1/2 and FGD 3/4 - Completed: replacement of exisiting spray nozzles with a new model of
modern axial nozzles; installation of reflective rings around the walls of the absorbers; installation and
commissioning of a sulfite analyzer system.
FGD 5/6 - Completed: installation of reflective rings around the walls of the absorbers.
FGD 7 and FGD 8 - Completed: replacement of exisiting spray nozzles with a new model of modern
axial nozzles; installation of reflective rings around the walls of the absorbers; installation and
commissioning of a sulfite analyzer system; installation of 5 (fifth) nozzle level at FGD 8 (in progress at
FGD 7).
A “Non-hazardous waste landfill with code and designation 10 01 05 - solid waste from the calciumbased reaction obtained from waste gas desulphurisation (gypsum from FGD)” was constructed with the
relevant infrastructure to it, conforming to Ordinance No.6 dated 27 August 2013 on the conditions and
requirements for the construction and operation of landfills and other facilities and installations for waste
recovery and disposal. Permit for Use No.ST-05-958/24 June 2014 by National Construction Supervision
Directorate and IPPC Permit with Registration No. 476-N0/2013 by the Executive Environment Agency
for construction and operation of the installation in force from 6 December 2013.
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An Application has been submitted in Ministry of Environment and Water and additional information
provided to it by TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD, for determination of technical gypsum (FGD gypsum),
received from the desulfurization plants (after the gypsum dewatering plants) as a by-product within the
meaning of Art.4, para 1 of the Waste Management Act "technical gypsum for the production of
construction materials". The change of the product classification, in addition to all environmental benefits
related to its management, will lead to financial benefits for the Company, due to increased sales of
dewatered technical gypsum (FGD gypsum) and reduced waste disposal costs with code 10 01 05 calcium-based solid wastes from flue gas desulphurisation (FGD gypsum). A motivated decision of the
Minister of Environment and Water is currently awaited.
The company introduced and is continuously improving Environmental Management System (EMS)
certified according to the international standard ISO 14001:20015 by the authorized body TÜV
Rheinland Cert GmbH with initial certification from 2009. It holds a certificate under reg. No. 01 104
1334435 with validity from 03.02.2021 to 02.02.2024, and area of application "Production of electricity
with flue gaz desulphurization plants installed on all unitsand provision of services - available power,
primary and secondary frequency regulation and voltage regulation”.
Within the period 25.11.2021 to 26.11.2021 the first supervisory audit on the Environmental Management
System (EMS) of the company was conducted to prove compliance with the requirements of ISO
14001:2015; no discrepancies were identified during the audit and no recommendations for improvement
were made.
TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD demonstrates its responsibility for protecting the environment and proves the
strict observance of the provisions of the European and national environment legislation.
Financial performance for 2021
The COVID-19 crisis in Bulgaria in 2020 led to the transformation of the wholesale electricity market.
Most market participants changed their portfolios, refusing to enter into bilateral agreements and relying
on the day-ahead market platform to provide them with the necessary amounts of electricity. Electricity
producers also had no interest in selling electricity under bilateral agreements, as stock market price levels
partially cover direct production costs. This trend continued also in the first half of 2021, and the result of
maintaining a high-risk portfolio for energy supply was one of the factors behind the sharp rise in
electricity prices in wholesale trade in the early third quarter of 2021. The rise of electricity prices on the
stock market in 2021 was also affected by the sharp rise of the price of major energy sources on
international markets.
The big "restart" of major, energy-intensive industries led to an increase in carbon prices, which in just a
few months (July - December 2021) reached levels from 50 Euros/ton to over 80 Euros/ton. All these
factors led to a significant increase in electricity exchange prices and created favorable conditions for TPP
Maritsa East 2 EAD to effectively restore its participation at the free market.
The international situation related to the conflict between Russia and Ukraine has led to changes in the
economic aspect and market conditions associated with rising inflation, a dynamic rise in prices for basic
raw materials.
The gradual recovery of economic activities expected over the next few years, in the period 2022-2026, at
other equal conditions, TPP Maritza East 2 EAD could achieve better overall efficiency, while stabilizing
the financial condition of the company for the period, through gradual reduction of operating losses and
realization of positive results and regular servicing of financial liabilities under the consolidated trade loan
from BEH EAD.
Management is closely monitoring the situation and looking for ways to reduce its impact on the
Company.
Management will continue to monitor the potential impact and will take all possible steps to mitigate the
potential impacts.
The results achieved by the Company as at 31.12.2021 compared to the same period of the previous year,
are presented in the following table:
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Key indicators
Revenues from operating activity
Operating expenses (excluding depreciation and
impairment)
EBITDA
EBIT
Loss before tax (EBT)
EBIT margin
EBITDA margin
Average number of staff

Total assets
Working capital
Equity
Cash availability
Return on equity
Return on assets

1 341 730

458 479

Change,
(%)
883 251

(1 313 355)
28 375
(86 047)
(119 465)
(6.41%)
2.11%
2 291

(665 275)
(206 796)
(309 742)
(339 599)
(67.56%)
(45.10%)
2 324

(648 080)
235 171
223 695
220 134
61.15%
47.22%
(33)

As at
31.12.2021
1 894 129
(99 650)
368 525
12 654
(32.42%)
(6.31%)

As at
31.12.2020
1 595 419
(495 366)
300 445
26 690
(113.03%)
(21.29%)

Change,
(%)
298 710
395 716
68 080
14 036
80.61%
14.98%

For 2021

For 2020

In the past 2021 the total amount of the realized operating revenues of TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD
amounted to BGN 1,341,730 thousand against BGN 458,479 thousand reported for the same period in
the previous 2020. The increase of the total revenue part is by BGN 883,251 thousand or 192.65%. The
revenues reported in 2021 are at a record level since the establishment of the power plant.
The main revenues in 2021 the Company generated from sales of electricity on the regulated market and
on the free market, available capacity for additional services of primary and secondary regulation to ESO
EAD, balancing energy surplus and participation in up-regulation of ESO EAD. These revenues
amounted to BGN 1,329,501 thousand.
In 2021, 5,123,105 MWh of electricity were sold compared to 3,252,582 MWh that were sold in the
previous 2020 year. Increase of 1,870,253 MWh or 57.51% was reported.
Revenues from sale of electricity and available capacity
Revenue from regulated market NEK – Public Provider
Revenue from sale of electricity on the free market, incl. sale on IBEX
Revenue from sale of balancing energy – surplus to ESO
Revenue from participation in up-regulation to ESO
Revenue from sale of available cold reserve to ESO
Revenue from availability for additional services –
primary and secondary regulation to ESO
Total:

in thousand BGN
2021
2020
419 037
416 477
862 468
16 529
69
59
43 592
9 679
871
4 335

2 850

1 329 501

446 465

In order to define the financial performance of the Company, assessment of the amount, structure and
dynamics of costs and factors behind them should be made. According to their economic nature and for
the purposes of management, accounting and financial analysis, the expenses are divided into two main
groups: operating expenses and financial costs.
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Operating expenses
Fuel and electric power
Materials
External services
Depreciations and impairment
Employee benefit expenses
Greenhouse gas emissions costs
Accrued impairment of FA
Other operating expenses
Total:

in thousand BGN
2021
2020
178 009
116 637
23 473
23 834
50 343
43 278
114 422
102 946
111 323
112 780
850 341
339 677
592
80
99 274
28 989
1 427 777
768 221

The main costs of the plant are for greenhouse gas emissions, fuel and electricity costs (which include the
cost of coal, fuel oil and other liquid fuels as well as purchased electricity). These are variable costs that
are directly related to the amount of electricity generation. The limestone costs, the charge for the Power
System Security Fund, as well as the access fee for producers, integrated on 01.07.2019, are directly
related to the generation volume.
The significant increase in the price of allowances for greenhouse gas emissions in 2021 increased their
share of the reported operating costs of the Company to 59.56%. A framework contract No
17460/16.07.2021 was signed between TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD (as Buyer) and BEH EAD (as Seller) for
current purchase after an application submitted by TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD in the terms and conditions
of that contract, of a certain amount of European allowances for greenhouse gas emissions of EUA type,
necessary for the operation of TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD.
With regard to the fuels input for generation as at 31.12.2021, the highest relative share is represented by
the costs for coal, which amount to BGN 173,927 thousand. As of 01.07.2014 the effective price of the
lignite coal supplied by “Mini-Maritsa East” EAD was fixed at BGN 77.00 per ton of coal equivalent.
During the previous 2020 the costs for coal amounted to BGN 112,947 thousand in total and increase of
BGN 61,180 thousand was reported, which is due to the higher generation reported in 2021.
In 2021 the reported expenses for depreciation and impairment of property, machines, equipment and
transport means amount to BGN 114,422 thousand, incl. depreciation expenses in the amount of BGN
111,518 thousand and expenses from fixed assets impairment in the amount of BGN 2,904 thousand.
In 2021 the reported expenses for depreciation and impairment of property, machines, equipment and
transport means amount to BGN 114,422 thousand, incl. depreciation expenses in the amount of BGN
111,518 thousand and expenses from fixed assets impairment in the amount of BGN 2,904 thousand.
During the comparable period of the previous 2020 depreciation expenses were reported, amounting to
BGN 102,946 thousand.
in thousand BGN
2021
2020
Interest expenses on loans and borrowed funds
Interest expenses under rescheduling agreements
Fee and commission expenses
Net interest expense on defined benefit plans
Negative differences from changes in exchange rates
Financial costs
Other financial income
Bank accounts interest income
Financial income
Financial costs, net

32 385
690
242
211
2
33 530
95
17
112
33 418

28 964
712
31
261
26
29 994
75
62
137
29 857
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The net financial costs for the year 2021 amounted to BGN 33,418 thousand. Their main part is related
to interest on loans granted by the sole owner of the capital and expenses for interest under agreements
on deferred trade payables. Reported financial revenues amounted to BGN 112 thousand, and financial
expenses amounted to BGN 33,530 thousand.
The reported financial result for the year 2021 is loss prior to taxes to the amount of BGN 119,465
thousand, as the reported decrease of the loss is by BGN 220,134 thousand compared to the reported
financial result for 2020, when the loss amounted to BGN 339,599 thousand. One of the main reasons
for the losses incurred within the period 2014 – 2021 is the cost for purchase of greenhouse gas emission
allowances. The allowances from 2013 are an increasingly important item in the variable costs of fossil
fuel power plants. TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD is disadvantaged compared to the other large power stations
in the Maritsa East complex, to which NEK EAD pays full availability at significantly higher prices, by at
the same time covers the purchase costs for greenhouse gas allowances. Another reason for the negative
financial result is related to a number of regulatory and legal changes in the business environment, the
most significant of which are the introduction of a 5% fee for the revenue from the sale of electricity to
the Energy Security Fund as of 24 July 2015, as well as the price approved by the EWRC for access to
the electricity transmission grid for electricity producers in the amount of BGN 2.42/MWh, which
should be paid by TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD to Electricity System Operator EAD (ESO EAD).
As at 30.06.2021 TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD reported a negative financial result in the amount of BGN
238,785 thousand. In the third quarter of 2021 the financial result was positive and amounted to BGN
59,846 thousand due to the growth of the free market prices. As a consequence of that, the negative
financial result as at 30.09.2021 was reduced to BGN 178,939 thousand, as the positive trend was
maintained towards the end of 2021, and the loss prior to taxes was reduced to BGN 119,465 thousand.
Risk factors, objectives and policy for financial risk management
The main risks arising from the Company’s financial instruments are interest rate risk, liquidity risk,
foreign currency risk and credit risk. The main financial liabilities of the Company include interest bearing
loans and borrowings, and trade payables. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to provide
financing for the Company’s business activity. The Company possesses financial assets such as trade
receivables and cash, which arise directly from the activity.
The policy applied by the management of the Company for ruling these risks is summarized below.
Interest rate risk
The company is exposed to risk of change in market interest rates, mainly in relation to its short-term and
long-term financial liabilities with variable (floating) interest rate. The Company’s policy is to manage
interest expenses by using financial instruments with both fixed and floating interest rates. As at 31
December 2021, the Company has no loans with variable interest rates.
Liquidity risk
Effective management of the Company’s liquidity involves the provision of sufficient working capital.
The Company sells a part of its production on the liberalized market and from 01.01.2018 it is obligatory
to use the platforms of IBEX EAD, which provide for a number of security mechanisms. In the free
market sales, on a post-pay basis, there is a higher risk of non-collection of receivables, by the Company
requires different types of guarantees and collaterals (cash deposit, bank guarantee, insurance policy,
promissory note). In 2021 the sales of electricity on the IBEX EAD platform show a significant increase.
Exchange trading rules require the maintenance of significant collateral and financial limits on the part of
the buyers of electricity, which means that the risk of non-collection of receivables is minimal.
Comparatively higher risk exists in relation to the collection of receivables from sales on the regulated
market, which results from the difficult financial position of NEK EAD. Through changes in the field of
energy regulation in the last years improvement in the financial situation of NEK EAD is reported.
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Foreign currency risk
The Company makes purchases, sales and receives loans in foreign currencies – Euro and Japanese Yen.
Since the exchange rate BGN/EUR is pegged at 1.95583, the foreign currency risk arising from the
exposures of the Company in Euros is minimal. The Company makes payments related to civil works and
supplies for assets under construction in Japanese yen.
In 2021 the Company has not acted in the field of research and development.
The company does not have any branches.
ІV. Post-reporting date events
Information on actions taken by TPP Maritza East 2 EAD, the sole owner of the capital of
Professional Football Club Beroe - Stara Zagora EAD, for sale of shares of Professional Football
Club Beroe - Stara Zagora EAD
In accordance with the government's policy for optimizing the costs of state energy companies, the Board
of Directors of TPP Maritsa East EAD, according to item 13 of Protocol No. 54 /15.12.2021. decided to
take the necessary actions to transfer the ownership of all available, ordinary, registered shares in the
amount of 5,480,000 shares, owned by TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD, representing 100% of the capital of
Professional Football Club Beroe - Stara Zagora EAD, after receiving prior consent from Bulgarian
Energy Holding EAD - sole owner of the capital of TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD.
In connection with the above, with a decision under item II.9 of Protocol No. 67-2021/22.12.2021, the
Board of Directors of Bulgarian Energy Holding EAD gave prior consent to the above decisions and
assigned to the Executive Director of TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD to report all pre-agreed terms of the
disposal transaction before implementing the legal and actual actions for the transfer of ownership of the
shares in order to get the final decision by the Board of Directors of Bulgarian Energy Holding EAD.
Pursuant to the above decisions, on 23 December 2021, an announcement for the sale of 100% of the
shares of Professional Football Club Beroe - Stara Zagora EAD was published on the website of TPP
Maritsa East 2 EAD, PFC Beroe - Stara Zagora EAD, BTA EAD and Stara Zagora News.
The deadline for expressing interest by potential buyers and submitting bids was 09.011.2022. The e-mail
addresses indicated in the published announcement for submission of proposals received emails of different
content from interested parties. PFC Beroe sent additional questions to the financial proposals, requesting to
specify their proposed strategy for the development of the club, including their financial capabilities for its
maintenance with deadline 12.01.2022, 1 o'clock p.m. No offers were received within the specified additional
period at the e-mail addresses provided for this purpose, in response to clarifying inquiries from any of the
interested parties. Due to the above, it was not possible to rank the received proposals.
On February 2, 2022, TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD received a Notification of an investment proposal from the
NGO "Association for Support of Football-Beroe", UIC 206794473, represented by its chairman, Attorney.
Svetoslav Minevski, who expressed his readiness to acquire 100% of the shares of the football club and to
finance it, and in view of this proposes to acquire the shares free of charge by donation or for a total value of
BGN 1 (one), but only if all the obligations of the club currently due are paid before the transfer or on the date
of the transfer.
According to a check in the Commercial Register and the Register of Non-Profit Legal Entities at the Registry
Agency, it was established that the said non-profit association was newly established, with a date of initial
registration 20.01.2022, i.e. after the deadline for submission of bids for purchase of the announced for sale
shares of PFC Beroe. According to the information published in the Commercial Register, the purpose of the
association is in the public interest, as it follows: “1. The comprehensive development of football,
preservation of good traditions, popularity and support for football, by attracting the public in Stara
Zagora and other regional centers, encouraging activity and initiative of athletes, coaches, professionals,
activists, leaders and amateurs and increase social importance of Football as a social phenomenon, by
supporting existing formations for the training of athletes and professionals; 2. Preparation of programs
for the development of teams for high sportsmanship, children and youth sports, organizing, conducting
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and participation of the Association in the national calendar of events related to Bulgarian and world
football, etc."
The following are indicated as means for achieving the set goals of the association: “1. Interaction with
state and municipal institutions, individuals and legal entities to achieve the goals of the association and
increase the social significance of football; 2. Organizing, supporting, encouraging and guiding all forms
of football practice by all comers, including members of the association and its supporters; 3. Selection,
training, initial sports training, training and competition process in children and youth, adolescent, elite
and professional sports; 4. Free exchange of information, ideas, knowledge and experience between
football fans, supporters and members of the association, etc.
During the years in which TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD is the owner of PFC Beroe, the managements of
both companies have consistently pursued a policy of financing and management of the football club in
public benefit in view of the importance of the team as an emblem of Stara Zagora and the region. In
view of this focus and due to the desire to continue as much as possible the direction of the club for the
benefit of its supporters and the public in Stara Zagora and the region, as well as due to the fact that
other serious interest in acquiring property of the club was not confirmed, the management of TPP
Maritsa East 2 EAD proposed to hold negotiations to reach a mutually satisfactory agreement on the
acquisition of 100% of the shares of PFC Beroe from the NGO "Association for Support of FootballBeroe".
In view of the condition that according to the Investment proposal of the NGO "Football Support
Association-Beroe" in the transfer of ownership of the shares of the football club the company has no due
obligations, it was found that for January 2022. "Professional Football Club Beroe - Stara Zagora" EAD has
current liabilities for payment of wages, which are due in February 2022, as well as liabilities to contractors
under contractual relations, which are overdue. As it is publicly known, at the moment the football club is in a
difficult financial situation and does not have the necessary funds to repay the accumulated debts. The total
amount of the due liabilities of Professional Football Club Beroe - Stara Zagora EAD due in February and the
overdue ones amounts to approximately BGN 236,000.
In connection with the decision taken by the Board of Directors of TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD to announce the
sale of 100% of the available, ordinary, registered shares of the capital of Professional Football Club Beroe Stara Zagora EAD was assigned to conduct an assessment of equity of Professional Football Club Beroe Stara Zagora EAD with derived value per share of a licensed appraiser. The purpose and application of the
assessment is to determine the market value for accounting purposes, as well as to determine the value for
rapid non-compulsory realization (liquidation value) of the equity of "Professional Football Club Beroe - Stara
Zagora" EAD in connection with the forthcoming sale of shares of the football club.
The value of the capital of the football club according to the prepared Assessment of the capital of
Professional Football Club Beroe - Stara Zagora EAD with a derived value of one shareamounts to BGN
235,286 (two hundred and thirty-five thousand two hundred and eighty-six) BGN as of 31.12.2021. (with
market adequacy until July 1, 2022), as the value of one share is set at BGN 0.043.
Based on the above facts that the assessment of the equity of Professional Football Club Beroe - Stara Zagora
EAD and the amount of accumulated liabilities of the club as of February 2022 are estomated of very close
values and in connection with negotiations with the interested party, a proposal was made to transfer 100% of
the shares of PFC Beroe - Stara Zagora EAD to the interested NGO NGO "Association for Support of
Football - Beroe" to be done by a contract for purchase and sale of shares under Article 185 of the CA against
the amount of BGN 1 (one), the acquirer undertakes to repay the existing at the time of the transfer
transaction obligations of Professional Football Club Beroe - Stara Zagora EAD.
Pursuant to Art. 25, para. 2, item 1 in connection with Art. 20, para. 2, vol. 11 of the Articles of
Association of TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD, the Board of Directors of TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD, according
to item 1 of Protocol No.10/21.02.2022 decided to transfer 5,480,000 available, ordinary, registered
shares, owned by TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD to the NGO "Association for Support of football-Beroe"
with UIC 206794473, representing 100% of the capital of Professional Football Club Beroe - Stara
Zagora EAD EAD, registered in the Commercial Register and Register of Non-Profit Legal Entities with
UIC 200106240, under the following conditions:
through a remunerative contract for purchase and sale of shares by the order of art. 185 of the
Commercial Act;
against a selling price of BGN 1 (one);
method of payment - upon signing the contract for purchase and sale of shares,
after obtaining a permit for this from Bulgarian Energy Holding EAD
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With decisions under item II.7 of Protocol No.10-2022/23.02.2022, the Board of Directors of Bulgarian
Energy Holding EAD gives permission for the sale of the shares of Professional Football Club Beroe Stara Zagora EAD under the above conditions . It recommends the contract of sale to include that the
buyer undertakes to repay the accumulated obligations of Professional Football Club Beroe - Stara Zagora
EAD within a certain period. In case the buyer does not repay the accumulated obligations of the
Professional Football Club Beroe - Stara Zagora EAD, TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD has the right to
unilaterally terminate the contract of sale of shares.
On February 25, 2022, in the town of Stara Zagora, between TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD, UIC 123531939,
with registered office and address of management: Kovachevo village, PO Box 6265, municipality
Radnevo, region Stara Zagora, represented by Eng. Zhivko Dimitrov Dinchev - Executive Director, as
the owner of 5,480,000 (five million four hundred and eighty thousand) ordinary registered voting shares,
with a nominal value of BGN 1 (one) each, representing 100% of the capital of Professional Football
Club Beroe - Stara Zagora EAD and NGO "Association for Support of Football - Beroe", UIC
206794473, with registered office and address: Stara Zagora, p.k. 6000, 87 Hadji Dimitar Assenov Str., 6th
floor, apt. Office 2, represented by Svetoslav Mitkov Minevski - Chairman of the Management Board, a
contract was signed for the purchase and sale of 5,480,000 shares, representing 100% (one hundred
percent) of the capital of Professional Football Club Beroe - Stara Zagora EAD.
On March 10, 2022, the changes in the current state of the club were published in the Commercial
Register.
Since March 10, 2022, the Company has been managed by a Board of Directors (Board of Directors)
consisting of:
Steliyan Nikolaev Popchev - Chairman of the Board of Directors and Executive Director
Zhelyazko Dinkov Dinev - Member of the Board of Directors
Rumyana Atanasova Atanasova - Member of the Board of Directors
The sole owner of the capital of "Professional Football Club Beroe - Stara Zagora" EAD is NGO
"Association for Support of Football-Beroe".
The investment in the subsidiary “Professional Football Club Beroe - Stara Zagora” EAD as at
31.12.2021 is impaired up to the sale price of BGN 1 (one) and is classified in accordance with IFRS 5 as
an asset held for sale.
Military action in Ukraine
In the early hours of February 24, 2022, Russia took military action in neighboring Ukraine. This conflict
is growing rapidly and is considered the most serious military situation in Europe since the end of the
World War II.
Although the Russian military may have planned the attack on Ukraine and mobilized in the year ending
December 31, 2021, this should not be considered a critical event to suggest that the conflict was obvious
at the time. In view of this fact, the Company does not consider it necessary to take into account
additional adjustments to the separate financial statements as at 31.12.2021 and the current conflict
should be considered as a non-adjusting event.
Following this military conflict, some countries have announced new packages of sanctions against the
state debt of the Russian Federation and a number of Russian banks, as well as personal sanctions against
a number of individuals. At a later stage, sanctions were imposed on Belarus as well. As at the date of the
report, individual countries and the EU have imposed four categories of sanctions on Russia and Belarus:
•
•
•
•

sanctions against individuals and enterprises / organizations
restrictions on business
diplomatic measures
restriction of economic cooperation
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Due to the growing geopolitical tensions since February 2022, there has been a significant increase in the
volatility of securities and currency markets, fluctuations in energy and gasoline prices, a significant
depreciation of the ruble against the US dollar and the Euro currencies.
The international situation related to the conflict between Russia and Ukraine has led to changes in the
economic aspect and market conditions associated with rising inflation, a dynamic rise in prices for basic
raw materials.
The gradual recovery of economic activities expected over the next few years, in the period 2022-2026, at
other equal conditions, TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD could achieve better overall efficiency, while stabilizing
the financial condition of the company for the period, through gradual reduction of operating losses and
realization of positive results and regular servicing of financial liabilities under the consolidated trade loan
from BEH EAD.
Management is closely monitoring the situation and looking for ways to reduce its impact on the
Company.
Management will continue to monitor the potential impact and will take all possible steps to mitigate the
potential impacts.
V. Company development strategy
The development strategy of TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD involves realization of investment projects, whose
main objective is TPP rehabilitation and reduction of the environmental pollution. The completion of the
main projects is a prerequisite for TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD to retain its key position as one of the major
electricity producers in the country. The result from the implementation of investment and maintenance
programs is the higher capacity utilization achieved at lower failure record, higher efficiency and
greenability of the TPP, providing energy security in the country.
VI. Management responsibility
According to the Bulgarian legislation, the Management shall prepare a financial statement for each
financial year to give a true and fair view of the Company’s financial position as at the end of the year, its
financial performance and cash flows.
The Management confirms that it has applied and observed the approved accounting policy unaltered
during the whole reporting period, upon the preparation of the annual statements as at 31 December
2021 and it has made reasonable and circumspect assumptions and estimates.
The Management also confirms that it has kept within the effective accounting standards, by the separate
financial statements were prepared on the going-concern principle. The validity of the going-concern
principle depends on the active financial support of the sole shareholder and also on the investment
programme implementation within the due dates, which would give the Company the opportunity to
render its production capacities and to carry out its activity in accordance with the international
requirements.
The Management is responsible for keeping proper accounting records, for the expedient management of
assets and for undertaking the necessary actions for prevention and detection of possible fraud and other
irregularities.
Information as per Appendix No. 2 to art. 10, it. 1, art. 11, it. 1, art. 21, it. 1, letter “a” and it. 2,
letter “a” of ORDINANCE No.2 dated 09.11.2021 for initial and subsequent disclosure of
information in public offering of securities and admission of securities to trading on a regulated
market (Promulgated - SG, issue 97 of 19.11.2021, in force from 01.01.2022)
Additional information as per Appendix No.2 of Ordinance No.2 of FCC /Financial Control
Commission
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1. Information given in value and quantitative terms about the main categories of commodities, products and/or
provided services, with indication of their share in the revenues from sales of the issuer as a whole and the changes that
occurred during the reporting fiscal year.
The main activity of the Company is related to the production and sale of electricity through a thermal
power plant (TPP). The revenues from generation and sale of electricity in 2021 represent 99.09 % of the
total revenues of the Company. The table below presents detailed information on the electricity
produced and sold by the Power Plant in 2021 and 2020 by types of markets and their relative share
towards the total quantity produced in MWh and BGN.
Revenues from sales of
electric energy /EE/

Unit of
measure

2021

Relative
share of sales
2021 (%)

2020

Relative
share of
sales 2020
(%)

Comparison
2021/2020

Sales of EE
MWh

5 123 105.40

3 252 582.20

MWh

440 430.00

364 255.00

Revenues of sale of EE
Revenues from available
capacity

BGN

1 325 166 513.21

99.67%

442 742 978.36

99.17%

882 423 534.85

BGN

4 334 579.05

0.33%

3 721 750.00

0.83%

612 829.05

Total revenues from sales

BGN

1 329 501 092.26

Sold EE
Available capacity

1 870 523.20
76 175.00

Revenues from sales of EE

446 464 728.36

883 036 363.90

2.

2. Information about the revenues allocated by separate categories of activities, domestic and external markets as well
as information about the sources for supply of materials required for the manufacture of commodities or the provision of
services with indication of the degree of dependence in relation to any individual seller or buyer/user, where if the share of any
of them exceeds 10 per cent of the expenses or revenues from sales, information shall be provided about every person
separately about such person’s share in the sales or purchases and his relations with the issuer.
Structure of revenues for 2021 and comparison to 2020 (in thousand BGN)
Description of revenues
and expenses

Unit of
measure

2021

Share of
total
revenues
2021 (%)

2020

Share of
total
revenues
2020 (%)

Comparison
2021/2020

Revenue from sales of
electric power

BGN

1 329 501 092.26

99.09%

446 464 728.36

97.38%

883 036 363.90

Revenues from financing

BGN

3 788 231.34

0.28%

3 085 842.98

0.67%

702 388.36

Other operational income
Total income from
operating activity:

BGN

8 441 012.64

0.63%

8 928 685.85

1.95%

(487 673.21)

BGN

1 341 730 336.24

458 479 257.19

883 251 079.05

In 2021, there was electricity sold to foreign customers. The place of supply of electricity in all sales
contracts is the point of border connection of the technical facilities of TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD to the
collecting busbar systems of the Transmission Company (ESO EAD). There are no clauses in the
contracts for the point of destination of electric power.
In the sum of Other Income as at 31 December 2021, the amount of BGN 4,510 thousand by an insurer
in connection with participation in a positive financial result of an insurance policy is recognized as
income.
The table below provides information about the main customers and suppliers of the company in 2021
(with a relative share above 10% from the income/expenses).
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Revenue/Expenses
Total revenue from the main activity,
including
NEK EAD
IBEX EAD
Total expenses,
including
Bulgarian Energy Holding EAD – supply of
greenhouse emissions, loan interests, other
services.
Mini Maritsa - Iztok EAD – coal supplier,
other services, interest.

3.

Unit of measure
BGN
BGN
BGN
BGN
BGN
BGN

2021

Relative share %

1 329 501 092.26
419 047 360.91
347 252 264.46
1 461 307 680.20

31.52%
26.12%

1 199 696 534.09

82.10%

184 815 079.87

12.65%

BGN
BGN

Information on concluded significant transactions

In 2021 a Contract No.17375/20.04.2021 for purchase and sale of greenhouse gas emission allowances was
signed between TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD (as Buyer) and BEH EAD (as Seller) for the purchase of the EUA
greenhouse gas emission allowances needed to cover the 2020 obligation in the National Register of
Greenhouse Gas Emissions Trading Schemes. The amount of shortage represents the difference between the
actually issued, verified quantities and the others available on the Company's account in the National Register
after the fulfillment of the obligation for 2019. The value of the contract is BGN 338,112 thousand.

In 2021, a framework agreement No. 17460/16.07.2021 was signed between TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD (as
the Buyer) and BEH EAD (as the Seller) for the current purchase of a certain amount of European
quotas for emissions of greenhouse gases of the type "EUA" required for the operation of TPP Maritsa
East 2 EAD, after an application submitted by TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD in the terms and conditions of
this contract, a certain amount of European quotas. In 2021, quotas at the amount of BGN 891,498
thousand were purchased under the contract.

4.

Information about the transactions concluded between the Company and related parties during the reporting period,
proposals for conclusion of such transactions as well as transactions which are outside its usual activity or substantially
deviate from the market conditions, to which the Company or its subsidiary is a party, indicating the amount of the
transactions, the nature of relatedness and any information necessary for an estimate of the influence over the Company’s
financial status.
Information given in value terms about related party transactions is presented in details in the separate
financial statements of the Company for the year 2021 in Note 30 “Related parties and related party
transactions”. Related party transactions do not deviate from the normal market conditions.

5.

Information about events and indicators of unusual for the Company nature, having substantial influence over its
operation and the realized by it revenues and expenses made; assessment of their influence over the results during the current
year.
There are no events and indicators of nature not typical for the Company, which could have a significant
impact on its activities, and the revenues and expenses incurred by it; assessment of their impact on the
results in the current year.

6.

Information about off-balance kept transactions – nature and business objective, indication of the financial impact of
the transactions on the operation, if the risk and benefits of these transactions are substantial for the Company and if the
disclosure of that information is substantial for the assessment of the Company’s financial status.
The company does not perform transactions that are kept off-balance.

7.

Information about holdings of the Company, about its main investments in the country and abroad (in securities,
financial instruments, intangible assets and real estate), as well as the investments in equity securities outside its economic
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group within the meaning of Accounting Act and the sources/ways of financing.
TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD as at 31.12.2021 has a shareholding in the following companies:
Company
ZAD “Energy”
„PFC Beroe - Stara Zagora” EAD

Participation
0.96%
100%

in BGN
Nominal Value
172 784
5 480 000

Information on actions taken by TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD, sole owner of the capital of Professional
Football Club Beroe - Stara Zagora EAD, for the sale of shares of Professional Football Club Beroe Stara Zagora EAD is presented in the separate financial statements for 2021 in Note 31 "Post-reporting
date events".
Property and intangible assets owned by the Company are used in its main activity for generation of
electricity. Detailed information about them is presented in the separate financial statements of the
Company as at 31.12.2021 in the Notes 6 “Property, plant and equipment” and 5 “Intangible assets”.
The financial assets of the Company as at 31 December 2021 include receivables from clients and cash.
Detailed information is presented in the separate financial statements of the Company as at 31.12.2021 in
the Notes 11 “Trade and other receivables” and 13 “Cash and cash equivalents“.

8.

Information about the loan contracts concluded by the Company, by its subsidiaries in their capacity of borrowers, with
indication of the terms and conditions thereof, including the deadlines for repayment as well as information on the provided
guarantees and assuming of liabilities.

Type of the loan

Currency
of the loan

BEH EAD

Refinancing of
obligations

BGN

BEH EAD

Line of credit

BGN

Mini Maritsa Iztok EAD

Rescheduling
agreement

BGN

Lender

Amount of the
loan
(in original
currency),
in thousands
1 048 061
100 000
85 225
8 599

Year of
payment of
the last
installment

Interest rate

2028

3,225%

2022

3,225%
3,225%

2024

without
interest

Collateral
without
collateral
without
collateral
without
collateral

Additional information about the loan contracts concluded by the Company in its capacity as a borrower
is presented in its separate financial statement for 2021 in Note 30 “Related parties and transactions with
related parties”.

9.

Information on the loans granted by the Company or its subsidiaries, the provision of guarantees or liabilities in total
to one entity or its subsidiary, including related parties, indicating the name or title and UIC of the entity, the nature of the
relationship between the Company or its subsidiaries and the borrower, the amount of outstanding principal, interest rate,
date of conclusion of the contract, deadline for repayment, amount of liabilities, specific conditions other than those specified
in this provision, as well as the purpose for which they are granted in case they are concluded as targets.
Neither the Company nor its subsidiary are lenders under loan agreements as at 31 December 2021 and
have not provided guarantees.

10.

Analysis and assessment of the policy concerning the management of the financial resources with indication of the
possibilities for servicing of the liabilities, eventual jeopardizes and measures which the Company has undertaken or is to
undertake with a view to their removal.
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The objectives of the Company in connection with the management of the financial resources are to
ensure its capability to exist as a going concern and provide returns to the sole owner and economic
benefits to other interested parties. The risk management is currently carried out by the operational
management under the supervision of the BoD and the sole owner.
The Company meets its liquidity needs by carefully monitoring payments under the repayment schedule
of long-term financial liabilities, as well as cash inflows and outflows arising in the course of operating
activities. The need of liquidity is monitored for different periods of time – daily and weekly, and also on
the base of 30-day forecasts. Need of liquidity in the long run – for periods of 180 and 360 days – are
determined quarterly. The need for finances is compared to available loans, in order to establish surpluses
or deficits, which determines whether the available loans will be sufficient to cover the Company needs
for the period. Funds for the long-term liquidity needs are secured through loans of the relevant amount.
The effective liquidity management of the Company implies providing sufficient working capital and,
upon necessity, financial support from the sole owner.

11. Information about occurred during the reporting period changes in the base principles for management of the Company
within the meaning of Accounting Act.

In 2021 there are no changes occurred in the general management principles of the Company.

12. Information about the main characteristics of the internal controls system and risk management system applied by the

Company, in the course of preparation of the financial statements.
The Company developed and approved internal rules and procedures with regard to internal control and
reporting systems.
The internal control system of the Company is implemented by the “Administrative, Tax and Financial
Control Directorate” (ATFCD). Its main feature is that it incorporates overall policies and procedures
(internal controls) adopted by the Company management to achieve its objectives and ensures, as far as
practicable, order and efficiency upon the implementation of the Company activity, including adherence
to government policy, protection of enterprise assets, detection and prevention of fraud and mistakes,
completeness and accuracy of accounting records and timely preparation of reliable financial information.
The internal control system covers not only areas directly related to the functions of the accounting
system but also much wider problems. For the implementation of this activity, the following units have
been set up and operate in ATFCD:
Unit “Document Control”
It performs current, preliminary control of the legality and expediency of documents and activities related
to the financial activity of the Company. The control is carried out by checking all relevant documents
prior to the assumption of the obligation and the forthcoming incurring of costs, in particular: memos,
contracts, reports, current orders, letters of assignment.
In 2021, the Unit received 238 memos for commitment of expenditures through procedures under Public
Procurement Law, as for 3 of them the estimated value was reduced, 36 memos were corrected and 2
memos were suspended.
The verified requests for supplies of materials, spare parts and services are 1,707 in number. 37 requests
were corrected in the direction of decrease, and no expenses were allowed for other 15 requests.
137 letters of assignment were submitted for verification in 2021.
Monthly reports are prepared by ATFCD.
Unit “Interdepartmental financial control”
It performs preliminary control in the Company in accordance with written policies and procedures prior
to the costs and revenues. It performs control prior to making the expenditures or the income for TPP 2.
It prepares the necessary documents after the preliminary control as per the Internal Rules for
Implementation of the Preliminary Control, the Double Signature System and the Internal Control Rules
for the SPCS. It has the right to refuse expressing opinion when the necessary information has not been
provided.
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In 2021 the IFC unit received 5,938 invoices for expenses and 2,913 invoices for earned revenues. There
were remarks and corrections of 56 invoices for revenues and 942 invoices for expenditures. After
elimination of the omissions in them and submitting the missing documents, the invoices were approved.
Unit IFC conducts inspection of the monthly reference report on the electricity generation and sale
schedules prepared by the unit AEM (Administrated Electricity Markets). Upon check-up of the monthly
schedules in 2021 none errors were found.
The Unit also carries out check-up of all statements on the activities of TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD, which
have been prepared for the tax, customs and other controlling authorities and institutions prior to their
signing by the Executive Director. No inconsistencies were found.
Unit „Documents Registration”
In 2021 in the Documents Registration Unit a total of 39,470 documents were received, of which
incoming – 33,137 documents and 6,333 - outgoing documents.
An annual check of the classified information registry was carried out. Protocols were prepared for the
results of the inspection. No significant shrotcomings were identified.
In connection with the implementation of the measures of the Sector Anti-corruption Plan in the Energy
Sector, approved by Order No. E-RD-16-536/30 October 2015 of the Minister of Energy “Internal Rules
for Registration and Work on Corruption and/or Conflict of Interest Signals and Protection of the
People Sending Warnings” were adopted. Order No.265 dated 4 February 2016 was also issued in
implementation of which from 5 February 2016 an employee of the ATFC Directorate participates in a
committee for daily check of the presence of signals for corruption or conflict of interest in the e-mail,
hotline and mailboxes. No signals were submitted for 2021.
Unit “Internal audit”
By Protocol No.54/28 November 2017 of the Board of Directors regarding the modification of the
organizational structure of the Company, the Internal Audit Unit was removed from the ATFC
Directorate and Internal Audit Department directly subordinate to the Executive Director/Board of
Directors was set up.
The Internal Audit activity for 2021 is conducted in accordance with the requirements of the Public
Sector Internal Audit Act, International Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing, the
Code of Ethics of Internal Auditors, the Internal Audit Manual and the Statute of the Unit “Internal
Audit” (UIA).
The completed audit commitments of the UIA are in accordance with the approved and adopted by the Board
of Directors of TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD Strategic Plan for the period 2019-2021 and Annual Plan for 2021,
adopted by the decision under it. 9.1 of Protocol No. 43/22.12.2020 of the Board of Directors of TPP Maritsa
East 2 EAD.
During the reporting period (01.01.2021 – 31.12.2021), 8 scheduled audits and 1 unscheduled audit were
carried out, for which 9 reports were prepared and 16 recommendations were made. All recommendations
made by Unit “Internal Audit” were accepted by the heads of the audited departments.
In 5 of the audits carried out no omissions were identified and no recommendations were given to the
departments audited.
By Order No. 1720/30.11.2021 of the Executive Director of the Company, a cross-check was performed for
implementation of the recommendations given in 3 reports for performed and completed audits by
30.11.2021. The implementation of the recommendations (7 in number, given in the report of the special
inspection of the subsidiary PFC Beroe - Stara Zagora EAD) will be checked in the next audit.
The implementation of the recommendations is a prerequisite for improving the activities of the Company and
avoiding inconsistencies with the normative and internal acts.
The Strategy Plan for 2019-2021 and the Annual Plan for 2021 of the Internal Audit Unit were adopted
by a decision under it. 9.1 of Protocol No.43/22.12.2020 of the Board of Directors of TPP Maritsa East 2
EAD. The annual report for 2021 of the Internal Audit Unit was adopted by a decision under item 19.1.
of Protocol No.2/12.01.2022 by the Board of Directors of TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD.

13. Information on the amount of the remunerations, rewards and/or the benefits of everyone of the members of the

management and control bodies for the fiscal year under review, paid by the Company and its subsidiaries, irrespective of
whether they have been included in the Company’s expenses or arise from profit distribution, including:
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a) received amounts and non-money remunerations;
b) contingent or deferred remunerations, occurred during the year, even if the remuneration is due at a later time;
c) amount owed by the Company or its subsidiaries for payment of pensions, compensations at retiring on a pension or other
similar compensations.
In 2021 the following remunerations were paid to the members of the BoD of the Company by the
company and its subsidiary:
in BGN
Members of the Board of Directors
Prof. Dr. Eng. Boncho Ivanov Bonev - Chairman of
the BoD of TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD
Zhivko Dimitrov Dinchev, MSc - Member of the BoD
and Executive Director of TPP Maritsa East 2
EAD

Remunerations

Social Security

Social costs

42 090.00

3 402.00

3 850.00

124 067.00

6 919.20

3 900.00

Diyan Stanimirov Dimitrov - Member of the BoD of
TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD

15 401.90

-

1 500.00

Boyan Ivanov Boev - Member of the BoD of TPP
Maritsa East 2 EAD

25 071.43

-

2 650.00

Ruslan Tanev Germanov - Member of the BoD of
TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD

25 071.43

-

2 650.00

25 821.43

4 031.47

2 650.00

Milan Angelov Milanov - Member of the BoD of
TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD
Ilko Kolev Rusev - Chairman of the BoD and
Executive Director of PFC Beroe - Stara Zagora
EAD
Valentin Dimov Grudev – Member of the BoD of
PFC Beroe - Stara Zagora EAD
Krasimir Ivanov Onchev - Member of the BoD of
PFC Beroe - Stara Zagora EAD

46 152.00

-

7 473.19

134.54

-

6 518.28

1 614.48

-

317 666.66

16 101.69

17 200.00

14. Information about pending legal, administrative or arbitration proceedings relating to Company’s liabilities or

receivables at the amount of at least 10 percent of its equity; if the total amount of the Company’s liabilities or receivables
under all initiated proceedings exceeds 10 per cent of its equity, information shall be submitted for each procedure separately
There are no pending legal, administrative or arbitral proceedings with regard to the liabilities or
receivables of the Company at the amount of at least 10 per cent of its equity.
15. Non-financial declaration under art. 41 of the Accounting Act - for separate financial
statements
TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD is a producer of strategic importance for the country. It is a key element in the
Bulgarian electric power system by providing the base load for consumption and regulating energy in the
system.
TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD is a base-load condensing TPP with installed capacity of 1 610 MW, situated in the
Maritsa-East power complex. It is located near Radetzki village, 60 km south-east of Stara Zagora city. The
TPP was designed to burn lignite coal mined in the Maritsa East complex, which are characterized by low
calorific value and high ash and sulphur content.
The Company operates in compliance with the energy legislation in Bulgaria. The prices of electricity,
designated for the Public Provider, are regulated by the Energy and Water Regulatory Commission (EWRC)
according to the requirements of the Energy Act and the Ordinance on Electricity Prices Regulation. The
Company participates on the free market, concluding deals at freely negotiated prices with all commercial
participants having “Active” status according to the Electricity Trading Rules. The Company was certified by
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EWRC for electric power generation by licence under Reg. No. L-091-01 dated 21 February 2001 for a 20
(twenty)-year period as the license term was extended by 20 years in accordance with Decision No. I1-L091 dated 02.07.2020 issued by EWRC and licence issued by EWRC under Reg. No. L-498-15 dated 31
January 2018 for the activity “Electricity trading”, which secures the future development and enhances
the opportunity of the plant to enter into transactions. The Company participates actively on the
balancing market, by as of 1 February 2014 the units 1 to 4 /old part/ of TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD were
registered as balancing energy suppliers for participation in the secondary regulation, and units 5 to 8
/new part/ were registered as balancing energy suppliers for participation in the primary and secondary
regulation as the register is being kept by ESO EAD.
The management of the Company demonstrates its continuous commitment to guarantee the quality of
the manufactured product and continuous improvement. An Integrated Management System has been
implemented and is functioning perfectly. It includes certified management systems as per the standards
BDS EN ISO 9001, BDS EN ISO 14001 and BS OHSAS 18001.
To implement the strategy of the Company, the Policy on Quality, Environment, Health and Safety at
Work has been formulated. The main goal is to preserve and develop the company's business for
production and supply of electricity and provide services that meet customers and legal requirements by
expanding and establishing the presence of TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD on the energy market.
The announced policy reflects the commitment of the management to achieve the specific goals in these
areas, indicates the approach and the applied principles for achieving the goals, expresses the desire for
continuous improvement.
In order to achieve the set goals, TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD maintains the established management
systems, which integrates all aspects of management and ensures consistency in meeting the requirements
for quality, health and safety at work, environment, security and economy, so as to ensure the highest
priority of safety.
The Quality Management System (QMS) in TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD was certified in 2006 in accordance
with ISO 9001:2000, it has successfully passed annual supervisory audits, as well as re-certified in
accordance with ISO 9001:2008 in 2009. The certification and permanent control for the functioning of
the Quality System is carried out by TÜV Rheinland Bulgaria EOOD. During the years of QMS
functioning, a number of new principles and documents have been constantly developed, introduced and
implemented, leading to the improvement and increase of the system efficiency.
The current certification cycle started in 2021, and the scope of the certificate is: "Production and sale of
electricity, provision of availability, ancillary services for frequency and exchange capacity regulation,
balancing energy and voltage regulation". Proof of this is the certificate issued by the certification body
TÜV Rheinland Bulgaria EOOD.
The achievements and high performance of the functioning QMS through continuous improvement and
success are recognition of the efforts and competence of the company's management and staff in seeking
and enforcing modern solutions, mechanisms and tools to meet the requirements of legislation, market,
customers and other stakeholders. Proof of this is the fulfillment of the stated objectives in the Quality
and Context Policy of the Company, its strategic focus on the continuous improvement of the quality of
the provided products and services and the management commitment to:
•
Continuous research and satisfaction of the requirements and expectations of the interested
parties for the production and sale of electricity of the desired quality and in compliance with the
standards, regulations and contracts;
•
Identifying, updating and achieving high quality objectives in the context of the Company, for the
activities and services provided, taking into account the risks and opportunities secured with the necessary
resources to implement, maintain and continuously improve the management system;
•
Providing and engaging qualified staff at all levels in the Company to efficiently and effectively
implement quality activities, instructing and training of staff to maintain and improve their qualifications,
competence and awareness of their personal responsibilities;
•
Identifying and managing processes and their interconnections as a system to efficiently and
effectively achieve the quality objectives;
•
Providing monitoring, measuring, analyzing and evaluating processes in terms of product and
service quality, decision-making based on evidence of the suitability, adequacy, efficiency and
effectiveness of the QMS;
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•
Continuously improving the efficiency and effectiveness of the QMS in the pursuit of new
opportunities for development and improvement of the performance of activities related to the quality of
products and services provided;
•
Ensuring transparency and correctness of the relationship with all stakeholders.
Environmental issues
The management policy of TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD is directed at limiting the harmful impact on the
components of the environment, by controlling the impacts they exert on their main activity: generation and
supply of electric energy.
The main objective of the company is constant improvement of the ecological status of the plant, the region
and the country. Power generation with high reliability and energy efficiency, providing the best available
techniques for environmental protection and bringing the activity to the requirements of national regulations,
European directives and environmental standards.
The aspects of all major and ancillary activities at the site of the company are identified and evaluated and
those that are managed in the short and long term are defined to improve the environmental performance.
The Company brought its activity in line with the European and national environmental legislation.
The main pollutants emitted into the atmosphere - sulfur dioxide, nitrogen oxides, carbon dioxide, carbon
monoxide and dust are the result of lignite coal mined in Maritsa East basin and burned in the power boilers
(PB) of TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD. Lignite coal from Mini - Maritsa East EAD is characterized by high sulfur
content, low calorific value, high moisture and ash.
The reduction of harmful emissions is carried out through the operation of atmospheric emissions
treatment plants permitted by the IPPC Permit No. 50/2005:
- 1 pc. FGD (1/2) and 1 pc. electrostatic precipitator for each of Boiler 1, Boiler 2, Boiler 3 and
Boiler 4 for purifying flue gases to the exhaust device Stack 1 N-135 m;
- 1 pc. FGD (3/4) and 1 pc. electrostatic precipitator for each of Boiler 5, Boiler 6, Boiler 7 and
Boiler 8 for purifying flue gases to the exhaust device Stack 2 N-135 m;
- 1 pc. FGD (5/6) and 1 pc. (two-section) electrostatic precipitator for each of Boiler 9 and
Boiler 10 for purifying flue gases to the exhaust device Stack N-135 m - 5,6;
- 1 pc. FGD 7 and 1 pc. (two-section) electrostatic precipitator for Boiler 11 for purifying flue
gases to the exhaust device Stack N-135 m - 7;
- 1 pc. FGD 8 and 1 pc. (two-section) electrostatic precipitator for Boiler 12 for purifying flue
gases to the exhaust device Stack N-135 m - 8.
The purification of the flue gases from the total suspended particles is carried out through the built
electrostatic precipitators to each of the power boilers.
The built-up FGDs for cleaning the flue gases from sulrphur dioxide based on “wet limestone method”,
located behind the electric precipitators along the flue gas path further reduces the emissions of dust released
into the ambient air.
In order to comply with Directive 2010/75/EU on industrial emissions (integrated pollution prevention and
control), in order to meet the limits for permissible emissions of harmful substances emitted into the
atmosphere, the Company has implemented the following environmental projects:
- Full engineering of a gas-fired chamber of energy boilers from 1 to 8:
Completed for Boiler No.1, Boiler No.2, Boiler No.5, Boiler No.6, Boiler No.7 and Boiler No.8. The
detailed design for gas-fired chambers of Boiler No.3 and Boiler No.4 will be implemented during the
overhaul of the power unit. The elements necessary for the realization of the project have been made and
delivered.
- Modernization and reconstruction of unit 5 and unit 7: Completed.
- Full engineering of a gas-fired power plant of energy boilers from 1 to 12:
Completed for Boiler No.1, Boiler No.2, Boiler No.5, Boiler No.6, Boiler No.7, Boiler No.8, Boiler
No.11 and Boiler No.12. External gas network has been constructed as well as 5 pcs of gas control points
(GCP) - GCP 1, GCP 3, GCP 4, GCP 7 and GCP 8. The necessary use permits have been issued by the
Directorate for National Construction Control. The construction of gas and black oil firing system for
natural gas is planned for Boiler No. 3, Boiler No. 4, Boiler No. 9, Boiler No. 10 and the relevant GCP 2,
GCP 5 and GCP 6 are to be constructed during major overhauls of Boiler No. 2, Boiler No. 5 and Boiler
No. 6.
- Full engineering of low emission burners of energy boilers from 1 to 12:
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Implemented for Boiler No.1÷10 and Boiler No.12. The combustion system of Boiler No.11 will be
reconstructed during the overhaul of Boiler No.7. The elements necessary for the realization of the
project have been made and delivered. The overhaul of Boiler No.7 is scheduled for 2022.
The construction and commissioning of gas-fired instalations of 1 to 12 boilers, an internal gas network
and 8 gas-regulating points for energy units 1 to 8, aims to replace the firing fuel-oil by natural gas during
the commissioning operations of the energy boilers.
The heavy oil will remain as a backup firing fuel in the event of a natural gas supply shut-down. The
implementation of the project will lead to:
- increased efficiency of the plant operation and reduction of the negative impact on the
environmental components;
- reducing the equivalent amount of greenhouse gases, the annual emission of dust and the
amount of sulphur dioxide emitted into the air during the start-up operations of energy
boilers.
TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD, as an operator of an installation for production of electricity with a total rated
heat capacity exceeding 20 MW has the right to participate in the free allocation of allowances for
greenhouse gas emissions in the period 2021 - 2030, according to Art. 10c of Directive 2003/87/EC (as
amended by Directive (EU) 2018/410). As an eligible beneficiary, the Company has submitted an
application for participation in the National Investment Framework (NIF) for the period 2021 - 2030,
which provides an opportunity for free allocation of allowances for the energy sector modernization.
In view of Commission Implementing Decision No. 2017/1442/EU of 31 July 2017 establishing Best
Available Techniques (BAT) Conclusions for large combustion plants under Directive 2010/75/EU of
the European Parliament and of the Council, information and evidence on the application of best
available techniques (BAT) was prepared, by a request for derogation for sulphur dioxide (SO2) and
mercury (Hg) pollutants was submitted in time to the EEA.
Decision No. 50-N0-I0-A5/2018 was issued on 21.12.2018 for updating the Integrated Pollution
Prevention and Control (IPPC) Permit No.50/2005 of TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD. The decision is being
appealed by the Association "For the Earth - Access to Justice". With Decision No. 252/17.06.2019 of
Stara Zagora Administrative Court, at the request of TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD, preliminary execution of
Decision No. 50-N0-I0-A5/2018 was allowed.
With the granting of a derogation, new stricter emission limit values (ELV/BAT-AEL) have been
introduced for harmful substances emitted into the atmosphere during the operation of the Combustion
Plant for the production of electricity: for dust, sulfur dioxide (SO2), nitrogen oxides ( NOx) and carbon
monoxide (CO). ELV/BAT-AEL have been introduced for mercury (Hg), hydrogen chloride (HCl) and
hydrogen fluoride (HF) and monitoring of metals and non-metals (As, Cd, Co, Cr, Cu, Mn, Ni, Pb, Sb,
Se, Tl , V, Zn).
As an operator of an existing installation, obliged to comply with the applicable environmental
regulations, the Company has undertaken to implement an Investment Program to comply with the
requirements of Decision No.2017/1442/EU to formulate BAT conclusions for large combustion plants,
by implementing the following measures:
FGD 1/2 and FGD 3/4 - Completed: replacement of exisiting spray nozzles with a new model of
modern axial nozzles; installation of reflective rings around the walls of the absorbers; installation and
commissioning of a sulfite analyzer system.
FGD 5/6 - Completed: installation of reflective rings around the walls of the absorbers.
FGD 7 and FGD 8 - Completed: replacement of exisiting spray nozzles with a new model of modern
axial nozzles; installation of reflective rings around the walls of the absorbers; installation and
commissioning of a sulfite analyzer system; installation of 5 (fifth) nozzle level at FGD 8 (in progress at
FGD 7).
A “Non-hazardous waste landfill with code and designation 10 01 05 - solid waste from the calciumbased reaction obtained from waste gas desulphurisation (gypsum from FGD)” was constructed with the
relevant infrastructure to it, conforming to Ordinance No.6 dated 27 August 2013 on the conditions and
requirements for the construction and operation of landfills and other facilities and installations for waste
recovery and disposal. Permit for Use No.ST-05-958/24 June 2014 by National Construction Supervision
Directorate and IPPC Permit with Registration No. 476-N0/2013 by the Executive Environment Agency
for construction and operation of the installation in force from 6 December 2013.
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An Application has been submitted in Ministry of Environment and Water and additional information
provided to it by TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD, for determination of technical gypsum (FGD gypsum),
received from the desulfurization plants (after the gypsum dewatering plants) as a by-product within the
meaning of Art.4, para 1 of the Waste Management Act "technical gypsum for the production of
construction materials". The change of the product classification, in addition to all environmental benefits
related to its management, will lead to financial benefits for the Company, due to increased sales of
dewatered technical gypsum (FGD gypsum) and reduced waste disposal costs with code 10 01 05 calcium-based solid wastes from flue gas desulphurisation (FGD gypsum). A motivated decision of the
Minister of Environment and Water is currently awaited.
The company introduced and is continuously improving Environmental Management System (EMS)
certified according to the international standard ISO 14001:20015 by the authorized body TÜV
Rheinland Cert GmbH with initial certification from 2009. It holds a certificate under reg. No. 01 104
1334435 with validity from 03.02.2021 to 02.02.2024, and area of application "Production of electricity
with flue gaz desulphurization plants installed on all unitsand provision of services - available power,
primary and secondary frequency regulation and voltage regulation”.
Within the period 25.11.2021 to 26.11.2021 the first supervisory audit on the Environmental Management
System (EMS) of the company was conducted to prove compliance with the requirements of ISO
14001:2015; no discrepancies were identified during the audit and no recommendations for improvement
were made.
TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD demonstrates its responsibility for protecting the environment and proves the
strict observance of the provisions of the European and national environment legislation.
Social and employee issues
The company management believes that the employees of TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD are of key
importance for the development of the activity and the achievement of the overall corporate goals and
pays particular attention to the preparation and development of a common strategy and policies for
human resources management.
As at 31.12.2021 the operation activities of the Company are performed by 2,291 persons allocated
according to their functions, as follows:
Operation and operational management;
Equipment repair and maintenance;
Material and technical supply and storage facilities;
Transportation and mechanization;
Financial and economic activity;
Investment activity;
Supervisory activity;
Social and domestic activity.
The organizational structure is developed to comply with the Rules on Operation in the Energy
Production System and the Safety Rules. In relation to the organization of activities the workforce of the
Company is divided into six Directorates – “Operation Directorate”, ”Finance and Economy
Directorate”, “Marketing and Public Procurement Directorate”, “Repairs Directorate”, “Administrative,
Tax and Finance Control Directorate” and “Security Directorate”.
Departments and structural units directly subordinate to the Executive Director are, as follows:
Occupational Safety and Health dept., Technical Inspection of Operation dept., Technical Control and
Quality dept., Legal dept., Environment dept., Secretary, Management and Development of Human
Resources dept., Security and Crisis Management dept., Metal type “C” Control Authority, Coal Testing
Laboratory, Information and Public Relations dept., Investments Department, Corporate Planning Unit,
Internal Audit Unit, Specialized Control Service under the MMLA and Personal Data Protection Unit and
Personal Data Protection Unit.
“Operation Directorate” includes: Shift engineers on duty and dispatcher, Boiler House, Turbine House,
Control and Measurement Instruments, Automation and Control Information Systems dept., Electrical
dept., Chemical water treatment and regimes dept., Flue gas desulphurization plants dept., Ash and Slag
Disposal dept., Coal Handling and Ash Storage dept., Railway Station, Production and Technology dept.,
Technical Personnel Unit.
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“Finance and Economy Directorate” includes Finances and Accounting, Planning and Analysis dept.
“Marketing and Public Procurements” Directorate comprises: Material and Technical Supply dept.,
Commercial dept., Construction and Technology dept., Energy Market Unit.
“Repairs” Directorate includes: Mechanical Repair Workshop, Motor Transport Facility, Administration
Service dept., Vibrodiagnostics Laboratory, Technical Personnel Unit.
“Administrative, Tax and Finance Control” Directorate includes: Internal Departmental Financial Control
Unit, Document Control Unit, Documents Registration Unit.
The Security Directorate is responsible for the protection of classified information, crisis management
and defense mobilization training, protection of national and European critical infrastructure,
management of network and IT infrastructure, as well as network and information security of TPP
Maritsa East 2 EAD. The directorate includes the following departments: "Crisis Security and
Management", "Information Technology" and "Network and Information Security".
For 2021 the average number of Company employees was 2,291 persons. For the period 01.01.2021 –
31.12.2021 the newly appointed persons were 72, and 114 left.
Classification of TPP ME 2 workforce as at 31.12.2021 by education and sex
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Upon employing, TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD applies a system of professional selection and bases its decisions
on the qualification and educational requirements for occupation of a certain position, as well as for legal
capacity, when necessary. Rules have been introduced for conducting a competition for positions determined
by the Employer. Employee recruitment and selection are irrelevant to national and ethnic origin, age, gender,
race, religion, descent, sexual and political orientation, marital status and physical disabilities, except where, as a
result of the nature of the work, sex, respectively age or health, is an essential element.
Equal rights and opportunities for work, development and career growth are provided, depending only on the
initiative, the professional qualification, the experience and personal qualities of the employees, as well as on
the work results achieved.
In accordance with the licensing conditions, the recruitment of staff will continue through a system of
professional selection, meeting the educational, qualification and other requirements defined in the job
descriptions.
The company provides conditions for permanent employment under a labour contract.
Employer's responsibility to provide the necessary technical equipment, raw materials, processed
materials, energy, tools, work clothes, personal protective equipment, etc. and conditions, sufficient to
ensure the normal performance of the work duties, are guaranteed by the collective labour agreement.
No recruitment of people under 18 years old is allowed (Article 8, para 2, item 2 of Ordinance No. 6 of
24 July 2006 on the conditions and procedure for granting work permits to people completed 18).
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Every newly appointed employee prior to admission to the workplace passes through a mandatory initial
instructions introducing the admission regime, safety at work, fire safety, first medical assistance, general
rules for emergency and safety culture.
For the purposes of the transparent staff recruitment, appointment and re-employment policy, the
Employer discloses the application requirements and the results of each selection stage on the
information boards and on the Company's website.
TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD is a socially responsible company. By the Internal Rules, the Employer
undertakes to create conditions and assist the trade unions in the performance of their activities, and to
the staff – to exercise public or trade union activity without hindering the fulfilment of their obligations.
A new Collective Labour Agreement was concluded between the trade unions (“Confederation of
Independent Trade Unions in Bulgaria” and “Podkrepa”) in TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD and the
management of the Company on 26.11.2021 for the period from 01.01.2022 to 31.12.2023, which
regulates labor, social security and social-household relations, which are not regulated by the mandatory
provisions of the law and ensures compliance with the Employer’s commitments to guarantee the rights
of the staff.
Under the Collective Labour Agreement, the Employer undertakes to not hinder any employees from
exercising their rights or using social benefits, dismissing them or imposing disciplinary sanctions on them
due to their membership in a trade union organization.
Upon fulfilling its obligations under the Collective Labour Agreement, the Employer provides, after
written request from a trade union, information on the financial and economic situation of the Company,
in accordance with the rules in force.
In order to ensure that employees' rights are respected, trade unions participate in the drafting of Internal
Regulations and Internal Rules of Wages. A commission of parity between the Employer and
representatives of the employees was set up to work on decision-making for spending part of the funds
for social, domestic and cultural service of workers/employees with health problems.
On the grounds of Ordinance No. 11 dated 21 December 2005 free food and/or supplements to it are
provided to the workers.
The operation of the power plant is carried out by sufficient personnel who are familiar with and understand
the project bases, the safety analyses, the project and operational documents for realization of the production
activity of the company, of the power unit for all operation and emergency conditions.
The employer provides at his own expense any conditions for the preparation and professional qualification of
his employees in cases of closing/opening workplaces, production and activities, as well as upon change of the
operational technology.
In accordance with international standards and national requirements, a training and qualification system for
the personnel, an integral part of TPP Maritsa East 2 management system, was established. The plant has its
own Centre for Professional Qualification, providing the conditions for holding specialized trainings. The
Centre for Professional Qualification of TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD offers and organizes training courses for 7
professions and specialities, which include occupations of the National Classification of Professions and
Positions from the staff of the Company, qualification for part of profession, acquisition of legal qualification
for responsible professions and training for continuous professional development.
The requirements are observed under the clauses of Articles 123 and 123a of the Labour Code. which are to
preserve the employment agreement of the workers, if they get affected by changing the ownership or part of
it upon eventual restructuring of the company or part of it when the activities are attributed or transferred to
another company, including the transfer of tangible assets.
Labour remuneration is regulated by Internal Wage Rules that set up an organization for effective management
of labour remuneration at TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD and ensure that there is no discrimination or unequal
treatment of employees upon the determination of their individual wages.
The rules also regulate the issues related to the payroll system, working time accounting, the minimum wage
for TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD, the minimum basic salary per positions, the types of additional labour
remunerations.
TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD has established a time pay and premium labour remuneration, in which the amount
of the basic salary is directly related to the duration of the work as a quantitative measure of the labor
employed by the employee and a premium depending on the quality of the work done. The basic monthly
salary is remuneration for the fulfilment of defined labour tasks, duties and responsibilities inherent in the
respective job or position, in accordance with the accepted standards of quantity and quality of work and the
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duration of the work performed. The amount of the basic monthly salary of the employees is negotiated in
an individual employment contract between the parties to the labor relations.
The annual assessment of the individual work performance of the Company staff determines the specific
needs of each employee to improve his/her professional and personal competence, improve working
relationships and create conditions for fair and transparent procedures for professional and career
development.

Occupational Health and Safety
To achieve efficiency of activity on provision of occupational health and safety, the Company carries out
active social policy on safety and health, where the Occupational Safety and Health Management System
plays the leading role. Occupational health and safety policy is aligned with the entity’s business policy
and is directed towards achieving economic growth, creating quality jobs, modernizing social protection
and promoting sustainable development, reconsidering working conditions and work organization, as
focusing on promoting “well-being at work”.
The company conducts an active social policy regarding working conditions, which is aimed at:
• a comprehensive approach for promoting “well-being at work”;
• improving the culture of worker protection and further development of the prevention system
through: training and social dialogue;
• implementing of comprehensive and effective control over compliance with labour law;
• ensuring the necessary quality of training in the field of health and safety at work;
• expanding the infrastructure of counselling and support services for the employer and improving
the quality of this activity;
• developing the social security systems and the insurance activity and their effective inclusion in
the work for ensuring and maintaining healthy and safe working conditions.
For the implementation of the strategic objectives of health and safety at work, announced in the
Statement of the managers, general and specific measurable targets for the individual structural units were
defined in 2021. The achievement of these objectives is ensured by the approval of the Health and Safety
at Work Program for 2021. The program includes 64 events in total for the power plant:
• improving working conditions, normalizing the working environment parameters and improving
occupational hygiene in the workplace;
• securing workplaces by applying effective means of collective protection;
• improving sanitary-household service.
Consultation and participation of workers and workers' representatives in the activities for the provision
of health protection is provided through the functioning of the Working Conditions Committee (WCC),
whose activities include:
1. every quarter it discusses the overall health and safety activity of employees and proposes
measures to improve it;
2. It discusses the results of the Occupational Risk Assessment and Health Work Analyses, the
Occupational Health Service reports, issues relating to the provision and protection of the health and
safety of workers and employees;
3. It carries out checks on compliance with the OSH requirements;
4. It observes the state of work traumatism and professional morbidity;
5. It participates in the development of programs for informing and training the workers on the
problems of the OSH.
Workers and employees servicing the machinery and equipment have the necessary qualifications and
competence. The training and improving the qualification of the personnel on safety and health at work is
carried out annually. Workers are informed about the risks, about PPE, as well as about the ways to use,
store and check their serviceability. Written instructions are applied upon use of work equipment that
poses a safety and health risk, indicating the conditions of use of the equipment concerned and the safety
and health requirements at work, as well as the measures taken for the removal, reducing or overcoming
them.
Serving of the employees from outside Occupational Health Service is ensured, in accordance with the
requirements of Article 25, paragraph 5 of the Occupational Health and Safety Act and Ordinance No. 3
for Occupational Health Services.
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Physiological regimes of work and rest were developed and implemented in accordance with Ordinance
No. 15 of 1999.
Good sanitary and living conditions for the employees of the company are provided.
An organization has been established for the timely and complete carrying out of the preliminary medical
examinations of the newly-employed persons under the terms and conditions of Ordinance No.3 dated
1987 on the compulsory preliminary and periodic medical examinations of workers.
Preventive medical examinations of the electrical personnel, drivers transporting people and persons
working with hazardous chemicals were carried out.
There is sufficient information on the health status of employees.
Human Rights Issues
In 2016 the Company introduced Code of Ethics, which sets moral and ethical norms and rules of
conduct for the employees of TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD , unifying the culture of communication between
managers, workers, employees, trade unions and business partners.
The Code of Ethics aims to contribute to the creation of common standards of conduct, the pursuit of
which leads to the promotion of the good reputation of the company, its competitiveness and efficiency.
The Code of Ethics is a document describing moral and ethical norms and rules that complement existing
internal documents and assist the personal judgment and responsibility of the employees upon
performance of their official duties. The aim of TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD is to transform these principles
into a part of the strategy, culture and everyday activities of the company. The main values on which the
Code of Ethics is based are: safety, above all, compliance with all the requirements of the applicable
legislation in the field of environment and environment protection, competence, professionalism,
teamwork, loyalty, equality, respect for personality and human dignity; etc.
The Code of Ethics is published in the internal information system of TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD.
On the grounds of the concluded Collective Labour Agreement, the Employer organizes a reception day
with the participation of the Trade Unions, a party of the CLA, for hearing complaints, applications and
signals by employees and workers.
The Integrated Management System (IMS) of TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD has a special procedure PR 5.5-1123 “Internal Exchange of Information”, which specifies the ways of correspondence between the
different structures of the Company. There is also an additional opportunity to communicate with the
senior management of the power plant on a monthly reception day. This provides opportunity for all
employees to receive information about the company's activities, to make suggestions and to express
opinions.
Issues related to the fight against corruption and bribery
By Order No. E-RD-16-536/30 October 2015 of the Minister of Energy the Anticorruption Plan in the
Energy Sector was approved.
As part of Bulgarian Energy Holding EAD, the Company applies the Anticorruption Plan in the Energy
Sector. This plan further develops and specifies the priority areas for prevention and counteraction of
corruption in the energy sector, ensuring transparent management and accountability in the activity of the
Ministry of Energy and in the companies with more than 50% state participation in the capital.
To implement the measures of the plan in 2016 TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD adopted Internal Rules for
registration and handling of alerts on corruption and/or conflict of interests and for the protection of the
persons submitting such signals, which regulate the terms and conditions of operation at TPP Maritsa
East 2 EAD. Upon receipt, registration and verification of the signals for corruption, corruption events
and/or conflict of interest a sector “Prevention and Counteraction to Corruption” was created, whose
main activity is the implementation of anti-corruption procedures and verification, monitoring and
reporting mechanisms to ensure transparent management and reporting, prevention of corrupt practices
and raising public confidence in the professionalism and morality of the Company.
Signals of corruption, corruption events and/or conflict of interest are received through special mailboxes
for the submission of alerts containing allegations of corruption, corruption events and/or conflict of
interest against employees of TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD located in front of the Main Entrance, the West
entrance of the Administration Building and the entrance of the administrative building of the Repair
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Directorate, 24-hour telephone 042/662939 and electronically via the company's website (www.tpp2.com)
through the button “Send a signal for corruption”.
The signals received are examined on the principle of confidentiality of the information and protection of
the anonymity of the persons who have filed such signals. An administrative instruction was developed to
the Internal Rules for registering and handling alerts on corruption and/or conflicts of interest and this
order is applied to protect the people who have filed such alerts.
No signals of corruption and/or conflicts of interest have been received so far in the Company and no
cases of corruption/corrupt practices have been identified.

16. Other information at the Company’s discretion
At the end of 2019, news from China about COVID-19 (Coronavirus) came for the first time. A limited
number of cases of unknown virus was then reported to the World Health Organization. During the first few
months of 2020 the virus spread globally and its negative effects gained momentum.
On 11 March 2020, after cases of new coronavirus strain were reported in 114 countries, the World Health
Organization (WHO) announced the COVID-19 epidemic for a pandemic.
On 13 March 2020, at the request of the government, the National Assembly declared a state of emergency in
Bulgaria because of the coronavirus, which was later replaced by an epidemic emergency, which continues to
this day. The Company’s Management considers this event will not create serious uncertainty about the
Company's ability to continue in business.
The Management closely monitors the situation and looks for ways to reduce its impact on the Company.
The international situation related to the conflict between Russia and Ukraine has led to changes in the
economic aspect and market conditions associated with rising inflation, a dynamic rise of prices of basic raw
materials and supplies.
The Management will continue to monitor the potential impact and take all possible steps to mitigate potential
effects.

17.
Declaration for corporate governance of TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD as per he requirements
of the provisions of art. 61, para 3, item 5 of Regulations for Implementation of the Public
Enterprises Act and art. 100n, para. 7, item 1 and para 8 of Public Offering of Securities Act
1. Information whether TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD adheres, as appropriate, to the Corporate
Governance Code approved by the Deputy Chairman or another Corporate Governance Code
Not applicable.
2. Information on corporate governance practices applied by TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD in
addition to the National Code of Corporate Governance
Not applicable.
3. Explanation by TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD which parts of the National Code of Corporate
Governance are not observed and what are the grounds for this
Not applicable.
4. Description of the main characteristics of the internal control system and risk management
system applied by TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD in the course of preparation of the financial
statements
The Company developed and approved internal rules and procedures with regard to internal control and
reporting systems.
The internal control system of the Company is implemented by the “Administrative, Tax and Financial
Control Directorate” (ATFCD). Its main feature is that it incorporates overall policies and procedures (internal
controls) adopted by the Company management to achieve its objectives and ensures, as far as practicable,
order and efficiency upon the implementation of the Company activity, including adherence to government
policy, protection of enterprise assets, detection and prevention of fraud and mistakes, completeness and
accuracy of accounting records and timely preparation of reliable financial information. The internal control
system covers not only areas directly related to the functions of the accounting system but also much wider

TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD
Annual Separate Management Report
for 2021
problems. For the implementation of this activity, the following units have been set up and operate in
ATFCD:

Unit “Document Control”
It performs current, preliminary control of the legality and expediency of documents and activities related
to the financial activity of the Company. The control is carried out by checking all relevant documents
prior to the assumption of the obligation and the forthcoming incurring of costs, in particular: memos,
contracts, reports, current orders, letters of assignment.
Unit “Interdepartmental financial control”
It performs preliminary control in the Company in accordance with written policies and procedures prior
to the costs and revenues. It performs control prior to making the expenditures or the income for TPP 2.
It prepares the necessary documents after the preliminary control as per the Internal Rules for
Implementation of the Preliminary Control, the Double Signature System and the Internal Control Rules
for the SPCS. It has the right to refuse expressing opinion when the necessary information has not been
provided.
Unit “Internal audit”
By Protocol No.54/28 November 2017 of the Board of Directors regarding the modification of the
organizational structure of the Company, the Internal Audit Unit was removed from the ATFC
Directorate and Internal Audit Department directly subordinate to the Executive Director/Board of
Directors was set up.
The Internal Audit activity for 2021 is conducted in accordance with the requirements of the Public
Sector Internal Audit Act, International Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing, the
Code of Ethics of Internal Auditors, the Internal Audit Manual and the Statute of the Unit “Internal
Audit” (UIA).
The completed audit commitments of the UIA are in accordance with the approved and adopted by the
Board of Directors of TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD Strategic Plan for the period 2019-2021 and Annual Plan
for 2021, adopted by the decision under it. 9.1 of Protocol No. 43/22.12.2020.
5. Information under art. 10, para 1, letters (c), (d), (f), (h) and (i) of Directive 2004/25/EC of the
European Parliament and of the Council of 21 April 2004 on takeover bids
5.1. Information under art. 10, para 1, letter (c) of Directive 2004/25/EC of the European
Parliament and of the Council of 21 April 2004 on takeover bids - significant direct and indirect
shareholdings (including indirect shareholdings through pyramid structures and crossshareholdings) within the meaning of Article 85 of Directive 2001/34/EC
As at 31.12.2021 the shareholders holding 5 per cent or more of the capital and the voting rights in the
General Meeting of Shareholders are given by their names:
Name of shareholder

Number of
shares held

Percentage of capital

Bulgarian Energy Holding EAD, Sofia

68 763 161

100,00 %

The rights of the sole shareholder of TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD are exercised by Bulgarian Energy
Holding EAD, UIC 831373560. The authorized capital of the company as at 31.12.2021 is BGN 687 631
610.00 (six hundred and eighty-seven million six hundred and thirty-one thousand six hundred and ten
BGN), distributed in 68 763 161 (sixty-eight million and seven hundred sixty-three thousand and one
hundred and sixty-one) shares with par value of BGN 10 (ten) each.
Related parties
TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD is a part of economically related group under the control of BEH EAD, which
includes the following subsidiaries: Natsionalna Elektricheska Kompania EAD, NPP Kozloduy EAD,
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Mini Maritsa - Iztok EAD, Bulgargaz EAD, Bulgartel EAD, Bulgartransgaz EAD, Electricity System Operator
EAD, NPP Kozloduy – NB EAD, HPP Kozloduy EAD, Interpriborservice OOD, Bulgartel-Skopje DOOEL,
Balkan Gas Hub EAD. All companies, brought together in the holding structure, preserve their operational
independence, by all of them are owned by and directly subordinated to the corporate centre BEH EAD.

The following are also disclosed as related parties:
Associated and joint ventures for the BEH Group:
ICGB AD, South Stream Bulgaria AD, ContourGlobal Maritsa East 3 AD, ContourGlobal Operations
Bulgaria AD, Transbalkan Electric Power Trading S.A. - NECO S.A., HEC Gorna Arda AD, Insurance
Joint Stock Company Energy AD, Pension Insurance Company Allianz Bulgaria AD.
Key management of the company:
Boncho Ivanov Bonev - Chairman of the BoD
Zhivko Dimitrov Dinchev – Member of the BoD and Executive Director
Boyan Ivanov Boev – Member of the BoD
Ruslan Tanev Germanov – Member of the BoD
Milan Angelov Milanov – Member of the BoD
Key management of the parent company:
Veselina Lachezarova Kanatova - Buchkova – Chairman of the BoD
Ivan Todorov Andreev – Member of the BoD and Executive Director
Stelian Penchev Koev – Member of the BoD
Diyan Stanimirov Dimitrov – Member of the BoD
Zheko Mihaylov Zhekov – Member of the BoD
Plamen Dilkov Dilkov – Member of the BoD
Anton Georgiev Simeonov – Member of the BoD
5.2. Information under art. 10, para 1, letter (d) of Directive 2004/25/EC of the European
Parliament and of the Council of 21 April 2004 on takeover bids - the holders of any securities
with special control rights and a description of those rights
TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD has no shareholders with special control rights.
5.3. Information under art. 10, para 1, letter (f) of Directive 2004/25/EC of the European
Parliament and of the Council of 21 April 2004 on takeover bids - any restrictions on voting
rights, such as limitations of the voting rights of holders of a given percentage or number of
votes, deadlines for exercising voting rights, or systems whereby, with the company’s
cooperation, the financial rights attaching to securities are separated from the holding of
securities
There are no restrictions on the voting rights of the shareholders of TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD.
5.4. Information under art. 10, para 1, letter (h) of Directive 2004/25/EC of the European
Parliament and of the Council of 21 April 2004 on takeover bids - the rules governing the
appointment and replacement of board members and the amendment of the articles of
association
Pursuant to the provisions of the Articles of Association of the company, the General Meeting of Shareholders
determines the number, elects and dismisses the members of the Board of Directors and determines the
remuneration for their work in it.
The election and dismissal of members of the Board of Directors of TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD is carried out in
accordance with Chapter Five of the Regulations for the Implementation of the Public Enterprises Act
(Requirements to the bodies of management and control of public enterprises and nomination of candidates).
5.5. Information under art. 10, para 1, letter (i) of Directive 2004/25/EC of the European
Parliament and of the Council of 21 April 2004 on takeover bids - the powers of board members,
and in particular the power to issue or buy back shares
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The Articles of Association of the company specify all the powers of the Board of Directors.
Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company, the Board of Directors has no right to make
decisions for increasing the capital of the Company. This is done by decision of the General Meeting of
Shareholders.
6. The staff and functioning of the administrative, management and supervisory bodies and their
committees
Not applicable.
7. A description of the diversity policy applied to the issuer's administrative, management and
supervisory bodies in relation to aspects such as age, gender or education and professional
experience, the objectives of this diversity policy, how it is implemented and the results during
the reported period; where no such policy is applied, the declaration shall explain the reasons
Not applicable.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the sole shareholder of
TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD
6265 Kovachevo village
Stara Zagora district

Report on the Audit of the Separate Financial Statements
Opinion
We have audited the separate financial statements of TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD (the Company), which comprise
the separate statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021 and the separate statement of profit or loss,
the separate statement of comprehensive income, the separate statement of changes in equity and the separate
statement of cash flows for the period then ended, and notes to the separate financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.
In our opinion, the accompanying separate financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position
of the Company as at 31 December 2021 and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the period then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as adopted by the EU and
Bulgarian legislation.
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements”
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (including International Independent Standards) issued by the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants (IESBA Code), together with the ethical requirements of Bulgarian Independent
Financial Audit Act, and we have fulfilled our other responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified
opinion.
Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern
As disclosed in Note 2 “Basis of preparation of the separate financial statements”, the Company reports net loss
of BGN 137 426 thousand for 2021, and accumulated loss of BGN 1 286 796 thousand as of 31 December 2021.
Company’s current liabilities exceed its current assets by BGN 99 650 thousand. The equity of the Company is
below the amount of its registered capital which is in violation of Art. 252 of the Commercial Code. The company
should take measures to bring its capital in line with the requirements of national legislation. As at 31 December
2021 the Company has liabilities to related parties of BGN 1 182 871 thousand, of which to the sole owner BEH
EAD BGN 1 069 265 thousand. These circumstances indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern without the sole owner's financial
support and other sources of funding. The Company is expected to be directly affected by the new European
Union requirements set out in the Paris Agreement adopted at the end of 2016, as well as by the processes
leading to increase of clean energy use, increase of competitiveness of renewable energy and last, but not the
least, the upcoming reunification of energy markets. The changes in the European legislation, regarding the
introduction of new requirements to the member states, with a view of achieving zero greenhouse gas emissions
in 2050 represent a serious challenge for the energy sector, respectively for TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD. Our
opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
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Emphasis of matter
We draw attention to Note 41 "Events after the end of the reporting period" to the separate financial statements,
which discloses the non-adjusting event related to the military invasion of the Russian Federation in the Republic
of Ukraine on February 24, 2022 and the general uncertainty result of hostilities. The intentions of the Company's
management are to take all necessary measures to limit potential future negative effects of sanctions against the
Russian Federation, which have an indirect effect on all spheres of economic activity worldwide and in Bulgaria,
but nevertheless the possibility of future negative impact. This, in turn, could lead to a change in the carrying
amounts of the Company's assets, which are determined in the separate financial statements when performing a
number of judgments and assumptions by management and reporting the most reliable information available at
the date of estimates. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the separate financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.
In addition to the issue described in the section "Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern", we identified
the matter described below as a key audit matter to be communicated in our audit report.
Measurement of property, plant and equipment
Note 6 Property, plant and equipment of the separate financial statements
Key audit matter
How this key audit matter was addressed
during the audit
The Company has adopted the revaluation model as an During our audit, our audit procedures
accounting policy for subsequent measurement of the main included, but are not limited to:
classes of property, plant and equipment. It represents the - audit and evaluation of the accounting
fair value at the date of revaluation, less any accumulated policy of the Company, applied during the
depreciation and any subsequent accumulated impairment reporting period regarding the classification,
losses. The frequency of valuations for minor changes in the subsequent evaluation and impairment of
fair value of assets is performed every three years.
property, plant and equipment and analysis
As of December 31, 2021 the fair value of property, plant and of its compliance with applicable IFRS;
equipment is BGN 1,572,123 thousand, which represents - obtaining an understanding of the process
83% of the Company's total assets. The revaluation reserve and procedures for revaluation of the
as of December 31, 2021 is BGN 865,474 thousand, and its Company's assets, including with regard to
increase in 2021 as a result of the fair value assessment is the applied controls;
BGN 213,827 thousand, net of taxes.
- verification of the qualification and
Revaluations are performed by an independent external objectivity of the independent external
appraiser with sufficient frequency so that the carrying appraiser hired by the Company, as well as
amount does not differ materially from the value that would the appropriateness of the approaches,
have been determined if fair values were used at the end of methods and assumptions used to determine
each reporting period. The latest revaluation of the the fair value of assets, in order to establish
Company's assets was performed as of December 31, 2021.
compliance with IFRS 13 "Fair value
The assets subject to revaluation are specific and measurement";
specialized, strictly related to the activities of the Company - testing of input data on which the
and the alternative use of a significant part of them is difficult assessment
of
property,
plant
and
or impossible. Therefore, other uses by market participants equipment is based, against appropriate
are unlikely to maximize the value of assets, and it is supporting documentation, assessment of
therefore accepted that their current use in the business their accuracy and completeness;
maximizes their value. The appraiser used two main obtaining
an
understanding
and
approaches and valuation methods: “Market approach” assessment of the reasonableness of the
through “Market analogues method” for land for which there main results calculated by the independent
is a real market and observable data on prices of recent external appraiser, as well as the key
market transactions for similar properties; and the "Cost assessments and assumptions used in the
approach" through the "Amortized recoverable cost method" evaluation, with the participation of our
for the fair value of buildings, machinery and equipment. internal experts - evaluators;
Valuation measures the value of an asset by determining its - discussions with the independent appraiser
new value at the valuation date, reflecting the cost of its who carried out the evaluation on the overall
acquisition, less its physical wear and tear and the functional approach, the sources of information and the
and economic impairment resulting from its operation. Due to key factors that influenced the evaluation of
the importance of the property, plant and equipment in the the evaluator;
separate statement of financial position of the Company and - reconciling the results of the appraisal
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the use of accounting judgments, we consider this issue to
be a key audit matter.

report with the accounting records of the
Company and the items in the separate
financial statements that are affected by the
appraisal;
- assessment of the completeness and
adequacy of the disclosures in the separate
financial
statements
related
to
the
revaluation of property, plant and equipment.

Other Matter
The annual separate financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2020 were audited by
another auditor who expressed a qualified opinion on those statements on 21 April 2021.
Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon
Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the annual management
report, including the corporate governance statement and the non-financial declaration, prepared in accordance
with Bulgarian Accountancy Act, but does not include the separate financial statements and our auditors’ report
thereon.
Our opinion on the separate financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility
is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or whether our knowledge obtained in the audit may indicate that there is a material
misstatement or otherwise the other information appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Separate Financial
Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the separate financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as adopted by the EU and Bulgarian
legislation, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Separate Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the separate financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs and Bulgarian Independent Financial Audit Act will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these separate financial statements.
As part of our audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
−
identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;
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−
−
−

−

obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Company’s internal control;
evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management;
conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern;
evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the separate financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
We are jointly and severally liable for the performance of our audit and for the audit opinion expressed by us, in
accordance with the requirements of the Independent Financial Audit Act applicable in Bulgaria. In undertaking
and fulfilling the commitment for joint audit, in connection with which we report, we have been considered the
Guidelines for Performing Joint Audit, issued on 13 June 2017 by the Institute of Certified Public Accountants in
Bulgaria and the Commission for Public Oversight of Statutory Auditors in Bulgaria.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
In addition to our responsibilities for reporting under ISAs, described above in section “Information Other than the
Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon”, regarding the annual management report, including the
corporate governance statement and the non-financial declaration, we have performed the additional procedures
contained in the Guidelines of the professional organisation of certified public accountants and registered
auditors in Bulgaria - Institute of Certified Public Accountants (ICPA). The procedures on the existence, form and
contents of the other information have been carried out in order to state whether the other information includes
the elements and disclosures in accordance with Chapter Seven of Bulgarian Accountancy Act and Article 100m,
paragraph (10) in relation to Article 100m, paragraph (8), subparagraphs (3) and (4) of Bulgarian Public Offering
of Securities Act, as well as Article 100m, paragraph 13 in relation to Article 116c, paragraph (1) of Bulgarian
Public Offering of Securities Act.
Statement Pursuant to Article 37, Paragraph (6) of Bulgarian Accountancy Act
Based on the procedures performed, we describe the outcome of our work:
(a) the information in the annual separate management report is consistent with the separate financial
statements for the same reporting period;
(b) the annual separate management report is prepared in accordance with the applicable legal
requirements;
(c) as a result of the acquired knowledge and understanding of the activities of the Company and the
environment in which it operates, we have found no cases of material misrepresentation in the annual
separate management report;
(d) the corporate governance statement for the financial year contains the required information in
accordance with the applicable legal requirements, including Article 100m, paragraph (8) of Bulgarian
Public Offering of Securities Act;
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(e) the non-financial declaration has been prepared and made available in accordance with the
requirements of Bulgarian Accountancy Act.

Reporting Pursuant to Article 59 of Bulgarian Independent Financial Audit Act in relation to Article 10 of
Regulation (ЕС) № 537/2014
In accordance with the requirements of Bulgarian Independent Financial Audit Act and in relation with Article 10
of Regulation (ЕС) № 537/2014, we report additionally the information as follows:
− Grant Thornton OOD and Zaharinova Nexia EOOD as participants in the consortium DZZD AUDIT BEH
were appointed as joint statutory auditors of the separate financial statements of TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD
for the year ended on 31 December 2021 with decision of the sole shareholder, held on 15 December 2020,
for a period of three years.
− The audit of the separate financial statements of the Company for the year ended on 31 December 2021
has been made for first consecutive year.
− In support of our audit opinion, we have provided a description of the most significant assessed risks of
material misstatement, a summary of the auditor’s response and where relevant, key observations arising
with respect to those risks in the section „Key audit matters“ of this report.
− We confirm that our audit opinion is consistent with the additional report to the audit committee, which was
provided in accordance with Article 60 of Bulgarian Independent Financial Audit Act.
− We declare that prohibited non-audit services referred to in Article 64 of Bulgarian Independent Financial
Audit Act were not provided.
− We confirm that we remained independent of the Company in conducting the audit;
− For the period for which we were engaged as statutory auditors, we have not provided any other services to
the Company and its controlled undertakings in addition to the statutory audit.
14 April 2022
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Separate Statement of Financial Position
Assets
Non-current assets
Intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment
Financial assets at fair value
Investments in subsidiaries
Deferred tax assets
Non-current assets
Current assets
Receivables from related parties
Inventories
Greenhouse gas emissions
Trade and other receivables
Loans granted to related parties
Cash and cash equivalents
Current assets
Total assets

Note

31.12.2021
BGN ‘000

31.12.2020
BGN ‘000

5
6
8
7
9

2 497
1 594 929
470
1 597 896

915
1 403 356
437
5 478
18 489
1 428 675

12
10
10
11

175 084
76 909
28 533
3 053
12 654
296 233

47 630
84 319
6 729
1 376
26 690
166 744

1 894 129

1 595 419

13

The notes accompanying these separate financial statements, pages 8 to 83, represent an integral part of
them.
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Separate Statement of Financial Position (continued)
Equity and Liabilities

31.12.2021
BGN ‘000

31.12.2020
BGN ‘000

14.1
14.2

687 632
967 689
(1 286 796)
368 525

687 632
762 373
(1 149 560)
300 445

Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Long-term loans to related parties
Liabilities for retirement and other employee benefits
Financing
Recultivation provision
Deferred tax liabilities
Non-current liabilities

19, 31
16.2
17
15

1 037 463
45 350
19 114
5 488
22 306
1 129 721

567 050
38 169
22 157
5 488
632 864

Current liabilities
Liabilities for retirement and other employee benefits
Trade and other payables
Short-term payables to related parties
Financing
Provision for greenhouse gas emissions
Current liabilities

16.2
18
19, 31
17
15

15 129
182 990
145 408
3 043
49 313
395 883

12 971
55 756
255 695
3 081
334 607
662 110

Total liabilities

1 525 604

1 294 974

Total equity and liabilities

1 894 129

1 595 419

Equity
Share capital
Reserves
Accumulated losses
Total equity

Note

The notes accompanying these separate financial statements, pages 8 to 83, represent an integral part of
them.
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Separate Statement of Profit or Loss for the year, ended on 31
December

Revenues from sales
Other income
Fuel and electricity costs
Cost of other materials
Hired services expenses
Depreciation and amortization and impairment of
non-financial assets
Employee benefits expenses
Greenhouse gas emissions costs
Accrued impairment of financial assets
Other expenses

Note

2021
BGN ‘000

2020
BGN ‘000

20
21

1 331 691
10 039
1 341 730

448 229
10 250
458 479

22.1
22.2
23

(178 009)
(23 473)
(50 343)

(116 637)
(23 834)
(43 278)

5, 6
16.1
24
25
26

(114 422)
(111 323)
(850 341)
(592)
(99 274)
(1 427 777)

(102 946)
(112 780)
(339 677)
(80)
(28 989)
(768 221)

(86 047)

(309 742)

(33 530)
112
(119 465)
(17 961)
(137 426)

(29 994)
137
(339 599)
10 974
(328 625)

Loss from operating activity
Financial costs
Financial income
Loss before tax
Tax income/(expenses)
Loss for the year

27
27
28

The notes accompanying these separate financial statements, pages 8 to 83, represent an integral part of
them.
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Separate Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year,
ended on 31 December
Note

2021
BGN ‘000

2020
BGN ‘000

(137 426)

(328 625)

6
16.2

237 586
(9 280)
34

363
44

9

(22 834)
205 506
68 080

(40)
367
(328 258)

Loss for the year
Other comprehensive income:
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
Revaluation of non-financial assets
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans liabilities
Net change in the fair value of equity instruments
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or
loss
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax
Total comprehensive profit/ (loss) for the year

The notes accompanying these separate financial statements, pages 8 to 83, represent an integral part of
them.
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Separate Statement of Changes in Equity for the year, ended on 31 December
All amounts are in BGN ‘000

Share
capital

Other
reserves

Remeasurement
of defined
benefit plans

Balance as at 1 January 2021
Loss for the year
Other comprehensive income, net of tax
Total comprehensive income for the year
Transfer of revaluation reserve of non-financial
assets to retained earnings

687 632
-

144 654
31
31

(34 118)
(8 352)
(8 352)

651 837
213 827
213 827

(1 149 560)
(137 426)
(137 426)

300 445
(137 426)
205 506
68 080

687 632

144 685

(42 470)

(190)
865 474

190
(1 286 796)

368 525

Balance as at 31 December 2021

Revaluation Accumulated
reserves of nonlosses
financial assets

The notes accompanying these separate financial statements, pages 8 to 83, represent an integral part of them.

Total
equity
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Separate Statement of Changes in Equity for the year, ended on 31 December (continued)
All amounts are in BGN ‘000

Share
capital

Other
reserves

Remeasurement
of defined
benefit plans

Revaluation Accumulated
reserves of nonlosses
financial assets

Balance as at 1 January 2020
Shares emission
Transactions with owners
Loss for the year
Other comprehensive income, net of tax
Total comprehensive loss for the year

89 676
597 956
597 956
-

144 613

(34 445)

652 290

(821 388)

40
40

327
327

-

(328 625)
(328 625)

30 746
597 956
597 956
(328 625)
367
(328 258)

Transfer of revaluation reserve of non-financial
assets to retained earnings
Other changes
Balance as at 31 December 2020

687 632

1
144 654

(34 118)

(453)
651 837

453
(1 149 560)

1
300 445

The notes accompanying these separate financial statements, pages 8 to 83, represent an integral part of them.

Total
equity
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Separate Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on 31
December
Note
Operating activity
Proceeds from customers
Payments to suppliers
Payments to personnel and social security institutions
Proceeds from interest, guarantees and other
Payments for guarantees at maturity and other
Cash flows from exchange rate differences, net
Net cash flow from operating activity
Investment activity
Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Cash proceeds/payments on acquisition of investments in
trade companies
Proceeds from participation in joint ventures
Proceeds from loans granted to related parties
Net cash flow from investment activity
Financing activity
Repayment of loans received from related parties
Interest payments for loans granted to related parties
Payments on deferred trade payables
Interest payments on deferred trade payables
Other payments related to financial activity
Net cash flow from financial activity
Net change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Effect of expected credit loss
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

37
37
37
37

13
13

2021
BGN ‘000

2020
BGN ‘000

1 618 100
(1297 039)
(111 996)
5 884
(17 118)
(2)
197 829

542 743
(269 453)
(113 544)
1 297
(8 614)
(1)
152 428

(85 345)

(96 204)

(1 950)

(499)

95
133
(87 067)

75
(96 628)

(96 373)
(14 110)
(13 422)
(690)
(242)
(124 837)
(14 075)
26 781
( 52)
12 654

(45 000)
(34 898)
(712)
(31)
(80 641)
(24 841)
51 622
(91)
26 690

The notes accompanying these separate financial statements, pages 8 to 83, represent an integral part of
them.
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Notes to the Separate Financial Statements
1.

Scope of Activity

The main activity of TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD includes generation and sale of electricity, provision of
available capacity and additional services to the power transmission system, as well as construction and
maintenance activities in the field of electric and thermal power engineering.
The Company is registered as a sole joint-stock entity with 100% state participation. In pursuance of
Order No.DC-267/26.06.2000 of the Chairman of the State Agency for Electric Power Engineering and
Energy Resources and corporate decision No.2591/30.06.2000 of Stara Zagora District Court, TPP
Maritsa East 2 EAD was established by spin-off from NEK EAD, Sofia, and registered in the
Commercial register. Official seat and registered office of the Company is: Kovachevo village, Radnevo
Municipality, Stara Zagora District – postal code 6265.
The shares of the Company are not listed on the stock exchange. TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD is a sole jointstock company with a single tier management system. The Company is managed by 5 (five)- member
Board of Directors including: Prof. Dr. eng. Boncho Ivanov Bonev – Chairman, eng. Zhivko Dimitrov
Dinchev, Boyan Ivanov Boev, Ruslan Tanev Germanov and Milan Angelov Milanov, – and represented
by the Executive Director, eng. Zhivko Dinchev.
The company is 100% owned by Bulgarian Energy Holding EAD (BEH EAD). Sole shareholder of the
capital of BEH EAD is the Republic of Bulgaria, by the rights of the sole shareholder are exercised by the
Minister of Energy, who, in the capacity of a principal, is empowered to take all decisions within the
competency of the sole shareholder of the capital of BEH EAD.
The staff headcount as at 31 December 2021 is 2,291 employees (31 December 2020: 2,324 employees).
2.

Basis for preparation of the separate financial statements

The separate financial statements of the Company are prepared in accordance with all International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), which comprise of: Financial Reporting Standards and IFRIC
Interpretations (IFRIC) approved by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB), which were
valid on 1 January 2021 and which were endorsed by the Commission of the European Union.
The separate financial statements is presented in Bulgarian levs (BGN), which is the functional currency
of the Company. All amounts are presented in thousand levs (BGN ‘000) (including the comparative
information), unless otherwise stated.
These financial statements are separate. The Company also prepares consolidated financial statements, in
accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), developed and published by the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and endorsed by the European Union (EU), where the
investments in subsidiaries are accounted for and disclosed pursuant to IFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial
Statements”.
The financial statements have been prepared upon observance of the going-concern principle.
In 2021 the Company reported an accounting loss prior to taxes amounting to BGN 119,465 thousand,
net loss for the year of BGN 137,426 thousand, and the accumulated net loss amounted to BGN
1,286,796 thousand. The current liabilities of the Company exceed its current assets by BGN 99,650
thousand.
As at 31 December 2021 the Company has liabilities to related parties amounting to BGN 1,182,871
thousand, of which to the sole owner of the capital - BGN 1,069,265 thousand.
The Company is expected to be directly affected by the new requirements of the European Union set out
in the Paris Agreement adopted at the end of 2016, as well as by the processes related to increasing the
share of clean energy, increasing the competitiveness of renewable energy and last, but not least, the
upcoming reunification of energy markets.
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TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD is a producer of strategic importance for the country. It is a key element of
Bulgarian electric power system, providing both the main load for consumption as well as regulation of
the frequency and exchange capacity in the system. The plant is connected to the three voltage levels of
the electric power system (EPS) of Republic of Bulgaria – 110, 220 and 400 kV, which makes it a major
factor for the sustainable operation of the EPS.
The changes in the European legislation with regard to the introduction of new requirements for the
Member States in order to achieve zero greenhouse gas emissions in 2050 represent a serious challenge for
the energy sector, respectively for TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD.
These circumstances indicate the existence of uncertainty that may cast doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern without the support of sole owner and other sources of funding.
Net positive cash flow from operating activities of BGN 197,829 thousand was realized for the period.
The equity increased by BGN 68,080 thousand. For the second half of 2021, a positive financial result
amounting to BGN 119,320 thousand was formed, with the trend being maintained and even increasing at
the beginning of 2022. At the end of the period there were no overdue debts to counterparties. Liabilities
to Mines Maritsa Iztok EAD and BEH EAD have been rescheduled/renewed into a loan at a lower
interest rate. Net working capital improved by BGN 395,716 thousand compared to the previous year
2020.
By Decision No.I1-L-091/02.07.2020 the Energy and Water Regulatory Commission extended the
deadline of the license issued for electric power generation by more 20 years as of the date of expiration of
the previous one (24.03.2021).
As at the date of preparation of these separate financial statements the Management has carried out an
assessment of the ability of the Company to continue operating as a going concern on the basis of
available information for the foreseeable future, long-term effect from COVID-19 pandemic, the
military conflict between the Russian Federation and the Republic of Ukraine and the dynamics of the
energy market globally and in Bulgaria. After review of the activity carried out, and also through the
continued support of the sole shareholder, the Board of Directors expects that the Company will have
sufficient financial resources to continue its operation in the near future and will continue applying the
going-concern principle upon preparation of its separate financial statements.
3.

Accounting policy and changes during the period

3.1.

General

For the current financial year the Company has adopted all new and/or revised standards and
interpretations issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and endorsed by the EU
and International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC).
The adoption of these standards and/or interpretations that are applicable for annual reporting periods
beginning earliest on 1 January 2021 did not cause any changes in the accounting policy of Company with
regard to the principles, rules and criteria for their accounting.
3.2. New Standards effective from 1 January 2021
The Company applies the following new standards, amendments and interpretations to IFRSs published
by the International Accounting Standards Board and endorsed by EU, which are appropriate and valid
for the financial statements of the Group for the annual period beginning on 1 January 2021, but do not
exert a significant effect on the financial results or positions of the Company:
-

IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts – deferral of IFRS 9 effective from 1 January 2021, endorsed by EU
IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform – Phase 2
effective from 1 January 2021, endorsed by EU
IFRS 16 Leases: Rent concessions in the context of Covid-19 after 30 June 2021, effective from 1
April 2021, endorsed by EU.
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3.3. Standards, amendments and interpretations, which have not yet entered into force and are
not applied as of an earlier date by the Company
As at the date of approval of these financial statements, new standards, amendments and interpretations
to existing standards were published, but not effective yet or not endorsed by the EC for the financial year
beginning on 1 January 2021 and that had not been accepted for earlier application by the company. They
are not expected to exert a substantial effect on the financial statements of the Company. The
Management expects all standards and amendments be adopted in the accounting policy of the company
in the first period beginning after the date of their entering into force. Below is a list of changes to the
standards:
4.
4.1.

Changes made to IFRS 3 Business combinations, IAS 16 Property, plant and equipment, IAS 37
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets effective from 1 January 2022, endorsed
by EU
Annual improvements 2018-2020 effective from 1 January 2022, endorsed by EU
Changes made to IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts effective from 1 January 2013, endorsed by EU
Changes made to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements: Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current, effective from 1 January 2023, not yet endorsed by EU
Changes made to IAS 1 Presentation of financial statements, IFRS Practice Statement 2:
Disclosure of Accounting Policies, effective from 1 January 2023, not yet endorsed by EU
Changes made to IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors:
Definition of Accounting Estimates, effective from 1 January 2023, not yet endorsed by EU
Changes made to IAS 12 Income Taxes: Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising
from a Single Transaction, effective from 1 January 2023, not yet endorsed by EU
Changes made to IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts: Initial application of IFRS 17 and IFRS 9 –
Comparative information, effective from 1 January 2023, not yet endorsed by EU
Changes made to IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts, effective from 1 January 2016, not yet
endorsed by EU.
Accounting policy
General

The most significant accounting policies applied upon preparation of these separate financial statements
are summarized below.
The separate financial statements have been prepared upon observance of the principles for evaluating all
types of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, according to IFRS. The bases for assessment are fully
described below in the accounting policies to the separate financial statements.
It shall be noted that upon the preparation of the presented separate financial statements certain
accounting estimates and assumptions have been used. Although they are based on information submitted
to the management as at the date of preparation of the separate financial statements, some of the actual
results could differ from the estimates and assumptions made.
4.2.

Presentation of the separate financial statements

The separate financial statements are presented in accordance with IAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements (revised 2016). The Company agreed to present the profit or loss statement and the other
comprehensive income in two separate statements: profit or loss statement and comprehensive income
statement.
In the separate statement of financial position two comparative periods are presented when the Company:
a) applies the accounting policies retrospectively;
b) recalculates positions in the financial statements retrospectively; or
c) reclassifies positions in the financial statements,
when this has a substantial effect on the information in the separate statement of financial position as at
the beginning of the previous period.
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Transactions in foreign currency

The financial statements are presented in Bulgarian levs (BGN), which is the functional and presentation
currency of the Company. Transactions in foreign currency are reported in the functional currency of the
Company at the official exchange rate as at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities,
denominated in foreign currencies, are converted into functional currency at the closing exchange rate of
Bulgarian National Bank on the last business day of the respective month. Profits and losses resulting from the
exchange rate differences arising upon the settlement of these transactions and the revaluation of foreign
currency cash items as at the end of the reporting period are recognized in the profit or loss.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities assessed at historical cost of acquisition in foreign currency are converted
into the functional currency using the exchange rate at the date of the original transaction (acquisition).

4.4.

Income

A Income from contracts with customers
Recognition and assessment of income from contracts with customers.
Income from contracts with customers is recognized when the control over the products and/or services
promised in the contract is transferred to the customer in an amount that reflects the remuneration the
Company expects to have in return for those products or services.
Control is transferred to the customer when (or after) it meets the obligation to perform under the terms
of the contract by transferring the product or service promised to the customer. An asset (product or
service) shall be deemed transferred when (or after) the customer gains control over that asset.
Upon initial assessment of its contracts with customers the Company carries out an estimate whether two
or more contracts shall be considered in their combination and reported as one and whether the products
and/or services promised in each separate and/or combined contract have to be reported for one and/or
more obligations to perform.
Any promise of transferring products and/or services that are identifiable (by themselves and within the
context of the contract) is reported as one obligation to perform.
Company recognizes income for each individual obligation to perform at the level of an individual
contract with a customer as the type, duration and terms and conditions of each particular contract are
analyzed. For contracts of similar characteristics, income is recognized on a portfolio basis only if their
grouping in a portfolio would not have a materially different effect on the financial statements.
Contracts with customers typically include one single obligation to perform.

Assessment
Revenue is measured on the basis of the transaction price specified for each contract.
Upon determining the transaction price, the Company takes into account the terms and conditions of the
contract and its usual business practices.
Transaction price is the amount of the remuneration the Company expects to be entitled to in exchange
for the transfer of products or services promised to the customer except for the amounts collected on
behalf of third parties (for example value added tax). The remuneration promised in the contract with the
customer may include fixed amounts, variable amounts, or both.
When (or after) an obligation to perform is met, the Company recognizes as income the transaction price
(which excludes estimates of the variable remuneration containing limitations) that is attributable to that
obligation to perform.
Company examines whether there are any other promises in the contract that represent separate
obligations to perform, for which part of the transaction price have to be allocated.
Upon pricing of the transaction, the variable remuneration impact, the existence of significant financial
components, non-monetary remuneration and remuneration due to the customer (if any) are taken into
account.
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Obligations to perform and an approach to recognition of main types of revenue under contracts
with customers
The following table provides information on the nature and the period of time to perform the obligations in
the customer contracts, including significant payment conditions and related income recognition policies:
Income/revenue
Revenue from
sale of electricity

Approach to recognition of income/revenue
Electricity supplies are carried out year-round in a continuous mode of operation. As the customer
receives and consumes benefits simultaneously, the company transfers control over electricity over time
and therefore meets the obligation to perform and recognize revenue over time.
Sales revenue is recognized on each transfer of control over electricity when it is supplied to the buyer
and there are no outstanding obligations to perform that could affect the acceptance of electricity on
behalf of the buyer. Electricity is deemed to be supplied to the customer as soon as schedules are
recorded by the seller and the buyer in the schedule notification system administered by the Electricity
System Operator (ESO) EAD, after agreement of the same between the parties. TPP Maritsa East 2
EAD and the electricity buyer prepare and submit daily hourly schedules for their sales/purchases of
electricity, by the schedules start from 00:00h and end at 24:00h on the relevant day of supply. Schedules
for supply on weekends and holidays and also on the first business day shall be submitted simultaneously
on the last business day preceding them. The daily hourly schedule for supply of electricity, which had
been agreed between the parties is sent by the Seller to ESO EAD in a form approved by ESO EAD on
the day preceding the supply/delivery (D-1) and passes the registration procedure under the Trading
Rules. The schedule of supply becomes binding between the parties after its registration according to the
Trading Rules and becomes the main document that certifies the quantities of electricity sold.
For each performance obligation that is met over time, the Company recognizes revenue over time by
measuring the progress achieved towards the full implementation of the obligation to perform. The
amount of electricity supplied for a certain period of time (under the contract terms and conditions), for
which the control is transferred to the customer, is accepted by the management as an appropriate
measure to perform obligation and report the progress and therefore revenue is recognized for the
corresponding quantity supplied for the period concerned.
There is no financing component in the sales of electricity as the payment on sales for contracts with
period of duration up to 31 days (one month) is made in advance and latest until the 20th day of the
month following the month of sales for contracts with duration more than 31 days (one month). Upon
electricity supply a receivable is recognized as this is the moment when the right to remuneration
becomes unconditional and only the expiration of time is required before the payment becomes due.
Revenue is invoiced under the terms of the contract concluded.

Revenue from
electricity
balancing

Supplies in electricity balancing are made year-round upon a continuous mode of operation. They are
result of transactions to compensate for the difference between the quantities of electricity generated and
the quantities under the supply/delivery schedules. As the customer receives and consumes the benefits
simultaneously, the Company transfers the control over electricity from balancing over time and
therefore meets the obligation to perform and recognizes revenue over time.
Sales revenue is recognized on each transfer of control over electricity when it is supplied to the buyer
and there are no outstanding obligations that could affect the acceptance of electricity by the buyer.
Electricity is considered to be supplied to the customer on the grounds of the settlement statements
prepared by the Electricity System Operator EAD, based on the validated data received from the
distribution/transmission company under Art. 38 of the Rules for measurement of electricity quantities.
Electricity System Operator EAD prepares daily settlement statements on weekly basis and summarized
statements of settlement.
For each obligation to perform, met over time, Company recognizes income over time by measuring the
progress achieved towards the full implementation of this obligation. The amount of electricity supplied
for balancing over a specified period of time (under the contractual terms), for which control is
transferred to the customer, is accepted by the management as an appropriate measure to perform and
report the progress and therefore, revenue is recognized for the corresponding quantity supplied for the
relevant period.
There is no financing component upon electricity sales as the payment on sales is made within a period
of up to 20 days deferred payment.
Upon electricity supply a receivable is recognized as this is the moment when the right to remuneration
becomes unconditional and only expiration of time is required before the payment becomes due.
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Approach to recognition of income/revenue
Revenue is invoiced according to the daily and summarized statements of settlement, with a tax event
date the last day of the calendar month.

Revenue from
sales of available
capacity

Revenue of the company from provision of units in cold reserve is determined as ESO EAD purchases
the actual net availability [MWh] of the actual net active capacity [MW] of the contracted units, which are
in cold reserve status during each period of availability, which is defined when the agreed and provided
net maximum active capacity is decreased by:
1. unauthorized reductions in the capacity agreed, registered after activation of a unit from cold reserve;
2. unsubmitted capacity due to delayed connection or delayed loading of the activated unit from cold
reserve, if TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD fails to replace the relevant unit with another in due time;
3. the percentage of reduction in available stocks of fuels at the manufacturer's site in relation to the
agreed quantities;
4. unsubmitted capacity as a result of authorised and/or forced outages;
5. unsubmitted availability for Cold reserve, registered upon failed activation of the cold reserve.
Upon activation of a unit from cold reserve status ESO EAD buys through the balancing market the
active capacity of this unit at one-component price.
By the latest amendments to Electricity Trading Rules as of 05.05.2020, a centralized market of ancillary
services was integrated through tenders organized by ESO EAD. In fact, the delivery of auxiliary services
after tenders for primary regulation reserve, automatic reserve for secondary regulation and manual
reserve for secondary regulation started in January 2021. With the amendments to the Electricity Trading
Rules from July 2020, the prices of the regulatory energy are determined by ESO, by in the case of
upward regulation the energy is paid at the highest price, and in case of downward regulation – at the
lowest price of the registered proposals for balancing for each period. In case of non-participation of the
power plant in the organized tenders and inability of ESO to provide the necessary range of available
reserve for regulation, the auction price of the primary regulation reserve and of the secondary regulation
reserve is assumed equal to “zero” and the balancing market participant does not receive payment for the
provided service, according to Art. 129 para 4 and art. 131 para 2 of Electricity Trading Rules.
Revenue from provision of cold reserve units is recognized in the accounting period in which those units
are provided. Company transfers the control over time and therefore meets the performance obligation
and recognizes income over time. As at the end of the reporting period income is recognized based on
the actual net availability [MWh] of the actual net active capacity (MW) of the contracted units that are in
a Cold reserve state.

Revenue from
sales of shortterm assets
Revenue from
services

Revenue from sales of short-term assets is recognized when the control over the sold asset has been
transferred. Supply occurs when assets have been send to the customer, risks of potential losses have
been passed to the buyer and/or it has accepted the assets in accordance with the contract for sale.
Revenue from services is recognized in the accounting period, when the services are provided. Company
transfers control over services over time and therefore meet the obligation of performance and recognize
income over time. If, at the end of the reporting period, the service under the contract is not fully
realized, revenue is recognized on the basis of the actual service provided by the end of the reporting
period as a proportion of the total services to be provided as the customer receives and consumes
benefits simultaneously. This is determined on the basis of actual spent or reported time for the executed
work, compared to the total expected time for the service performance.
The customer pays the services provided on the basis of the clauses stipulated in the specific contract. If
the services provided by the Company exceed the payment, an asset is recognized under the contract. If
payments exceed the services provided, a liability under the contract is recognized.

A principal or an agent
When a third party participates in the provision of product or services to a customer the Company
determines whether the nature of its promise is an obligation to perform related to the provision of the
particular products or services (principal) or to arrange for a third party to provide these products or
services (agent).
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The Company is a principal when it controls the product or service promised prior to transferring it to the
customer. However, Company does not necessarily act as a principal if it receives the right of ownership
of an asset only temporarily before this right is transferred to the customer.
Company is an agent if its obligation is to arrange for the provision of products or services by a third
party. When the agent company meets its obligation to perform, it recognizes revenue at the amount of a
fee or commission it expects to be entitled to in exchange for having arranged for the products and
services to be provided by a third party. The fee or the commission of the Company may be the net
amount of remuneration, which the Company retains after paying the other party the remuneration
received in exchange for the products or services to be provided by this party.
Normally, the company is a principal under contracts with customers.
Company is an agent in transactions for reinvoicing of consumables under lease contracts.

Trade receivables and assets under contracts
Receivable is the right of the Company to receive remuneration at a certain amount, which is
unconditional (i.E., before the payment of the remuneration becomes due, it is only necessary a certain
period of time to expire).
The asset under a contract is the right of the company to receive remuneration in return of the products
or services it has transferred to the customer but which is not unconditional (accrual for the receivable).
If, through transfer of product and/or provision of service the company fulfills its obligation before the
customer pays the relevant remuneration and/or before the payment becomes due, an asset under a
contract is recognized for the earned remuneration (which is conditional). The recognized assets under a
contract are reclassified as a trade receivable when the right to remuneration becomes unconditional.

Liabilities under contracts
As a liability under a contract the company presents payments received by the customer and/or the
unconditional right to receive a payment before it has performed its obligations under the contract.
Liabilities under a contract are recognized as income when (or after) it meets the performance obligation.
Assets and liabilities arising from a contract are presented net in the statement of financial position even if
they result from different contractual obligations under the contract performance.
After the initial recognition the trade receivables and assets under the contract are reviewed for
impairment in accordance with IFRS 9 Financial instruments.
Revenue from sales of the Company is presented in Note 20.
B. Other revenue/income
Other income is revenue or income that is recognized by the virtue of other standards and is outside the
scope of IFRS 15.
The following table provides information on the material conditions and related to them policies for
recognition of other income:
Net profit from sale of
property, plant and
equipment
Revenue from leases

Revenue from funding

Profits or losses arising upon disposal of a property, plant and equipment or intangible asset as a
result of a sale are included in the profit or loss when the asset is derecognized. The asset is
derecognized at the time when the control over the asset sold is transferred.
Revenue from leases from operating lease contracts is recognized as an income on a straight-line
basis for the duration of the lease contract, except in the cases when the management of the
company considers that another systematic basis reflects more accurately the time pattern whose use
reduces the benefit of the asset leased.
When the grant (funding) is related to a cost item/position, it is recognized as revenue for the
periods necessary to compare the grant to a systematic basis with the costs, which it is intended to
compensate. When the grant (funding) is related to an asset it is presented as a liability and is
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included in the income over the useful lifetime of the asset related to it.
Revenue from
revaluation of
property, plant and
equipment

Revenue from revaluations is reported as income to the amount of previously accrued costs.

Surplus assets

Revenue from surplus assets is recognized at the moment when surpluses are established.

Fines and penalties

Revenues from fines and penalties are recognized once the right to receive them has been
established under a contract or a legal action.
The penalty ensures the fulfillment of the obligation and serves as compensation for the damages
caused by the non-performance without any need to prove them, upon which the recognition of the
proceeds from penalties occurs or is recognized when there is a legal non-performance of given
contractual terms.
The purpose of a fine is not to sanction the debtor but to motivate it to perform its obligation or
eliminate certain obligations, whereby the recognition of the proceeds from fine occurs when there
is a legal breach of given contractual terms.

Penalty interest

The legal regulation of the penalty interest is contained in the Obligations and Contracts Act.
According to it, upon breach of a pecuniary obligation the debtor shall owe compensation in the
amount of the legal interest from the day of the delay.
The debtor is always in delay when the maturity has expired and it has not yet fulfilled its
counterpart obligation. If the parties have not specified a deadline (maturity), for such is considered
the date of receipt of an invitation by the creditor to perform the counterpart obligation.
For legal interest to accrue, the debtor has to be in delay and the legislator requires also the
counterpart obligation to be a financial one. The penalty interest is a form of the contractual liability
specific for the monetary obligations.
Revenue from penalty interest is recognized when the company’s right to receive the payment is
established. For financial assets with credit impairment the interest revenue is recognized on the
grounds of the net impaired amount of the receivable.

Revenue from writeoff of liabilities

Revenue from write-off of liabilities is recognized upon expiry of the limitation period of the
liability, declaration of the respective counterparty in liquidation or on other grounds.

Revenue from sales of
other assets

Revenue from sales of other assets is recognized when the control over the sold assets is transferred.
Supply occurs when assets are sent to the customer, the risks of potential losses are passed to the
buyer and/or it has accepted the assets in accordance with the sales contract.

Revenue from
sanctions of officials

Revenue from sanctions of officials is recognized when the company’s right to receive the payment
is established.

C. Finance income
Finance income is included in the profit and loss statement when they occur and include interest income
on loans and term deposits, dividend income from associated and jointly controlled entities.
Finance income is presented separately from the financial costs/expenses on the title page of the profit or
loss and other comprehensive income statement.
Interest

Revenue from
exchange rate
differences

Interest revenue is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the carrying amount of a financial
asset, except for financial assets that are subsequently credit-impaired. For the credit-impaired financial
assets the effective interest rate is applied to the carrying amount of the financial asset (after deducting the
accumulated impairment).
Exchange differences arising upon the settlement of monetary items or upon translating monetary items at
rates different from those at which they were translated upon initial recognition during the period or in
previous financial statements shall be recognized as profit or loss for the period when they occur.

TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD
Separate Financial Statements
for the year 2021
Dividends

4.5.

16

Dividend income is recognized when the right of the company to receive the payment is established on the
basis of a resolution taken during a general meeting of the shareholders of the company where an
investment is made.

Operating expenses

Expenses in the Company are recognized at the time of their occurrence and on the basis of the accrual
and comparability concepts.
The Company cannot present any income and expense items as extraordinary ones neither in the separate
statement of profit or loss, nor in the notes.
When the economic benefit is expected to be acquired over several accounting periods, upon which the
relation to the revenues can only be determined in general terms and indirectly, the costs are recognized in
the separate statement of profit or loss on the basis of systematic and rational deferral procedures. The
purpose of such deferral procedures is to have costs recognized for those reporting periods, during which
the economic benefit, associated with those items, will be acquired and exhausted entirely.
An expense is recognized immediately in profit or loss in the event that it will not lead to future income or
another economic benefit, or when it is established that it is more likely this future economic benefit will
not be classified as an asset in the separate statement of financial position.
An expense is also recognized in profit or loss in cases where an obligation is reported without an asset
being acquired (provisions).
Expenses are initially reported by economic elements.
The Company adopted the following general classification for reporting expenses by economic elements:
•
Fuel expenses and electric power – fuel expenses are expenses for lignite coal, fuel oil (heavy oil)
and other liquid fuels; the expenses for electricity include electric power for auxiliaries, purchased
electricity from the open market and balancing market from ESO;
•
Expenses for other materials – expenses for other materials are expenses for spare parts, repair and
maintenance, limestone, reagents, and fixtures and fittings below the materiality threshold, etc.
•
Expenses for external services – expenses for external services are the expenses for repair and
maintenance, insurance policies, disposal of ash, staff transport, water, security, transportation services,
management fees, telephone services, rentals, other external services;
•
Staff costs – staff costs (remunerations) are all payments related to personnel, such as expenses for
salaries, social securities, food, allowances under the Collective bargaining agreement (CBA), expenses for
unused leave, benefits under the Labour Code, expenses for interests under International Accounting
Standard 19, etc.
•
Expenses for depreciation and impairment of non-current assets – expenses for depreciation and
impairment of non-current assets comprise of the accrued depreciation and impairment of depreciable
assets.
•
Greenhouse gas emissions costs – expenses for purchased allowances and expenses for provisions
for shortage of greenhouse gas emissions allowances.
4.6.

Interest expenses and borrowing costs

Interest expenses are reported currently using the effective interest rate method.
Borrowing costs mainly represent interest on the loans of the Company. Borrowing costs directly related
to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily requires a substantial period of
time to prepare for its intended use or for its sale are capitalized as part of its acquisition cost. All other
borrowing costs are reported as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs
include interest and other expenses that the Company incurs upon obtaining borrowed funds.
The other borrowing costs shall be recognized as expense for the period, during which they have incurred,
in the separate statement of profit or loss on line “Financial Costs”.
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Profit or loss from discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Company that is either disposed of or classified as held
for sale, and:
- represents a particular type of principal activity or comprises activities in a particular geographical area;
- is part of a separate concerted plan for sale of a given type of main activity/activities from a particular
geographical area; or
- is a subsidiary acquired for the purpose of a subsequent sale.
The profit or loss from discontinued operations and the components of the profit or loss from previous
periods are presented as a single amount in the statement of profit or loss and in other comprehensive
income.
This amount, which includes the profit or loss after tax from discontinued operations and the profit or
loss after tax resulting from the measurement and derecognition of assets classified as held for sale (see
Note 4.17), is analysed in Note 7.
4.8.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets include program products, software and other intangible assets. They are reported at
acquisition cost, including all paid duties, non-refundable taxes and any direct costs incurred in connection
with preparing the asset for operation, whereby capitalized costs are amortized using the straight-line
method over the estimated useful life of the assets, as it is considered to be limited.
Their subsequent measurement is calculated at acquisition cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. The impairments charged are reported as an expense and recognized in the separate
statement of profit or loss for the relevant period.
Subsequent costs, arising in connection with intangible assets after their initial recognition, are recognized
in the separate statement of profit or loss for the period of their occurrence, unless, due to them, the asset
can generate more than initially planned future economic benefits and where these costs can be reliably
measured and attributed to the asset. If these conditions are met, the costs are added to the value of the
asset.
Amortization is calculated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of the individual
assets, as follows:
Software

2 - 7 years

Amortization costs are included in the separate statement of profit or loss on line “Expenses for
depreciation and impairment of non-financial assets”.
Intangible assets of limited useful life are amortized over their useful lives and are tested for impairment
when there are indications that their value is impaired. The amortization period and the method of
amortization of intangible assets with limited useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each financial
year. Changes in estimated useful life or model of consumption of the future economic benefits from the
intangible asset are reported by changing the amortization period or method and are treated as a change in
accounting estimates. Amortization costs are included in the separate statement of profit or loss on line
“Expenses for depreciation and impairment of non-financial assets”.
The profit or loss from the sale of the intangible assets is determined as the difference between the
proceeds from the sale and the carrying value of the assets, and its net value is included on line
“Profit/(Loss) from sale of non-current assets”.
The chosen materiality threshold for intangible assets of the Company amounts to BGN 500.00.
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Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is initially recognized at acquisition cost, which also includes expenses for
replacement of parts of plant and equipment and borrowing costs under long-term construction contracts,
provided that they meet the criteria for recognition of an asset. Upon making expenses for overhaul of a
plant and/or equipment, they are included in the carrying value of the respective asset as replacement
expenses, provided that they meet the criteria for recognition of an asset. All other costs for repair and
maintenance are recognised in the separate statement of profit or loss for the period, in which they are
incurred.
Their subsequent evaluation after initial recognition applies to an entire class of similar assets, as follows:
No.
1
2
3

4
5
6

7
8
9

Class of property, plant and equipment
Lands
Improvements on lands and terrains
Buildings and constructions
• massive
• non-massive
Plant, machines and equipment
Computer systems
Transport means
• freight vehicles
• cars
• special vehicles
Furniture, fixtures and fittings
Spare parts reported as property, plant and equipment
Other property, plant and equipment

Subsequent evaluation model
Model of revaluation
Model of revaluation
Model of revaluation
Acquisition cost model
Model of revaluation
Acquisition cost model
Model of revaluation
Acquisition cost model
Model of revaluation
Acquisition cost model
Model of revaluation
Acquisition cost model

Property, plant and equipment is subsequently measured at revalued amount, which is equal to the fair
value as at the date of revaluation, less any subsequently accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
Revaluations made are presented in the other comprehensive income and reported in equity (revaluation
reserve), if not preceded by previously accrued costs. Upon the sale or derecognition of revalued asset, the
remaining revaluation reserve is reported under retained earnings.
Revaluations are carried out upon observance of the following frequency of the revaluation:
• when the fair value of assets is subject to only minor changes, revaluation is carried out every
three years;
• when the fair value of property, plant and equipment changes significantly at shorter intervals of
time, their revaluation is carried out at shorter intervals of time so that the carrying value of the asset
does not differ materially from its fair value.
The frequency of subsequent revaluations of property, plant and equipment upon applying the revaluation
model depends on whether the carrying value differs significantly from the fair value of a given revalued
asset at the end of the reporting period.
In this regard, upon performing the annual inventory taking at the end of the reporting period (the end of
the financial year) the Company reviews its property, plant and equipment for indications as to whether
their carrying value differs significantly from their fair value.
Significant divergence is considered to be a divergence of the asset’s carrying value from its fair value by
more than 5% as at the date of preparation of the separate financial statements. The divergence is
significant also if it is below 5%, but the difference between the carrying value and the fair value as a
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cumulative value of property, plant and equipment is significant for the purposes of the preparation of the
separate financial statements.
Subsequent expenses relating to a specific asset of property, plant and equipment are added to the carrying
amount of the asset, when it is probable that the Company will have economic benefits in excess of the
initially measured efficiency of the existing asset. All other subsequent expenditures are recognized as an
expense for the period, when they were incurred.
The residual value and the useful life of property, plant and equipment is measured by the Management as
at each reporting date.
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful life of individual groups of assets, as follows:
Buildings
Plant, machines and equipment
Means of transport
Other fixed depreciable assets

10-25 years
2-25 years
4-15 years
2-7 years

Property, plant or equipment is derecognised when sold or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or upon disposal of it. Profits or losses arising from derecognition of the asset
(representing the difference between the net proceeds from sale, if any, and the carrying value of the asset)
are included in the separate statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognized under “Other
income”.
The chosen materiality threshold for property, plant and equipment of the Company amounts to BGN
500.00.
At the end of each financial year revision is carried out of residual values, useful lives and applied
depreciation methods of assets, and if expectations differ from previous estimates, the latter are changed
in future periods.
4.10.

Reporting the lease contracts

Upon signing a new contract the Company shall consider whether the contract is or contains lease
attributes. A contract represents a lease or contains lease attributes, if, by virtue of that contract, the right
of disposal over a given asset is transfered against payment for a certain period of time.
As a part of the identification process if a certain contract represents a lease or its attributes, the Company
performs analysis as per specific criteria.
For a contract that represents a lease or contains lease attributes the Company shall identify each lease
component separately from the non-lease components of the contract.
The Company determines the validity period of a lease contract as irrevocable period of the lease, together
with:
•
the periods, in relation to which there is an option to extend the lease contact, if it is sure enough
that the lessee will exercise this option; and
•
periods, in relation to which there is an option to terminate the lease contact, if it is sure enough
that the lessee will exercise this option.
The Company benefits from the exception upon representing and recognition of the lease contracts,
where it is a lessee in relation to short-term lease contracts (valid for less than a year); or lease contracts
of low-value assets (below the threshold of recognition of non-current assets from the group of plant,
property and equipment or intangible assets). The Company recognizes the payments made under
operating lease as an expense on a straight-line basis for the period of the lease contract.
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Investments in subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all enterprises, which are under the control of the Company. There is control, when the
Company is exposed to, or has rights on, the variable return from its participation in the investee and has
the opportunity to exercise influence on this return through its powers over the investee. In the separate
financial statements of the Company investments in subsidiaries are reported at cost.
The Company recognizes a dividend from a subsidiary in profit or loss in its separate financial statements,
when its right to receive the dividend is established.
4.12. Testing for impairment of investments in subsidiaries, intangible assets, and property,
plant and equipment
As at each reporting date the Company decides whether there are indications that an asset is impaired. If
such indications exist or when an annual test for impairment of an asset is required, the Company
determines the recoverable value of that asset. The recoverable amount of the asset is the higher of fair
value less the selling costs for the asset or the item generating cash flows (IGCF) and its value in use. The
recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the use of that asset generates cash flows
that are substantially independent of cash flows generated by other assets or group of assets. When the
carrying value of an asset or IGCF is greater than its recoverable amount, it is considered impaired and its
carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount.
Upon determining an asset’s value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. Fair value less selling costs is determined using an appropriate valuation
model. The calculations are confirmed by using other valuation models or other available sources of
information on the fair value of an asset or item generating cash flows.
Impairment losses are recognized as expenses in the separate statement of profit or loss.
4.13.

Financial instruments

4.13.1. Financial assets
Initial recognition and classification
The Company initially recognizes a financial asset at the moment, when it becomes a party under a
contractual agreement, and it classifies the asset as per the entity’s business model for management of
financial assets and the characteristics of the contracted cash flows.
The Company classifies its financial assets according to their subsequent evaluation in three categories:
“financial assets measured at amortized cost”, “financial assets measured at fair value in other
comprehensive income”, or “financial assets measured at fair value prior to the profit or loss”, where
appropriate, according to the contractual conditions under the instruments and business models
established in the Company, in conformity with IFRS 9.
The company’s business model for management of financial assets relates to its manner of managing them
so to generate cash flows. The business model determines if the cash flows will be a result of collecting
the contractual cash flows, selling these financial assets or both.
The Management of the Company has estimated that the financial assets representing cash in banks, trade
receivables, other receivables, in-court and judged receivables and receivables from related parties are kept
by the Company, in order to receive the contractual cash flows and they are expected to result in cash
flows representing solely payments of principal and interest (an applied business model). These financial
assets are classified and subsequently evaluated at amortized cost.
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Initial evaluation
Initially all financial assets, excluding the trade receivables, are measured at their fair value plus direct
transaction costs in case that they are not reported at fair value in the profit or loss, when they are initially
recognized net of the expenses for the deal.
The trade receivables, which do not contain an essential component of financing and for which the
Company applies the practically expedient measure of IFRS 15 in this respect, are initially evaluated
according to the relevant value of the deal under IFRS 15. (Note 4.4. Revenue).
Subsequent evaluation and submission
For the purposes of subsequent evaluation and submission the financial assets are classified in one of the
following categories: “financial assets measured at amortized cost“ (debt instruments), “financial assets
measured at fair value in other comprehensive income with reclassification of the accrued profit and loss”
(debt instruments), “financial assets determined by fair value in other comprehensive income without
reclassification of the accrued profit and loss upon write-off” (equity instruments), or “financial assets
measured at fair value in the profit or loss” (debt and equity instruments).
Financial assets at amortized cost (debt instruments)
This category includes cash in banks, trade receivables, other receivables, in-court and judged receivables
and receivables from related parties. This category of financial assets is the most essential for the
Company.
The Company evaluates and measures the financial assets at amortized cost, if both of the following
conditions are met:
• The financial asset is kept within the business model, in order to keep the financial assets, so to
collect contractual cash flows;
• The contracted terms of the financial asset lead to certain dates of the cash flows, which are solely
payments of principals or interests on the unpaid principal.
Subsequent evaluation is made by the method of “effective interest”“, through which the income from
interest is calculated by the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying value of the instruments.
For purchased or created assets with iniatial credit impairment and such with subsequently recognized
credit impairment, the effective interest rate corrected for credit losses and the effective interest rate, but
at the amortized cost of the asset, are relevantly applied.
The financial assets in this category are subject to review for impairment as at the date of each financial
statements of the Company, by the changes are reported in the profit or loss.
Gains and losses are recognized in the profit or loss when the asset is written off, changed or impaired.
Financial assets measured at fair value in other comprehensive income (equity instruments)
Upon initial recognition the Company classifies the investments in equity instruments in this category, when
they correspond to the term of equity according to IAS 32 “Financial Instruments. Presentation” and are not
kept for trading.
The subsequent evaluation of this category of instruments is made at fair value, by the changes are recognized
in other comprehensive income. The fair values are defined on the basis of quoted prices in the active market,
and when there is no such – on the basis ot evaluative techniques, usually an analysis of discounted cash flows.
Profits and losses due to these financial assets are never reclassified to profit or loss. Dividends are recognized
under „financial income“ in the profit or loss, when the right of the Company to receive the payment is
established.

Financial assets measured at fair value in the profit or loss
The Company evaluates all of the remaining financial assets, different from the ones designated to be
measured at amortized cost or at fair cost in other comprehensive income, and at fair cost in the profit or
loss.
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In case that in this way the discrepancy in evaluation or recognition of a given financial asset is eliminated
or significantly reduced, which would be a consequence of recognition of results and changes on the
grounds of different bases, the Company could apply the exceptions as per IFRS 9 and upon initial
recognition could irrevocably define a financial asset as measured at fair cost in the profit or loss,
including contracts for delivery of non-financial position.
Such financial assets shall be represented in the explanatory notes to the financial statements separately
from the other instruments, where this evaluating approach is obligatorily applied.
Derecognition
Financial asset (or, where applicable, part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets)
is derecognized in cases, when the contractual rights on cash flows from the financial asset have expired
or the Company has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has made a
commitment to pay in full the received cash flows without significant delay to a third party under a
“transfer” agreement.
Upon derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety the difference between 1) carrying value (measured
as at the date of derecognition) and 2) the payment received (including every new asset obtained without
acceptance of new liability), is recognized in the profit or loss.
When the Company has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has
concluded an agreement for transfer, it evaluates if and to what extent the risks and benefits from the
ownership are kept.
When the Company has neither transferred, neither retained substantially all risks and benefits of
ownership over the financial asset, nor transfered its control over the asset, the Company continues to
recognize the transferred financial asset to the extent of its continued interest in it. In this case the
Company also recognizes the associated liability. The transferred asset and related liability are measured on
a basis, which reflects the rights and obligations retained by the Company.
Impairment of financial assets
The Company recognizes provisions for expected credit losses for all debt instruments, which are not
reported at fair value in the profit or loss, by applying an approach represented in the table below:
Type of financial asset
Short-term trade receivables
Trade receivables with a
financing component
Short-term receivables from
related parties
Receivables from related
parties with a financing
component
Receivables from loans
Cash and equivalents
Other financial, in-court and
judged receivables

Category under IFRS 9

Impairment approach

Debt instruments measured at amortized
cost
Debt instruments measured at amortized
cost
Debt instruments measured at amortized
cost
Debt instruments measured at amortized
cost

Simplified approach

Debt instruments measured at amortized
cost
Debt instruments measured at amortized
cost
Debt instruments measured at amortized
cost

Standardized approach

Standardized approach
Simplified approach
Standardized approach

Standardized approach
Simplified approach
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Expected credit losses represent a probability-weighted estimate of the credit losses (i.e. the present value
of each shortage of money) over the expected lifetime of the financial instrument. Monetary deficiency is
the difference between the cash flows payable to the Company in accordance with the contract and the
cash flows that the Company expects to receive. Since the expected credit losses account for the amount
and time limits of the payments, expected credit loss is recognized even if the Company expects the asset
to be fully paid but later than the time limit for the payment.
Impairment and losses on financial instruments are dealt with in three stages – the first two being the
expected credit losses for losses that may arise as a result of default, and the third one as credit
impairment (loss), now based on evidence of potential or actual defaults under the instruments.
Expected credit losses for exposures for which there is no significant credit risk increase compared to the
initial recognition are recognized as credit losses that may arise as a result of events of non-performance in
the next 12 months. For credit exposures for which there is a significant increase in the credit risk after
the initial recognition, a loss adjustment for expected credit losses over the remaining lifetime of the
exposure is required, regardless of the default (ECL for the entire time limit of the instrument).
For trade receivables and assets under contracts arising from transactions in the scope of IFRS 15 that do not
contain a material component of financing the Company applies a simplified approach in accordance with
IFRS 9 by recognizing an impairment loss provision for expected credit losses based on the expected credit
loss for the full duration of the receivables at each reporting date. Company applies a matrix by which the
expected credit losses on trade receivables are calculated. Receivables are classified by arrears and are grouped
by type and customer segments with different models of credit loss.
As a baseline data on trade receivables the Company uses its accumulated experience in the area of credit losses
under such instruments so to estimate the expected credit losses. The historical data used is for periods from 3
to 5 years back, grouped by the type and the corresponding models of customer segments and adjusted by
forecast factors specific to the debtors and for the respective industry.

For cash at banks the Company recognizes impairment for expected credit losses by applying the
standardized approach and in order to determine the loss from the non-performance in the model
parameters the credit rating of the financial institutions, where the Company has deposited its funds, is
used.
As at each reporting date the Company determines the impairment value for each instrument in an
amount equal to the expected losses during the entire lifetime, if the credit risk for that financial
instrument has increased significantly since the initial recognition.
If, as at the reporting date, the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly from the
time of initial recognition, the impairment for that financial instrument is equal to the expected 12-month
credit losses.
Additional disclosures related to the impairment of financial assets are also contained in the following
Notes:
Impairment of financial assets
Trade and other receivables
Receivables from related parties
Cash
Credit risk

Note 4.22.6
Note 11
Note 12, 31
Note 13
Note 35.2

4.13.2. Financial liabilities
Initial recognition, classification and assessment
Company recognizes in the statement of financial position a financial liability only when it becomes a
party under contractual clauses of the financial instrument.
Upon their initial recognition financial liabilities are classified as: “financial liabilities subsequently valuated
at amortized cost“(loans and borrowings, trade and other payables) or as “financial liabilities measured at
fair value through profit or loss“.
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Initial recognition occurs at the settlement date and is carried at fair value plus, in the case of financial
liabilities, costs that are not carried at fair value in profit or loss, directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of the financial liability. Management fees of the loans received are deferred over the period of the
loans by using the effective interest rate method and are included in the amortized cost of the loans.
Financial liabilities of the Company include bank loans and overdrafts, trade and other payables and
finance lease payables.
According to their repayment period financial liabilities are classified as long-term and short-term.
Subsequent measurement/evaluation
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as described below:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and
financial liabilities designated at their initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are made for redemption purposes in the near
future.
Profit or losses due to liabilities held for trading are recognized in the separate statements of profit or loss.
Financial liabilities designated upon their initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
determined on the date of their initial recognition and only if the criteria of IFRS 9 are met.
Company has not designated financial liabilities as measured at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial liabilities evaluated at amortised cost
The category of “financial liabilities evaluated at amortized cost“ includes loans received, trade payables
and other payables where the company has become a party under a contract or an agreement, which shall
be settled in net cash. This category has the most significant share for the Company’s financial istruments
and for it as a whole.
Loans received are funds borrowed temporarily against consideration from Bulgarian or foreign banks and
other financial istitutions, commercial loans, etc.
Bank loans are taken to provide long-term support to the Company’s business. They are reflected in the
statement of financial position of the Company, net of the borrowing costs. Direct transaction costs are
reported in the profit or loss statement on the accrual basis using the effective interest rate method and are
added to the carrying amount of the financial liability to the extent to which they are not settled at the end of
the period when they occur.
Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.
Amortized cost is calculated taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition, also fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. Expenses (calculated using the effective interest rate method)
are included as financial expenses in the profit or loss statement on line “Financial costs”.
For financial liabilities that are measured at amortized cost, profit or loss is recognized in profit or loss for the
period when the financial asset or liability is derecognized or impaired, and by the amortization process.

Trade payables are initially recognized at par value and are subsequently measured at amortized cost less
payments for the settlement of obligation.
Dividends payable to the sole shareholder are recognized when the dividends are approved at the General
Meeting of Shareholders.
Derecognition
The company derecognizes a financial liability solely when it settles the obligation, the deadline of the
obligation is expired or the creditor waives its rights.
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Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same creditor under significantly
different terms or the terms of the existing liability are substantially modified, such replacement or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and recognition of a new liability. The
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.
The difference between the carrying value of the financial liability settled or transferred to other party and
the payment for the settlement, including cash and transfer of non-cash assets, is recognized in the profit
or loss for the period.
Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is presented in the statement of
financial position only when there is a legal exercisable right to offset the recognized amounts and the
Company intends settlement on a net basis, or simultaneous realization of the assets and settlement of the
liabilities.
4.14.

Inventories

Initial recognition of inventories in the Company is at cost, which includes: purchase costs, processing
costs, other costs incurred in connection with the delivery of inventories to their present location and
status – transportation costs, handling costs, installation costs, and other amounts, reclassified from other
comprehensive income, representing profits or losses from eligible hedges of cash flows for purchase of
inventories in foreign currency.
Inventories are measured at the lower of the cost and the net realizable value. Net realizable value
represents the estimated selling price of inventories less the estimated costs of the sale. The measurement
of net realizable value is based on the most reliable existing data at the time of making this measurement,
according to the volume of inventories expected to be realized.
At the end of the reporting period the net realizable value is measured in connection with the requirement
for inventory valuation at the lower of the two values – cost and net realizable value. The prudence
principle is leading, as well as the requirement to prevent overstating of inventories in the separate
statement of financial position.
When net realizable value is lower than the carrying value, impairment is charged by reducing the carrying
value. The difference is reported as current expense.
When in future accounting period a new valuation ascertains that the conditions, which have led to
impairment of inventories, are no longer present, the impairment loss is reversed. The reversal is done by
increasing the carrying value, but only up to the carrying value of inventories before reporting the
impairment loss. The impairment loss reversal is reported as a reduction in the amount of recognized
expenses for materials for the period when the reversal has occurred.
Costs incurred in connection with the supply of inventories to their present location and status are
reported as follows:
Materials
Finished products

– delivery value determined on the basis of the “weighted average value”
method;
– the cost of used direct materials, labour, total production costs,
allocated on the basis of normal production capacity, without including
the borrowing costs.

The Company measures the costs of inventories using the weighted average value method.
The main fuel costs (lignite coal) are determined on the basis of the actual calorific value of the quantities
input for the period.
Upon the sale of inventories, their carrying value is recognized as expense for the period when the related
income has been recognized.
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Income taxes

Tax expenses, recognized in profit or loss, include the amount of deferred and current taxes, which are
not recognized in the other comprehensive income or directly in equity.
Current income tax
Current tax assets and liabilities for current and previous periods are recognized at the amount expected to
be recovered by or paid to the tax authorities. Calculation of current taxes applies the tax rates and laws
that are effective or substantially endorsed as at the reporting date. The Management analyzes individual
items in the tax return, for which the applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation, and
recognizes provisions when appropriate.
Current taxes are recognized directly in equity (and not in the separate statement of profit or loss), when
the tax relates to items that had been recognized directly in equity.
Deferred tax
Deferred taxes are recognized using the balance sheet method for all temporary differences as at the
balance sheet date arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences:
- except to the extent that the deferred tax liability arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction, which is not a business combination and affects neither the accounting profit, nor
the taxable profit or loss as at the time of the transaction; and
- for taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests
in joint ventures, except to the extent that the Company is able to control the timing of the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is likely that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carried forward unused tax
credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is likely to have a taxable profit, against which the
deductible temporary differences, carried forward unused tax credits and unused tax losses shall be used:
- unless the deferred tax asset arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and affects neither the accounting profit, nor the taxable profit or loss
as at the time of the transaction; and
- for deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and
interests in joint ventures, deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is likely the
temporary difference will reverse in the foreseeable future and a taxable profit to be realized, against
which the temporary difference to be utilized.
The Company reviews the carrying amount of deferred tax assets at each reporting date and reduces it to
the extent that it is no longer likely to realize a sufficient taxable profit, which allows all or a part of the
deferred tax asset to be recovered. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date
and are recognized to the extent to which it has become likely to realize a future taxable profit allowing
the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply for the period
during which the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that are
effective or have entered into force, to a large extent, as at the reporting date.
Deferred taxes related to items recognized outside profit or loss shall be recognized outside profit or loss.
Deferred taxes are recognized depending on the related transaction either in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity.
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The Company offsets deferred tax assets and liabilities only when it is legally entitled to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to income taxes imposed by
the same taxation authority for one and the same taxable entity.
4.16. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and short-term deposits in the separate statement of financial position comprise cash in bank
accounts, cash in hand, frozen cash and short-term deposits with original maturity of three months or less.
For the purposes of the separate statement of cash flows, the cash and cash equivalents shall consist of
cash and cash equivalents as defined above.
4.17. Non-current assets and liabilities classified as held for sale and discontinued operations
When the Company intends to sell a non-current asset or group of assets (disposal group) and if the sale is
highly probable within 12-month period, the asset or disposal group is classified as held for sale and
presented separately in the statement of financial position.
Liabilities are classified as held for sale and presented as such in the statement of financial position only if
they are directly attributable to the disposal group.
Assets classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount immediately after their
designation as held for sale and their fair value less costs to sell. Certain assets held for sale, such as
financial assets or deferred tax assets, continue to be measured in accordance with the Company's
accounting policy for those assets. Assets classified as held for sale are not subject to depreciation once
classified as held for sale.
Profits or losses arising on the sale or revaluation of discontinued operations are presented as described in
Note 4.7.
4.18. Equity, reserves and payment of dividends
The share capital is presented at par value of issued and paid-in shares. Proceeds from issued shares above
their par value are recorded as premium reserves.
Own equity instruments, which were re-acquired, are recognized at cost of acquisition and are deducted
from equity capital. Profit or loss from the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of equity instruments of
the Company are not recognized in the separate statement of profit or loss.
Reserves comprise of legal reserves, general reserves, revaluations under defined benefit plans and
revaluations of non-current assets (Note 14.2).
Accumulated loss includes the current financial result and accumulated profits and losses from previous
years.
Obligations for payment of dividends to the sole owner are included in “Payables to related parties” in the
separate statement of financial position, when dividends are approved for distribution by the sole owner
prior to the end of the reporting period.
All transactions with the owner of the Company are presented separately in the separate statement of
equity.
4.19. Post-employment benefits and short-term employee benefits
The Company reports on short-term payables on compensable leaves of absence, which have resulted
from unused paid annual leave in cases, where it is expected that leaves would occur within 12 months
after the date of the reporting period, during which the employees have performed the work related to
these leaves. Short-term payables to personnel include wages, salaries and social security contributions.
The Company owes pension benefits to its employees under defined benefit plans and defined
contribution plans.
Defined contribution plans are pension plans, under which the Company pays fixed contributions in state
funds. The Company has no other legal or contractual obligations after payment of the fixed
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contributions. Contributions under those plans are recognized as an expense made within the period,
during which the employee has fulfilled the relevant work.
According to Bulgarian labour legislation and the Collective Bargaining Agreement (CBA) upon termination of
the employment after the employee has acquired the right to retire due to length of service and age, irrespective
of the grounds for termination, the Company is obliged to pay to the person an amount of gross monthly
salaries specified in CBA depending on the employee’s length of service in the Company.
According to Bulgarian labour legislation and the Collective Bargaining Agreement (CBA) the payments upon
retirement due to sickness amount to a sum of gross monthly salaries depending on the length of service of the
person in the Company. The compensation shall be paid provided that the person has at least 5 years of total
service and has not received any compensation on the same grounds in the recent 5 years.
The Company determines its own obligations for payment of post employment benefits using an actuarial
valuation method. The management of the Company evaluates the obligations for payment of defined benefits
once a year with the help of an independent actuary. The estimate of these obligations is based on standard
inflation rates, and expected change of costs for healthcare and mortality. Future salary increases are also taken
into account. Discount rates are determined as at the end of each year by considering the profitability of highquality corporate bonds denominated in the currency, in which defined benefits will be paid out, and which
have maturity date similar to that of the respective pension obligations.
The costs of the employees pension benefits related to their current service are included under „Staff costs”,
and the amount of obligations’ discount is included as interest expense under „Financial costs”. Actuarial
gains/losses are referred to the reserves of the Company.
The payable for post employment benefits presented in the separate statement of financial position consists of
the present value of the obligation for payment of these benefits.

4.20. Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past
events, when it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and when a reliable assessment of the value of the obligation can be made. When the Company
expects that some or all of the expenses necessary to settle the provision will be reimbursed, for example under
an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset but only when it is virtually certain
that these expenses will be reimbursed. Expenses for provisions are presented in the separate statement of
profit or loss, net of the amount of recovered expenses. When the effect of time differences in the value of
money is crucial, provisions are discounted using a current discount rate before tax that reflects, where
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision resulting
from the elapsed time is presented as a financial cost.

Provisions are reviewed at the end of each accounting period and their value is adjusted to reflect the best
estimate.
In cases where the occurrence of an economic resources outflow as a result of a current obligation is
considered to be unlikely, a liability is not recognized. Contingent liabilities shall be subsequently measured
at the higher value between the above comparable provision and the initially recognized amount, less any
accumulated depreciation.
Likely inflows of economic benefits, which do not yet meet the criteria for asset recognition, are
considered contingent assets. They are described together with the contingent liabilities of the Company in
Note 33.
4.21. Significant estimates of the management upon application of the accounting policy
Preparation of the separate financial statements requires that the management shall make estimates and
assumptions, which affect the amount of reported assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities as at the date of the separate statement of financial position and the reported income and
expenses for that period. Uncertainties associated with the assumptions and estimates made could result in
actual results that would require significant adjustments in the carrying amounts of the respective assets or
liabilities in subsequent reporting periods.
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The main assumptions, which relate to future and other key sources of uncertainties in the estimates as at
the date of the separate statement of financial position, and for which there is a substantial risk of
resulting in significant adjustments to the carrying values of assets and liabilities in the next reporting
period, are listed below:
4.21.1. Revenue from contracts with customers
Upon recognition of revenue under contracts with customers the management makes various assessments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported income, costs/expenses, assets and liabilities under
contracts. The key assessments and assumptions that materially affect the amount and the time limit for
recognition of revenue from contracts with customers are disclosed in Note 4.4, Obligations to perform
and approach of recognition of main types of revenue under contracts with customers.
4.21.2. Provision for greenhouse gas emissions
The Company recognizes a provision for its obligation to purchase the excess over the allocated and
purchased greenhouse gas emissions for the relevant year. The determination of the provision for
greenhouse gas emissions requires that the management shall make an estimate of the expenses for
purchasing additional emissions as at the date of the separate statement of financial position. As at 31
December 2021 the best estimate for the necessary provision for greenhouse gas emissions amounts to
BGN 49,313 thousand (31 December 2020: BGN 334,607 thousand). Additional information is presented
in Note 15.
4.21.3. Provision for recultivation of damaged terrains – Gypsum landfill for disposal of gypsum
from flue-gas desulphurisation plants
The Company recognizes a provision for its obligation to perform a technological and biological
recultivation of a gypsum landfill after its filling up with gypsum from flue-gas desulphurisation plants, in
accordance with Regulation 26 on Recultivation of damaged terrains, improvement of poor lands,
protection and utilization of the humus layer. The calculation of provision for landfill recultivation
requires from the managing body to prepare an estimate of cost for closure and post-operation servicing
of the landfill site as at the date of the separate statement of financial position. As at 31 December 2021
the best estimate for the necessary provision for recultivation of the landfill is at the amount of BGN
5,488 thousand (31 December 2020: BGN 5,488 thousand). Additional information is presented in Note
15.
4.21.4.

Post employment benefits

The obligation for post employment benefits is determined by actuarial valuation. This valuation requires
assumptions to be made on the discount rate, future wage increases, staff turnover and mortality rate. Due
to the long-term nature of post employment benefits, these assumptions are subject to significant
uncertainty. As at 31 December 2021 the payables of the Company for post employment benefits amount
to BGN 49,923 thousand (31 December 2020: BGN 41,256 thousand). Additional information on post
employment benefits is presented in Note 16.
4.21.5.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Financial reporting of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets includes the use of estimates of
their expected useful lives and residual values, which are based on estimates by the management of the
Company. Information on useful lives of property, plant and equipment is presented in Note 4.9 and of
intangible assets – in Note 4.8.
4.21.6.

Impairment of inventories

The Company recognizes impairment of immobilized and obsolete inventories to their net realizable
value. The management evaluates annually the adequacy of this provision and the prime cost of
inventories is reduced to their estimated net realizable value. As at 31 December 2021 the best estimate
for the necessary impairment of inventories amounts to BGN 10,657 thousand (31 December 2020: BGN
3,823 thousand). Additional information is presented in Note 10.
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Deferred tax assets

The assessment of the likelihood of future taxable income for the utilization of deferred tax assets is based on
the latest approved budget forecast, adjusted for significant non-taxable income and expenses, and specific
limitations on the transfer of unused tax losses or credits. If a reliable estimates of taxable income implies the
likely use of a deferred tax asset especially in cases, where the asset can be used without any time limit, then the
deferred tax asset is fully recognized. Recognition of deferred tax assets, which are subject to certain legal or
economic limitations or uncertainty, is assessed by the management for each individual case on the basis of the
specific facts and circumstances.

4.22. Uncertainty of accounting estimates
Upon preparation of the financial statements, the Management undertakes a number of judgements, estimates
and assumptions on the recognition and measurement of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses.
The actual results may differ from these judgements, estimates and assumptions made by Management and will
seldom equal fully to the previously estimated results.
Information on significant judgments, estimates and assumptions, which have the most significant effect on the
recognition and evaluation of assets, liabilities, revenues and costs, is represented below.

4.22.1. Impairment of investments in subsidiaries, intangible assets, property, plant and
equipment
Impairment loss is considered the amount, by which the carrying value of a given asset or cash flows generating
unit, exceeds their recoverable value, which is the higher of the fair value less the costs of sale of an asset, and
its value in use. To determine the value in use, the management of the Company calculates the expected future
cash flows for each cash generating unit and determines the appropriate discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of these cash flows (Note 4.12). Upon calculation of the expected future cash flows, the
management makes assumptions about the future gross profits. These assumptions are related to future events
and circumstances. Actual results may differ and impose significant adjustments in the assets of the Company
in the next accounting year.
In most cases upon measuring the applicable discount rate, an assessment is made of the appropriate
adjustments in connection with market risk and risk factors, which are specific to the individual assets.
In 2021 the Company reported impairment of its investment in the subsidiary “Professional Football Club
Beroe - Stara Zagora” EAD in the amount of BGN 9,238 thousand, as well as impairment of property, plant
and equipment in the amount of BGN 2,904 thousand net (impairment in the amount of BGN 3,457 thousand
and reversed impairment in the amount of BGN 553 thousand) Additional information is presented in Note 6
and Note 7.
The Company has not suffered losses from impairment of non-current assets in 2021.

4.22.2.

Fair value of property, plant and equipment

The Company subsequently reports property, plant and equipment at revalued amount using reports by
independent external evaluators to determine their fair value. Detailed information on the revaluation, the
evaluation methods used, assumptions and estimates upon determining the fair value, is presented in
Note 6Error! Reference source not found..
4.22.3.

Useful life of depreciable assets

The management reviews the useful life of depreciable assets at the end of each reporting period.
As at 31 December 2021 the management determines the useful life of assets, which represents the
expected period of use of the assets by the Company. The carrying amounts of assets are analyzed in
Notes 5 and 6. The actual useful life may differ from the estimate.
4.22.4.

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower value of the acquisition cost and the net realizable value. Upon
determining of the net realisable value, the management takes into account the most reliable information
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available as at the date of the estimate. The main business activity of the Company is exposed to
technological changes, which can lead to changes in the values of inventories in use. In 2021 the Company
reported expenses for impairment of inventories to the amount of BGN 7,161 thousand and reversed
impairment of BGN 172 thousand. In 2020 the Company reported expenses for impairment of
inventories to the amount of BGN 247 thousand. Additional information is presented in Note 10.
4.22.5.

Defined benefit payment obligations

The management measures once a year, with the help of an independent actuary, the defined benefit
obligations. The estimate of the defined benefit obligations is based on statistical indicators for inflation,
cost of health care, 10mortality rate, rate of staff turnover and early retirement due to sickness. Due to a
change in IAS 19 from 2011, adopted by Regulation (EU) No. 475/2012 dated 5 June 2012 of the
European Commission, the present value of the obligation for the post employment benefits of the staff
include the cumulative unrecognized actuarial profit or loss, as well as the unrecognized expense for past
service.
They have to be recognized as a payable to personnel and reported as other comprehensive income in the
separate statement of comprehensive income.
According to IAS 19 the entity shall discount the whole amount of the obligation for payment of defined
post employment benefits.
The obligation for post employment benefits consists of the present value of the obligation at the
beginning of the reporting period for the payment of these benefits, increased by the expense recognized
in the separate statement of profit or loss, the actuarial profit or loss recognized in other comprehensive
income, and decreased by the payments made for indemnities upon retirement during the period.
Additional information on the obligations for staff benefit upon retirement is presented in Note 16
4.22.6.

Impairment of financial assets

Impairment of financial assets depends on the credit risk assessment of the financial assets.
As at each reporting date the Company assesses whether the credit risk under a financial instrument has
increased significantly compared to the time of the initial recognition. Upon assessment the Company uses the
change in the default risk arising during the expected lifetime of the financial instrument instead of the change
in the amount of the expected credit losses. This assessment is made on the basis of a comparison of the
financial instrument default risk as at the date of the report with the default risk that occurred on the date of
the initial recognition. Information is identified without any unnecessary cost or effort available.
Upon determining the credit risk for a given financial instrument the Company uses reasonable and supporting
forecast information, if available, or if no excessive costs or effort are required to obtain it. Company relies on
past information when it determines whether the credit risk has increased significantly after the initial
recognition only if there is no any reasonably forward-looking information (on individual or collective basis) or
if excessive cost or efforts are required.
When the information available to determine the amount of impairment is limited, then the assessment is based
on historical data from the Company’s experience related to the business relationships with similar debtors, or
on other reliable basis of assessment.
Recognition and assessment of expected credit losses of debt instruments measured at amortized cost.

Recognition and measurement of expected credit losses of debt instruments measured at
amortized cost
Approach for impairment of trade and other receivables and receivables from related parties with an element of financing
Due to the specifics of the Company’s activity each financial asset is classified in the relevant phase by
using a combination of qualitative and quantitative factors.
In Phase 1 assets are classified, for which all of the following circumstances are met:
•
Coefficient of recovery of the equity of assets above 15%
•
Coefficient of recovery of debt above 1.0
•
Lack of other events of loss
•
Lack of restructuring of receivables
•
The asset is not obtained with worsened credit quality
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Less than 30-day overdue

In Phase 2 assets are classified for which one of the following circumstances is valid:
•
Coefficient of recovery of the equity of assets below 15%
•
Coefficient of recovery of debt below 1.0
•
Existence of restructuring of receivables
•
Overdue of more than 30, but less than 90 days
In Phase 3 assets are classified, where one of the following circumstances is valid:
•
Existence of other events of loss
•
The asset is obtained with worsened credit quality
•
More than 930-day overdue.
Depending on the characteristics of the asset and counterparty it is possible that the expected future cash
flows from the asset to differ significantly from the contracted ones. This could lead to availability of
substantial levels for the expected credit losses from the asset. Review of the expected future cash flows
for each specific asset is prepared as at each reporting date.
Approach for impairment of cash in banks
Company applies the standardized approach for calculation of the expected credit losses of cash in banks,
by for calculating the loss from default in the model parameters, the credit rating of the financial
institutions, where the Company has deposited its cash is used. These credit ratings are mainly awarded by
the following institutions: Moody’s, Standard and Poor’s, Fitch, Bulgarian Credit Rating Agency.
Approach for impairment of short-term trade and other receivables and receivables from related parties
Company applies a simplified approach for calculating the expected credit losses for trade receivables that
do not contain an element of financing.
For the purposes of determining the expected credit losses modeling at the customer industry level is
done. Modeling is the inherent calculation of the financial risk that customers carry to the companies in
the Company. Expected credit losses are calculated for each single receivable (invoice, interest sheet, etc.)
obliging a counterparty, adjusted on the basis of the overdue days and the counterparty’s standard
payment cycle. The average number of days of delay per customer is determined on the basis of historical
information about the period of recovery of the debts by the customers. The retrospective review is done
for a period of 3 to 5 years.
For the purposes of calculating the expected credit losses for financial assets arising from contracts with
counterparties from the Energy industry, the Company has determined the existence of an additional risk.
Because of that, trade receivables arising from counterparties in the above mentioned industry are
therefore considered to be of higher risk.
Additional risk is identified based on historical experience about the collection of receivables of the
Company with counterparties from that industry, including deteriorated financial position, liquidity
problems and other difficulties, especially for traders of electricity.
In this way the identified risk factors are considered an indication of a possible increase in the credit risk.
The quantitative effect of the credit risk growth to counterparties from Energy industry is determined by
differentiation of an additional industry “Energy – high risk”, where the component “specific risk” is
added and involved in fixing of the discount rate used for the calculation of the impairment amount. The
discount rate in turn is calculated as the difference between the sums of: % risk-free premium on maturity
of receivables, the risk specific for the country, the cost of debt, other specific risk and % risk-free
premium of the basic model.
Approach for impairment of in-court and judged receivables
In cases where the Company has taken legal actions to satisfy its receivables, then these are classified as
In-court receivables. This type of receivables is characterized by a total default – i.E. reluctance or inability
of the customer to settle its obligation/debt. For this reason, irrespective of the existence of judgments of
the judicial authorities and the launched enforcement procedures, the collectability of these receivables,
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respectively the expected future cash inflows, is low and the probability of default has already occurred
with respect to the initial asset, i.E. it is equal to 100%.
4.22.7. Impairment of non-financial assets
As impairment loss is recognized the amount, by which the carrying value of an asset or cash generating
unit, exceeds their recoverable value, which is the higher of the fair value less the costs of sale of an asset,
and its value in use. To determine the value in use, the management of the Company calculates the
expected future cash flows for each cash generating unit and determines the appropriate discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of these cash flows (Explanatory Note 4.12). Upon calculation of the
expected future cash flows the management makes assumptions about the future gross profits. These
assumptions are related to future events and circumstances. Actual results may differ and impose
significant adjustments in the assets of the Company in the next accounting year.
In most cases upon measuring the applicable discount rate, an assessment of the appropriate adjustments
is made in connection with market risk and risk factors, which are specific to the individual assets.
4.23. Greenhouse gas emissions allowances
Due to the lack of an accounting standard or interpretation within IFRS to specifically address accounting
of transactions related to greenhouse gas emissions (CO2 emissions), the management of Company
developed accounting policy, which it considers most relevant and reliable for the needs of the users of
the financial information. According to the national allowance allocation plan of Greenhouse gas
emissions trading for the period 2008 - 2012, approved by the Commission of the European Union, TPP
Maritsa East 2 EAD was entitled to a certain amount of allowances. Granted emissions are not reported
as an asset, and upon sale, if any, the gross value of the emissions sale shall be reported.
Directive 2009/29/EC, amending Directive 2003/87/EC (the so-called Directive EU ETS), introduces
the concept of community, harmonized approach to the allocation of allowances in the third phase of the
EU greenhouse gas emissions trading system (EU ETS), which started in 2013 and continued up to 2020.
During this period the general rule was that full auctioning of the allowances is provided for electric
power generation and a transitional system for free allocation to other industrial sectors. The Directive
also defines the exceptions in some member states, where some of the requirements for temporarily
limited exceptions (derogation) are fulfilled in accordance with Article 10c – transitional allocation of free
allowances in connection with the modernization of approaches for electricity production. The total
quantity of transitionally allocated free allowances in 2013 will as a maximum be equal to 70% of the
average annual quantity of emissions in the period 2005 - 2007. And that total quantity will be gradually
reduced so that in 2020 no free allowances will be allocated.
The Republic of Bulgaria took advantage of its right and filed an application under Art. 10c of the
Directive, which by Decision C(2012) 4560 dated 06.07.2012 of the European Commission, the European
Parliament and the Council for transitional free allocation of allowances, was determined to be compatible
with Article 10c of the Directive. TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD, as an operator of plant for generation of
electric power, with nominal thermal capacity exceeding 20 MW, has the right to participate for free
allocation of allowances for greenhouse gas emissions within period 2021 – 2030, in accordance with
Article 10c of the Directive 2003/87/EO (amended by Directive (EU) 2018/410). As an eligible
beneficiary, the Company has applied to participate in the “National Investment Framework for the
period 2021-2030”, which provides an opportunity for free allocation of allowances to modernise the
energy sector.
The greenhouse gas emission allowances freely allocated by the state are not recognized in the separate
statement of financial position, but they are recorded off-balance. When the annual emissions exceed the
available and allocated free allowances, the obligation for the exceedance is measured at the fair value of
greenhouse gas emissions as at the end of the accounting period, for which they are due, and a provision
is charged. The total number of reached allowances is determined by submitting a verified report, issued
by an independent accredited certification body. Additional clarifications on the provision for greenhouse
gas emissions are set out in Note 15.
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Intangible assets

The carrying amount for the reporting periods can be analyzed, as follows:
For the year as at
31 December 2021
Gross carrying amount
Balance as at 1 January 2021
Newly-added assets, purchased
Disposals
Balance as at 31 December 2021
Amortization
Balance as at 1 January 2021
Amortization
Disposals
Balance as at 31 December 2021
Carrying amount as at 31 December 2021
For the year as at
31 December 2020
Gross carrying amount
Balance as at 1 January 2020
Newly-added assets, purchased
Balance as at 31 December 2020
Amortization
Balance as at 1 January 2020
Amortization
Balance as at 31 December 2020
Carrying amount as at 31 December 2020

Software Other intangible
Total
assets
BGN ‘000
BGN ‘000 BGN ‘000
1 224
2 500
(22)
3 702

260
260

1 484
2 500
(22)
3 962

(516)
(896)
22
(1 390)
2 312

(53)
(22)
(75)
185

(569)
(918)
22
(1 465)
2 497

Software Other intangible
Total
assets
BGN ‘000
BGN ‘000 BGN ‘000
1 199
25
1 224

199
61
260

1 398
86
1 484

(424)
(92)
(516)
708

(33)
(20)
(53)
207

(457)
(112)
(569)
915

All amortization costs are included in the separate statement of profit or loss on line “Expenses for
depreciation (amortization) of non-financial assets”.
The Company has not pledged any intangible assets as collateral of its liabilities.
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Property, plant and equipment

The carrying amount for the presented reporting periods can be analyzed, as follows:

Reported amount
Balance as at 1 January
2021
Acquired assets
Revaluation recognized
in equity
Impairment cost
Amortization written-off
on evaluation
Transfer of assets
Disposals
Balance as at 31
December 2021
Amortization
Balance as at 1 January
2021
Accrued
Amortization written-off
on evaluation
Disposed
Balance as at 31
December 2021
Carrying amount as at
31 December 2021

Reported amount
Balance as at 1 January
2020
Acquired assets
Transfer of assets
Disposals
Balance as at 31
December 2020
Amortization
Balance as at 1 January
2020
Accrued
Disposed
Balance as at 31
December 2020
Carrying amount as at
31 December 2020

Lands and Plant, machines
Vehicles
buildings and equipment
BGN ‘000
BGN ‘000 BGN ‘000

Fixtures Acquisition
Total
and fittings
costs
BGN ‘000
BGN ‘000 BGN ‘000

146 247
3

1 405 705
1 085

4 505
12

3 005
71

52 415
69 356

1 611 877
70 527

2 456
( 155)

234 435
(2 745)

695
( 4)

-

-

237 586
(2 904)

(12 232)
365
-

(294 832)
97 389
( 92)

(1 450)
33
-

25
( 57)

(97 812)
(3 034)

(308 514)
(3 183)

136 684

1 440 945

3 791

3 044

20 925

1 605 389

(8 276)
(4 033)

(195 134)
(105 985)

(2 773)
( 384)

(2 338)
( 198)

-

(208 521)
(110 600)

12 232
-

294 832
92

1 450
-

55

-

308 514
147

( 77)

(6 195)

(1 707)

(2 481)

-

(10 460)

136 607

1 434 750

2 084

563

20 925

1 594 929

Lands and Plant, machines
Vehicles
buildings and equipment
BGN ‘000
BGN ‘000 BGN ‘000

Fixtures Acquisition
Total
and fittings
costs
BGN ‘000
BGN ‘000 BGN ‘000

146 013
32
229
( 27)

1 298 659
2 105
105 822
( 881)

4 395
22
142
( 54)

2 921
85
23
( 24)

48 705
110 558
(106 216)
(632)

1 500 693
112 802
(1 618)

146 247

1 405 705

4 505

3 005

52 415

1 611 877

(4 258)
(4 018)
-

(97 080)
(98 176)
122

(2 418)
( 407)
52

(2 130)
( 233)
25

-

(105 886)
(102 834)
199

(8 276)

(195 134)

(2 773)

(2 338)

-

(208 521)

137 971

1 210 571

1 732

667

52 415

1 403 356
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Revaluation at fair value of major classes of assets
In accordance with the accounting policy of the Company, the property, plant and equipment are revalued
once per every 3 years or at shorter time intervals. The frequency of subsequent revaluation of property,
plant and equipment upon application of the revaluation model depends on whether the carrying amount
differs substantially from the fair value of a revalued asset at the end of the reporting period.
As at 31 December 2021 evaluation of the fair value was carried out according to the requirements of IAS
16 and IFRS 13. Revaluation was carried out on the grounds of evaluation of their fair values by an
independent licensed evaluator.
A revaluation of BGN 237,586 thousand has been reported in other comprehensive income, net of tax.
An impairment charge of BGN 3,457 thousand was recognised in the individual statement of profit or
loss on the line “Expenses for depreciation and impairment of non-financial assets”. Income from
reversal of impairment charge of BGN 553 thousand was recognised in the individual statement of profit
or loss on the line “Expenses for depreciation and impairment of non-financial assets”.
According to IFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement”, the measurement of the fair value of non-financial
assets takes into account the ability of a market participant to generate economic benefits through using
the asset in order to maximize its value or through its sale to another market participant who will be using
it in such a way. The assets of TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD included in the revaluation review are specific,
strictly related to the activity of the company and any alternative use of most of them is impossible or
difficult, i.e. other use by market participants would be unlikely to maximize the value of the assets,
therefore it is assumed that their current use in the main activity maximizes the value.
This revaluation is carried out applying the following two primary approaches and evaluation methods for
measuring the fair value of individual categories of property, plant and equipment:
•
Market Approach through Market Analogues Method – for land and buildings, about which there
is a real market and observed data on prices of recent market deals for similar properties, adjusted for
specific factors such as area, location and current use. Fair value is considered to be their market price as
determined in accordance with the method of comparison.
•
Cost Approach through Depreciated Replacement Cost Method – for buildings and structures of
special nature.
•
Cost Approach through Amortized Replacement Cost Method - to reach a conclusion on the fair
value of plant and equipment is considered as eligible and possibly applicable cost-focused approach
through the method based on acquisition costs (Amortized Replacement Cost) because of the special
nature of the majority of assets. The acquisition costs method measures the value of the asset by
determining its new value as at the date of the evaluation, reflecting the cost of its acquisition less its
physical wear, functional and economic depreciation as a result of its use. The method produces an
indicative value using the economic principle that a buyer would not pay for an asset more than the
acquisition cost of an asset with an equivalent utility, whether through purchase or construction as at the
date of the evaluation.
The measurement at fair value as at 31.12.2021 is based on observable and unobservable data adjusted for
specific factors such as area, location and current use. Directly or indirectly observable input data used in
the evaluation is subject to adjustments. For this reason used hypotheses are classified at level 3.
Essential unobserved data is related to the adjustment for the factors specific for the assets of the
Company. The extent and direction of this adjusstment depends on the number and characteristics of
observed market transactions with similar properties that are used for the purposes of the measurement.
Despite the fact that these data represents a subjective judgment, the Management believes that the final
assessment would not be influenced significantly by other possible assumptions.
The specifics of the Company’s assets and the dynamic economic environment in the energy sector could
lead to variations in the assumptions and estimates used upon determining the fair values of property,
plant and equipment.
For information on measuring the fair value of property, plant and equipment see Note 36.
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Review for impairment
As at 31 December 2021 the Company carried out a review for impairment of property, plant and equipment
jointly with a licensed appraiser upon observance of the requirements of IAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”. On
the basis of the review performed no indications were established that the carrying value of property, plant and
equipment exceeds their recoverable value.

Acquisition costs of fixed tangible assets
As at 31.12.2021 the Company has contractual obligations for acquisition, reconstruction and modernization of
facilities, the most significant of which are related to the realization of the projects included in the National
Investment Plan of Republic of Bulgaria with regard to request for derogation under Art.10 from Directive
2003/87/EC of the European Parliament and the Council, amended by Directive 2009/29/EC, as well as
construction and restoration of a large part of equipment – absorber and stack of a flue-gas desulfurization
plant, damaged or destroyed as a result of a fire on 24.06.2019.

Collaterals on loans
The Company has not pledged any property, plant and equipment as collateral of its liabilities.
Other disclosures
For the property, plant and equipment reported at revalued amount, the disclosure of carrying value,
which would be recognized if the assets were reported using the acquisition cost method, is practically
inapplicable due to the complexity of assets owned and the long periods of their possession by the
Company.
7.

Investments in subsidiaries

The Company has the following investments in subsidiaries:
Name of
subsidiary

Country of
Principal activity
incorporation

2021
BGN‘000

PFC Beroe EAD

Bulgaria

TPP Maritsa East 2
(9 and 10) EAD

Bulgaria

Carrying out training,
competitive and
organizational administrative activities in
football
Generation of electric and
thermal power, transmission
and distribution of thermal
power

Share

2020

Share

% BGN‘000

%

-

100

5 478

100

-

-

-

100

-

5 478

Information on the simultaneous decrease and increase of the capital of “Professional Football
Club Beroe - Stara Zagora” EAD
As at 31 December 2019 the subsidiary PFC Beroe - Stara Zagora EAD realized and accumulated losses from
its activities in the total amount of BGN 5,409,525.84 (five million four hundred and nine thousand five
hundred and twenty-five levs, eighty-four). Accumulated losses in the amount of BGN 5,122 thousand (BGN
5,121,677.03) have been reported and compensated with retained earnings in the amount of BGN 287,848.81
in the adopted annual financial statements of the Company as at 31.12.2019.

One of the ways to cover the losses, improve the financial indicators and reduce the liabilities of the
Company is the simultaneous reduction and increase of the capital of PFC Beroe - Stara Zagora EAD.
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By decision under item 1 of Protocol No.32/15.09.2020 and decision under item 9 of Protocol
No.35/13.10.2020, the Board of Directors of TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD decided to simultaneously reduce
and increase the capital of Professional Football Club Beroe – Stara Zagora EAD in the amount of BGN
3,760,000.00 and gratuitously to transfer all rights on 3,760,000 available ordinary registered voting shares,
each with a nominal value of BGN 1.00 from TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD to Professional Football Club
Beroe - Stara Zagora EAD, the acquisition of the indicated own shares by Professional Football Club
Beroe - Stara Zagora EAD and their invalidation.
By decision under item II.6 of Protocol No.58-2020/27.10.2020, the Board of Directors of Bulgarian
Energy Holding EAD gives prior consent for Decisions of the Board of Directors of TPP Maritsa East 2
EAD regarding simultaneous reduction and increase of the capital of Professional Football Club Beroe Stara Zagora EAD, objectified in item 1 of Protocol No.32/15.09.2020 and under item 9 of Protocol
No.35/13.10.2020 of the Board of Directors of TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD.
By decision under Protocol No.238/02.11.2020, the Board of Directors of Professional Football Club
Beroe - Stara Zagora EAD decided to acquire all rights transferred gratuitously by the sole owner of the
capital TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD for 3,760,000 available ordinary registered voting shares, each with a
nominal value of BGN 1.00, to acquire its own shares on the grounds of Art. 187a, para 1, item 1 of the
Commercial Act (CA) for reduction of its capital under Art. 200, item 2 of the CA in order to cover the
above described losses. After the acquisition and acceptance of the shares PFC Beroe - Stara Zagora
EAD, pursuant to Article 187a, para 3 of the CA, shall terminate the exercise of the rights on all acquired
own shares until the registration of the simultaneous decrease and increase of the capital of the Company.
After the registration of the simultaneous reduction and increase of the capital of PFC Beroe - Stara
Zagora EAD in the Commercial Register and the Register of Non-Profit Legal Entities at the Registry
Agency, a handwritten or printed text “invalidated” shall be placed on the invalidated shares and stored in
the cash desk of the Company.
By decision under item 10 of Protocol No.2/19.01.2021, the Board of Directors of TPP Maritsa East 2
EAD decided to simultaneously reduce and increase the capital of PFC Beroe - Stara Zagora EAD, to
subscribe and acquire all newly issued shares. Against the subscribed shares TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD shall
make the following installments:
1. Non-monetary contribution of receivables of TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD from Professional Football
Club Beroe - Stara Zagora EAD in the total amount of BGN 1,260,000.00 (one million two hundred and
sixty thousand) as follows:
•
Receivable for repayment of a loan in the amount of BGN 300,000.00 (three hundred thousand),
representing the outstanding part of the principal under a Commercial Loan Agreement
No.11258/12.12.2011 and the Additional Agreements concluded thereto, as follows: Additional
Agreement dated 27.06.2013; Additional Agreement dated 25.03.2015; Additional Agreement dated
23.08.2017; Additional Agreement dated 04.03.2020;
•
Receivable for repayment of a loan in the amount of BGN 960,000.00 (nine hundred and sixty
thousand), representing the outstanding part of the principal under the Loan Agreement
No.16786/30.01.2020.
Against the non-monetary contribution TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD shall receive shares with a nominal value
of BGN 1,260,000.00 (one million two hundred and sixty thousand).
2. Cash contribution in the amount of BGN 2,500,000.00 (two million and five hundred thousand) BGN.
This amount shall be paid in full before submitting the application for registration of the simultaneous
reduction and increase of the capital of the Company in the Commercial Register and the Register of
Non-Profit Legal Entities at the Registry Agency.
Against the cash contribution TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD shall receive shares with a nominal value of BGN
2,500,000.00 (two million and five hundred thousand).
By decision under item II.15 of Protocol No.3-2021/26.01.2021, the Board of Directors of BEH EAD
gives its prior consent for any decision of the Board of Directors of TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD wich refer
to the simultaneous reduction and increase of the capital of PFC Beroe - Stara Zagora EAD, objectified in
item 10 of Protocol No.2/19.01.2021 of the Board of Directors of TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD.
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The simultaneous decrease and increase of the capital of “Professional Football Club Beroe - Stara
Zagora” EAD was entered in the Commercial Register on 25.02.2021.
Information on actions taken by TPP Maritza East 2 EAD, the sole owner of the capital of
Professional Football Club Beroe - Stara Zagora EAD, for sale of shares of Professional Football
Club Beroe - Stara Zagora EAD
In accordance with the government's policy for optimizing the costs of state energy companies, the Board
of Directors of TPP Maritsa East EAD, according to item 13 of Protocol No. 54 /15.12.2021. decided to
take the necessary actions to transfer the ownership of all available, ordinary, registered shares – 5,480,000
in number, owned by TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD, representing 100% of the capital of “Professional
Football Club Beroe - Stara Zagora” EAD, after receipt of prior consent from Bulgarian Energy Holding
EAD – the sole owner of the capital of TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD.
Further to above, with a decision under item II.9 of Protocol No. 67-2021/22.12.2021, the Board of
Directors of Bulgarian Energy Holding EAD gave prior consent to the above decisions and assigned to
the Executive Director of TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD to report all pre-agreed terms of the disposal
transaction before implementing the legal and actual actions for the transfer of ownership of the shares in
order to get the final decision by the Board of Directors of Bulgarian Energy Holding EAD.
On February 2, 2022, TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD received a Notification of an investment proposal from
the NGO “Association for Support of Football-Beroe”, UIC 206794473, represented by its chairman,
Attorney Svetoslav Minevski, which expressed its readiness to acquire 100% of the shares of the football
club and finance it, by proposing to acquire the shares free of charge through donation or for the total
value of BGN 1 (one), but only if, prior to the transfer or on the date of the transfer, all the obligations of
the club currently due are repaid.
During the years, while TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD was the owner of PFC Beroe, the managing bodies of
both companies have consistently pursued a policy of financing and management of the football club in
public benefit in view of the importance of the team as an emblem of Stara Zagora and the region. In
view of this focus and because of its desire to continue as much as possible the direction of the club in
favour of its supporters and the public in Stara Zagora and the region, as well as due to the fact that no
other serious interest to acquire the ownership of the club was confirmed, the management of TPP
Maritsa East 2 EAD proposed holding of negotiations to reach a mutually satisfactory agreement on the
acquisition of 100% of the shares of PFC Beroe on behalf of NGO “Association for Support of FootballBeroe”.
In connection with the decision taken by the Board of Directors of TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD to announce the
sale of 100% of the available, ordinary, registered shares of the capital of “Professional Football Club Beroe Stara Zagora” EAD, a licensed appraiser was assigned to perform an assessment of equity of “Professional
Football Club Beroe - Stara Zagora” EAD with derived value per share. The purpose and application of the
assessment is to determine the market value for accounting purposes, as well as to determine the value for
rapid non-compulsory realization (liquidation value) of the equity of “Professional Football Club Beroe - Stara
Zagora” EAD related to the forthcoming sale of shares of the football club.
The value of the capital of the football club according to the prepared Assessment of the equity of
“Professional Football Club Beroe - Stara Zagora” EAD with a derived value of one share amounts to BGN
235,286 (two hundred and thirty-five thousand two hundred and eighty-six) BGN as at 31.12.2021. (with
market adequacy until 1 July 2022), by the value of one share is set at BGN 0.043.
Based on the above facts that the assessment of the equity of “Professional Football Club Beroe - Stara
Zagora” EAD and the amount of accumulated liabilities of the club as at February 2022 are estimated at very
close values and further to negotiations held with the other party, a proposal was made that the transfer of
100% of the shares of “PFC Beroe - Stara Zagora” EAD to the interested NGO “Association for Support of
Football – Beroe” to be made by virtue of a contract for purchase and sale of shares under Article 185 of the
CA against the amount of BGN 1 (one), by the acquirer undertakes to repay the existing obligations as at the
time of the transfer of Professional Football Club Beroe - Stara Zagora EAD.
Pursuant to Art. 25, para. 2, item 1 in connection with Art. 20, para 2, it. 11 of the Articles of Association
of TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD, the Board of Directors of TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD, according to item 1 of
Protocol No.10/21.02.2022 decided to transfer 5,480,000 available, ordinary, registered shares, owned by
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TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD to the NGO “Association for Support of football – Beroe, UIC 206794473,
representing 100% of the capital of “Professional Football Club Beroe - Stara Zagora” EAD, registered in
the Commercial Register and Register of Non-Profit Legal Entities, UIC 200106240, under the following
conditions:
through a remunerative contract for purchase and sale of shares by the order of art. 185 of the
Commercial Act;
against a selling price of BGN 1 (one);
method of payment – upon signing the contract for purchase and sale of shares, after obtaining a
permit for this by Bulgarian Energy Holding EAD.
With decisions under item II.7 of Protocol No.10-2022/23.02.2022, the Board of Directors of Bulgarian
Energy Holding EAD gave permission for the sale of the shares of “Professional Football Club Beroe Stara Zagora” EAD under the above conditions. It recommends the contract of sale to include that the
buyer undertakes to repay the accumulated obligations of “PFC Beroe - Stara Zagora” EAD within a
certain time period. In case the buyer fails to repay the accumulated obligations of “PFC Beroe - Stara
Zagora” EAD within the deadline, TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD has the right to unilaterally terminate the
contract of sale of shares.
On 25 February 2022, in the town of Stara Zagora, between TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD, represented by
eng. Zhivko Dimitrov Dinchev – Executive Director, as the owner of 5,480,000 (five million four
hundred and eighty thousand) ordinary registered voting shares, with a nominal value of BGN 1 (one)
each, representing 100% of the capital of “Professional Football Club Beroe - Stara Zagora” EAD, and
NGO “Association for Support of Football - Beroe”, represented by Svetoslav Mitkov Minevski – a
Chairman of the Managing Board, a contract was signed for the purchase and sale of 5,480,000 shares,
representing 100% (one hundred percent) of the capital of “Professional Football Club Beroe - Stara
Zagora” EAD.
On 10 March 2022, the changes in the current status of “Professional Football Club Beroe - Stara Zagora”
EAD were published in the Commercial Register, by the sole owner of its capital is NGO “Association
for Support of Football - Beroe”.
On the grounds of the upper-stated facts and circumstances TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD impaired its
investment in the subsidiary “Professional Football Club Beroe - Stara Zagora” EAD as at 31.12.2021 up
to the sale price of BGN 1 (one) and classified its investment in accordance with IFRS 5 as an asset held
for sale. The impairment is for the amount of BGN 9,238,261.
Investments in subsidiaries are reported in the separate financial statements of the Company at cost, net
of impairment.
In 2021 and 2020 the subsidiaries did not distribute any dividends.
The Company has no contingent liabilities or other commitments associated with investments in
subsidiaries.
Information related to the termination of TPP Maritza East 2 (9 and 10) EAD by merger into TPP
Maritza East 2 EAD
TPP Maritsa East 2 (9 and 10) EAD was established in 2012 as a subsidiary on TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD. The
Company was established as a sole stock company with a single tier management system. It was entered in the
Commercial Register on 29 September 2012. The capital of the Company was in the amount of BGN 50
thousand distributed into 50,000 shares of nominal value of BGN 1 (one) each. The sole owner of its capital is
TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD. The ultimate owner of the Company is Bulgarian Energy Holding EAD, which is
100% owned of the Bulgarian State through the Minister of Energy. The subsidiary “TPP Maritsa East 2 (9
and 10)” EAD did not realise any commercial or other economic activity, did not own any property and
assets as of the date of its establishment until its termination, except for BGN 51 thousand, available in a
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bank account, in order to meet the requirement of owning BGN 50 thousand as a minimum amount of
capital to establish a public limited company.
Also, the Company does not own a license issued under the Energy Act. The sole owner of the capital is
TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD.
The Company did not perform real economic activity and did not realize revenues, it does not participate
in other companies.
Because of the lack of any investment intentions related to the realization of the initial goals, which led to
the establishment of the company, the lack of economic activity and revenues, it was proposed to the
Board of Directors of TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD to perform a transformation of TPP Maritsa East 2 (9
and 10) EAD, in accordance with Chapter Sixteen of the Commercial Act, by merging into TPP Maritsa
East 2 EAD in order to improve the organization and optimize the processes of administration of the
companies’ activity.
Considering the above described circumstances, the Board of Directors of TPP Maritza East 2 EAD by
decision under item 1 of Protocol No.21/28.05.2020 initiated a procedure for transformation under
Chapter XVI of the CA, Art. 262, para 1 of the CA, by merging TPP Maritza East 2 (9 and 10) EAD into
the sole owner of its capital – TPP Maritza East 2 EAD and assigns to the Executive Director of TPP
Maritza East 2 EAD to request approval of the above decisions from the sole owner of the capital Bulgarian Energy Holding EAD; assigns to the Executive Director of TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD to submit
to the National Revenue Agency a notification under Art. 77, para. 1 of the Tax and Social Security
Procedure Code for its intention to submit an application for a circumstance, subject to entry – a merger
under Chapter Sixteen of the Commercial Act; assigns to the Executive Director of TPP Maritza East 2
EAD to submit a request to the EWRC pursuant to Art. 52 of the Energy Act and Art. 87 of Ordinance
No. 3 of 21.03.2013 for licensing of the activities in the energy sector for obtaining a permit for
transformation of a licensee through merger of TPP Maritza East 2 (9 and 10) EAD into TPP Maritza
East 2 EAD, and assigns to and authorizes the Executive Director of TPP Maritza East 2 EAD to
perform all necessary actions for preparation of the merger, as well as to vote and sign a Transformation
Agreement and to declare the Contract for transformation into a Commercial Register and Register of NonProfit Legal Entities.
By decision under Protocol No. 38-2020/17.06.2020, the Board of Directors of BEH EAD gave its prior
consent for initiating the transformation procedure by the virtue of Chapter XVI of the CA, Art. 262, para 1 of
the CA through merging TPP Maritza East 2 (9 and 10) EAD into the sole owner of its capital – TPP Maritza
East 2 EAD under the specified conditions.
On 06.07.2020 an Application to issue permission to convert a licensee, by which permission was requested for
conversion of subsidiary TPP Maritsa East 2 (9 and 10) EAD through merger in the host company TPP
Maritsa East 2 EAD, to which, by decision No.R-316/05.08.2020, EWRC issued permit for transformation
through merger of the subsidiary.
The conversion was registered in the Commercial Register on 26.10.2020.
8.

Financial assets at fair cost

As at 31.12.2020 the Company participates with 0.96% of the capital (number of shares – 43,196 with par
value of BGN 172,784) of Insurance Joint-Stock Company Energy AD. ZAD Energy AD was established
in Bulgaria. The investment as at 31.12.2021 is measured at fair cost BGN 470 thousand (2020: BGN 437
thousand).
The amounts recognized in the statement of financial position relate to the following categories of
financial assets:
Financial assets
Investments in equity instruments, carried at fair value through other
comprehensive income
ZAD “Energy” AD
Carrying value

31.12.2021 31.12.2020
BGN ‘000 BGN ‘000

470
470

437
437
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Shares of ZAD “Energy” AD are not traded on an active market. As at 31.12.2020 assessment of the fair
value per one share of ZAD “Energy” AD was carried out. According to the discounted dividend
method, the fair value of one share as at 31.12.2021 is BGN 10.89 (2019: BGN 10.11). As at 31.12.2021
revaluation fo the amount of BGN 31 thousand, net of taxes was reported in other comprehensive
income.
The assessment is carried out in accordance with Bulgarian Valuation Standards, the Accountancy Act, IFRS 9,
IFRS 13, as well as the accounting policy of the Company.
According to IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement, upon measurement of the fair value of non-financial assets
takes into account the ability of a market participant to generate economic benefits through using the asset in
order to maximize its value or through its sale to another market participant, who will be using it in such a way.
The assessment at fair value as at 31.12.2021 and 31.12.2020 is based on the use of valuation techniques in the
case of unobservable data adjusted for the specific situation where no active market exists for similar assets.
This category includes all assets and liabilities whose valuation is not based on available, regularly accessible and
observable information. Directly or indirectly observable input data used in the evaluation is subject to
adjustments. For this reason used hypotheses are classified at level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.
Upon this assessment the discounted dividend method is applied, which is based on the income approach.
Revaluation to the fair value
Shares of ZAD “Energy” AD

31 December 2020
437

Change
33

31 December 2021
470

In 2021 the Company received dividend to the amount of BGN 95 thousand. (2020: BGN 75 thousand)
9.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities

In compliance with the requirements of the Corporate Income Taxation Act, the Company has the right to
carry over the tax loss within 5 years from its occurrence. Upon recognition of deferred tax assets the
likelihood that the separate differences would reverse in future, and the possibilities of the Company to
generate sufficient taxable income were taken into account. On the basis of this approach the management
considered to not recognize an asset of deferred tax of tax loss for carry over for the amount of BGN 791,705
thousand in the financial statements for 2021, by BGN 294,994 thousand is the tax loss for carryover occurred
in 2021, BGN 225,109 thousand – in 2020 and BGN 144,970 thousand – in 2019 and BGN 126,632 – in 2018.
The likelihood that these temporary differences would reverse in future, and the possibilities of the Company
to generate sufficient taxable profit within the next 5 years were taken into account, against which the
temporary difference to be deducted.
The deadline for deduction of tax losses is 31.12.2023 for tax loss of BGN 126,632 thousand reported in 2018;
31.12.2024 – for tax loss of BGN 144,970 thousand reported in 2019; 31.12.2025 – for tax loss of BGN
225,109 thousand reported in 2020; and 31.12.2026 – for tax loss of BGN 294,994 reported in 2021.
The Company realized tax losses, as follows:

Tax period

Period for tax losses
deduction

2016
2018
2019
2020
2021

2017 - 2021
2019 - 2023
2020 - 2024
2021 - 2025
2022 - 2026

Total tax losses for carryforward

31 December 31 December
2021
2020
11 464
126 632
126 632
144 970
144 970
225 109
225 109
294 994
791 705

508 175

10%

10%

Expected deferred tax asset

79 171

50 818

Unrecognized deferred tax asset

79 171

50 818

Applicable tax rate
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Deferred taxes resulted from other temporary tax differences may be thoroughly represented, as follows:

BGN ‘000

Assets
BGN ‘000

BGN ‘000

31 December
2020
Assets
BGN ‘000

-

27 952

-

45 941

27 952

40

-

37

-

40

37

-

( 924)

-

-

( 924)

-

-

(1 780)
(1 066)
( 5)

-

(1 717)
( 383)
( 9)

(1 780)
(1 066)
( 5)

(1 717)
( 383)
( 9)

-

(4 993)

-

(4 126)

(4 993)

(4 126)

-

(5 019)

-

(33 549)

(5 019)

(33 549)

-

(9 730)

-

(6 493)

(9 730)

(6 493)

-

(14)

-

(15)

(14)

(15)

-

( 144)

-

( 186)

( 144)

( 186)

45 981

(23 675)

27 989

(46 478)

22 306

(18 489)

31 December 2021
BGN ‘000

Assets
BGN ‘000

45 941

Liabilities

Property, plant and
equipment
Impairment of financial assets
Impairment of investments
related parties
Impairment litigations
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Employee retirement
compensation liabilities
Provisions
Unrecognised interests, poor
capitalisation
Income of individuals
Unused leaves and social
security contributions
Total

31 December 2020
Liabilities

31 December
2021
Liabilities

The change of the deferred taxes during the period could be represented as follows:
Deferred tax liabilities/
(assets)

31 December
2020
BGN ‘000

Property, plant and equipment
Impairment of financial assets
Impairment of investments related parties
Impairment litigations
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Employee retirement compensation
liabilities
Provisions
Unrecognised interests, poor capitalisation
Income of individuals
Unused leaves and social security
contributions
Net liabilities

Recognized in
Recognized in
the other
the profit or
comprehensive
loss
income
BGN ‘000
BGN ‘000

27 952
37
(1 717)
( 383)
( 9)

(5 770)

(4 126)
(33 549)
(6 493)
( 15)

61
28 530
(3 237)
1

( 186)
(18 489)

42
17 961

31 December
2021
BGN ‘000

23 759
3

45 941
40
( 924)
(1 780)
(1 066)
( 5)

(928)

(4 993)
(5 019)
(9 730)
( 14)

(924)
(63)
(683)
4

22 834

The change of the deferred taxes during the prior period could be represented as follows:

( 144)
22 306
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31 December
2019
BGN ‘000

Property, plant and equipment
Impairment of financial assets
Impairment litigation
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Employee retirement compensation
liabilities
Provisions
Unrecognised interests, poor capitalisation
Income of individuals
Unused leaves and social security
contributions
Net liabilities

Recognized in
Recognized in
the other
the profit or
comprehensive
loss
income
BGN ‘000
BGN ‘000

31 December
2020
BGN ‘000

33 128
33
(1 696)
( 389)
( 22)

(5 176)

(4 254)

92

(30 555)
(3 602)
( 7)

(2 994)
(2 891)
( 8)

(33 549)
(6 493)
( 15)

( 191)

5

( 186)

(7 555)

(10 974)

4
( 21)
6
13
36

40

27 952
37
(1 717)
( 383)
( 9)
(4 126)

(18 489)

The amounts recognized in other comprehensive income relate to the revaluation of non-financial assets,
revaluation of defined benefit plan obligations and revaluation to the fair value of financial assets.
10. Inventories
Inventories recognized in the individual statement of financial position can be analyzed, as follows:
31.12.2021 31.12.2020
BGN ‘000 BGN ‘000
Spare parts
Lignite coal
Materials for repair
Fuel oil (heavy oil)
Other materials
Limestone
Reagents
Other liquid fuels
Lube oils
Construction materials
Advance paid for the supply of spare parts

Inventories at cost
Accumulated depreciation

55 964
10 571
6 315
1 941
631
709
486
91
175
19
7
76 909

61 475
12 186
6 885
1 286
1 056
663
596
89
68
12
3
84 319

87 566
(10 657)
76 909

88 142
(3 823)
84 319

In 2021 a total of BGN 208 643 thousand of inventories were reported as expense in the profit or loss
(2020: BGN 140 718 thousand). This amount also includes impairment of inventories to the amount of
BGN 7 161 thousand (2020: BGN 247 thousand).
As of 31 December 2021, the Company carried out evaluation of the major part of inventories through an
independent licensed appraiser. Upon review of inventories it was stated that their carrying value differ
significantly from their net realizable value. Inventories which net realizable value was lower than their
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carrying amount were impaired in the amount of BGN 7,161 thousands by reducing their carrying
amount. The difference is reported in the individual profit or loss statement of the line "Other expenses".
During the review of inventories, an impairment of BGN 172 thousands was restored. The difference was
reported in the individual profit or loss statement of the line "Other income".
As of 31 December 2020, the Company carried out evaluation of the major part of inventories through an
independent licensed appraiser. Upon review of inventories it was stated that their carrying value did not
differ significantly from their net realizable value.
As at 31 December 2020 the Company reported impairment of wastes of ferrous and non-ferrous metals
(scrap) at the amount of BGN 247 thousand, on the grounds of change in the exchange prices under new
exchange contracts concluded in 2020 for purchase and sale of goods through the brokerage of members
of the Sofia Commodity Exchange.
The difference is reported in the individual statement of profit or loss under “Other expenses”.
Movement of inventories’ impairment

Balance as of 1 January
Accrued impairment for the period
Reversal of impairment
Derecognized
Balance on 31 December

2021
BGN ‘000

2020
BGN ‘000

3 823
7 161
(172)
(155)
10 657

3 887
247
(311)
3 823

As at 31 December 2021 the inventories have not been pledged as collateral of liabilities.
Greenhouse gas emissions
TPP Maritza East 2 EAD has a Greenhouse Gas Emissions Permit № 46 - H1 / 2011. The company is
obliged, in accordance with condition 5 of the Permit, as well as in connection with the requirements of
Article 48 (1) of the LPIC, within the current year until 30th of April, to submit a certain number of
allowances equal to the total amount of emissions released by the installation in the previous year, verified
by a registered independent verifier.
The provision of the required amount of allowances for greenhouse gas emissions is carried out through
purchase, as the allowances are received on a special account of the operators of installations in the
National Register, administered by the Executive Environment Agency.
On 16.07.2021 between TPP Maritza East 2 EAD (as Buyer) and BEH EAD (as Seller) a framework
agreement was signed for the current purchase of European allowances for greenhouse gas emissions of
the type "EUA", required for the operation of the power plant. In accordance with the provisions of the
contract, after each deal concluded for the sale of electricity, TPP Maritza East 2 EAD sends an
application to BEH EAD for the purchase of the respective estimated quantity of allowances issued.
The available allowances on the account of TPP Maritza East 2 EAD in the National Register are reported
as an asset upon their acquisition and are reported as current operating expense when the greenhouse
gases emitted by the Company exceed the available allowances on the account up to the amount issued.
The difference between the available allowances on the account and the emitted greenhouse gases is
presented in the Balance Sheet of the company as a current asset.
As of 31 December 2021, quotas amounting to BGN 28,533 thousands (as of 31 December 2020 BGN 0)
are available on the account of TPP Maritza East 2 EAD in the National Register, which were purchased
in 2021, but in connection with auctions for the sale of electricity held in 2021 with a delivery date in
2022.
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Trade and other receivables

31.12.2021
BGN ‘000

Trade receivables
Impairment of trade receivables
Trade receivables, net amount
Other receivables – Deposited guarantee securities
Other receivables, net amount
In-court and judged receivables
Impairment of in-court and judged receivables
In-court and judged receivables, net amount
Financial assets
Prepaid insurance expenses
Budget receivables
Paid advances
Installments to account “National Investment Plan”
Non-financial assets
Trade and other receivables

486
( 2)
484
313
313
18 646
(17 803)
843
1 640
1 041
353
17
2
1 413
3 053

Trade receivables as of 31 December are presented, as follows:

31.12.2020
BGN ‘000
212
( 2)
210
313
313
18 219
(17 171)
1 048
1 571
5 098
11
49
5 158
6 729

31.12.2021
BGN ‘000

31.12.2020
BGN ‘000

59
290
135
484

1
174
35
210

Receivables from customers under sales of electricity
Receivables from customers under provided services
Receivables from customers under sales of materials

As at 31.12.2021 the Company has not pledged its receivables from clients as collateral of liabilities.
All trade, in-court and judged receivables as of 31.12.2021 have been reviewed for indications for
impairment.
The impairment as of 31.12.2021 is calculated in accordance with the methodology, adopted in the
accounting policy of the Company.
As at 31.12.2021 the impairment of trade, court and awarded receivables is to the amount of BGN 632
thousand. (2020: BGN 203 thousand). The impairment is reported in the individual statement of profit or
loss under “Accrued/reversed impairment of financial assets”.
The change in impairment of the trade, in-court and judged receivables can be presented in the following
way:
Impairment
Non-current and current trade
receivables
Court and judged receivables
Impairment
Non-current and current trade
receivables
Court and judged receivables

Expected credit losses
as of 31.12.2020

Expected credit losses
as of 31.12.2021

Change 2021

( 2)

-

( 2)

(17 171)
(17 173)
Expected credit losses
as of 31.12.2019

(632)
(632)

(17 803)
(17 805)
Expected credit losses
as of 31.12.2020

Change 2020

( 10)

8

( 2)

(16 960)
(16 970)

(211)
(203)

(17 171)
(17 173)
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Receivables from related parties, current
31.12.2021
BGN ‘000

31.12.2020
BGN ‘000

Trade receivables
Other receivables – guarantee security deposits
Payment for capital increase of Beroe PFC
Total receivables from related parties
Loans granted to related parties, gross amount
Accumulated impairment of loans to related parties.
Loans granted to related parties
Financial assets
Receivables from related parties

166 567
8 517
175 084
175 084
175 084

45 678
1 402
550
47 630
1 377
( 1)
1 376
49 006
49 006

Change in impairment of receivables from related parties

2021
BGN ‘000

2020
BGN ‘000

(1)
1
-

(8)
7
(1)

Balance as of 1 January
Impairment Reversed
Balance as of 31 December
13.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include the following items:
Cash at bank and in hand:
- Bulgarian levs
- Japanese yen
- Euro
- British pounds
Blocked cash of special purpose
Effect from expected credit losses

Cash in bank accounts
Cash in hand
Blocked cash of special purpose
Cash in the statements of cash flows
Impairment of cash
Cash in the statements of financial position

31.12.2021
BGN ‘000

31.12.2020
BGN ‘000

12 543
1
11
1
12 556
150
(52)
12 654

26 610
1
19
1
26 631
150
(91)
26 690

31.12.2021

31.12.2020

BGN ‘000

BGN ‘000

12 486
70
150
12 706
(52)
12 654

26 607
24
150
26 781
(91)
26 690

The sum of cash and cash equivalents, blocked for the Company as of 31 December 2021, to the amount
of BGN 150 thousand (31 December 2020: BGN 150 thousand), represent funds in a special purpose
account and serve as collateral within the meaning of Art.19, para 2 of the Rules on the Conditions and
Procedure for Access to the Electricity Transmission System and Distribution Networks.
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All of the Company’s cash in commercial banks as of 31.12.2021 were reviewed for indications of
impairment. As at 31 December 2021 the impairment was calculated in accordance to the methodology
adopted as per the accounting policy of the Company.
In 2021 the charged impairment of cash and cash equivalents is to the amount of BGN 39 thousand. (In
2020: reversed impairment BGN 115 thousand). The impairment is reported in the separate statement of
profit or loss under “Accrued/reversed impairment of financial assets”.
The change in impairment of cash can be presented in the following way:

Balance as of 1 January
Impairment Reversed
Balance as of 31 December

14.

Shareholders’ equity

14.1.

Share capital

2021

2020

BGN ‘000

BGN ‘000

91
(39)
52
2021

206
(115)
91
2020

The registered capital of the Company as of 31.12.2021 consists of 68,763,161 ordinary shares with par
value of BGN 10 each. All shares are entitled to dividend and liquidation share and represent one vote
from the general meeting of the Company shareholders.
31.12.2021
31.12.2020
Number of
Number of
shares
shares
Number of issued and fully paid-in shares:
At the beginning of the year
68 763 161
8 967 635
Issue of shares
59 795 526
Total number of shares authorized at the end of the year
68 763 161
68 763 161
In connection with the letter Reg. No 4864/07.02.2020. by the Minister of Energy on the occasion of the
Decision of the 44th National Assembly, promoted in the State Gazette, issue 11 dated 07.02.2020 on
taking all necessary measures for the proper functioning of TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD and taking into
account the fact that the capital increase is one of the priority measures whose implementation will
significantly improve the financial performance of the company, an increase of the share capital of TPP
Maritsa East 2 EAD was made.
By a decision under item 1 of Protocol No 6-2020/10.02.2020, the Board of Directors of Bulgarian
Energy Holding EAD decided to increase the capital of TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD by the amount of BGN
597,955,260.00.
By a decision under item 1 of Protocol No E-RD-21-4/12.02.2020 of the Minister of Energy a permit was
granted to BEH EAD to increase the capital of the subsidiary TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD pursuant to
art.193 of the Commercial Act by issuing a new issue of shares.
By a decision under item 1 of Protocol No.11-2020/02.03.2020 the Board of Directors of Bulgarian
Energy Holding EAD decided to increase the capital of TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD by the amount of BGN
597,955,260.00 by issuing of 59,795,526 new ordinary registered shares with voting right and a par value
of BGN 10 (ten) each.
The increase of the equity of TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD was entered in the Commercial Register on
09.03.2020. In this way the share capital amounted to BGN 687,631,610.00, allocated to 68,763,161
ordinary registered voting shares with a par value of BGN 10 each.
The upper-stated sum was formed after in-kind contribution of the following obligations of TPP Maritsa
East 2 EAD to BEH EAD:
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Name/No. of Contract

Loan agreement No.39-2015/25.05.2015 - 13790 – interest remainder
Loan agreement No.62-2016/10.06.2016 - 14587 – interest remainder
Loan agreement No.74-2016/12.08.2016 - 14674 – interest remainder
Loan agreement No.87-2016/24.11.2016 - 14832 – interest remainder
Loan agreement No.28-2017/27.04.2017 - 15132 – interest remainder
Loan agreement No.7-2018/12.02.2018 - 15583 – principals and
interests
Loan agreement No.51-2018/29.05.2018 - 15827 – principals and
interests
Loan agreement No.12-2019/10.01.2019 - 16189 – principals and
interests
Agreement No.86/29.06.2009 – principals and interests
Contract for purchase and sale of allowances No.31-2018/
15.04.2018_15710 – remainder of interests for delay
TOTAL:
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Obligation to
transform into
capital
(in BGN)

Obligation to
transform into
capital
(in EURO)

1,366,961.42
2,977,265.97
1,655,279.57
2,188,817.95
4,324,873.10

698,916.28
1,522,251.92
846,331.01
1,119,124.85
2,211,272.50

6,305,502.64

3,223,952.31

75,231,934.79

38,465,477.46

492,425,546.89
514,907.15*

251,773,184.22
263,267.84

10,964,170.52
597,955,260.00

5,605,891.37
305,729,669.75

The sole shareholder of the Company is Bulgarian Energy Holding EAD, which is owned by the Ministry
of Energy.
14.2.

Reserves

The reserves of the Company include statutory and other reserves, reserves from remeasurement of
defined benefit plans and revaluation reserves of non-current assets.
Statutory reserves
Statutory reserves are formed by the joint-stock companies as profit distribution, pursuant to Art. 246 of
the Commercial Act. They are accumulated until they reach one-tenth or a bigger part of the share capital.
Sources to form the statutory reserves comprise of at least one tenth of net profit, share premiums, as well
as funds stipulated in the Company Statute or by decision of the general meeting of shareholders.
Statutory reserves may be used to cover losses from current and previous reporting periods. In certain
cases, determined by the law, statutory reserves may be used to increase the share capital and dividend
distribution.
Other reserves
Other reserves are reserves that the Company makes according to shareholders decision, except the
reserves required by the legislation. Other reserves can be used to cover losses, to increase share capital, to
distribute dividends, etc. Other reserves include revaluation of tangible fixed assets since 1997, a reserve
from distribution protocol with NEK, reduction of the participation share of DSSD Radnevo,
compensations and donations related to previous years, profit distributed to reserves and additional
reserves acquired by “GUP TPP 2” integration in 2000.
By resolution under Protocol No.30-2016 from 2016 of the sole shareholder a decision was taken to cover
losses from previous years on the account of other reserves to the amount of BGN 77,913 thousand.
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans
According to the requirements of IAS 19, the Company reports actuarial profits and losses into reserve
from remeasurement of defined benefit plans.
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Revaluation reserve of non-financial assets
Revaluation reserve of non-financial assets is used to reflect the increases in the fair value of property,
plant, machinery and equipment and decreases to the extent where these decreases are associated with an
increase of the same asset previously recognized in other comprehensive income.
15.
Provisions
The carrying values of provisions can be presented, as follows:

Carrying value as of 1 January 2021
Accrued
Carrying value as of 31 December 2021
Reported in the separate statement of financial
position as:
Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities

Provision for
greenhouse
gas emissions
BGN ‘000
334 607
(285 294)
49 313

Provision for
recultivation

49 313

5 488
-

Total

BGN ‘000 BGN ‘000
5 488
340 095
- (285 294)
5 488
54 801

5 488
49 313

Provision for greenhouse gas emissions
As of 31 December 2021 the Company reported provisions for shortage of greenhouse gas emissions
allowances at the rate of 306 369 t/CO2, amounting to BGN 49 313 thousand. The shortage quantity
represents the difference between the quantities actually emmitted and verified 6 673 429 t/CO2 and the
available amount of 6 367 060 t/CO2 in the account of the Company in the National Registrar. In
connection with the Framework agreement for purchase and sale of greenhouse gas emission allowances
from 16.07.2021, signed between TPP Maritza East 2 EAD and BEH EAD, by 31.12.2021 BEH EAD
bought and sold to TPP Maritza East 2 ”EAD part of the required amount (6 363 659 t / CO2) of
greenhouse gas allowances to cover the obligation to the National Register for 2021. The value of the
provisions is calculated in accordance with the purchase prices of allowances achieved by BEH EAD after
31.12.2021 until the date of preparation of this report.
As of 31 December 2020 the Company reported provisions for shortage of greenhouse gas emissions
allowances at the rate of 4 276 599 t/CO2, amounting to BGN 334 607 thousand. The shortage quantity
represents the difference between the quantities actually issued and verified and the granted amount of
allowances provided under NIP (National Implementation Plan) and the other quantities of allowances,
which are available at the account of the Company in the National Register after fulfillment of the
obligation for 2019. In connection with a decision taken by the Sole owner of the capital of the Company,
by 24.03.2021 BEH EAD purchased part of the required amount (3,100,000 t / CO2) of the greenhouse
gas allowances required to cover the obligation of TPP Maritza East 2 EAD to the National Register for
2020. The value of the provisions is calculated in accordance with the purchase prices of the quotas
achieved by BEH EAD.
Provision for recultivation of disturbed lands – Gypsum refuse dump (landfill) for disposal of
gypsum from FGD plants
In accordance with Ordinance 26 on the reclamation of disturbed lands, amelioration of low-producing
lands, removal and recovery of the humus layer, the Company has the obligation to carry out
technological and biological reclamation of the landfill after its filling up with gypsum from FGD plants.
According to the landfill capacity and the amount of deposited gypsum, the landfill is expected to be filled
up within 5 years. The amount of the technological and biological reclamation under the project amounts
to BGN 5,488 thousand. According to IAS 16 – Property, plant and equipment, the value of one property,
plant or equipment also includes the initial estimate of the expected cost for the recovery of the site
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(reclamation of the land), where the asset was located, after it is withdrawn from use. The obligation for
these expenses is treated as a provision and it is reported under IAS 37 – Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets. The present discounted value of the provision is capitalized within the value of the
facility (Gypsum refuse dump) and will be recognized as depreciation cost every year. As of 31.12.2013 the
present value of the provision was measured at BGN 4,607 thousand using a discount rate of 3.56%. The
discount factors are determined at the end of each year towards the interest rates of long-term
government securities. For the purposes of discounting, the effective annual interest rate of 3.56% was
used. It is based on the profitability of emissions of long-term government securities (with a 10-year
maturity). The remaining part of the reclamation value to the amount of BGN 881 thousand will be
reported each year as an interest expense, by which the provision payable will be increased. As of
31.12.2021 the best estimate for the necessary provision for reclamation of the landfill amounts to BGN
5,488 thousand (31 December 2020: BGN 5,488 thousand).
16.

Staff remunerations

16.1.

Employee benefits expenses

Staff remuneration costs include:
Staff costs

Wages and salaries
Pension and health insurance
Expenses for social allowances and benefits
Food costs
Expenses for post employment benefits
Compensations at employer’s cost

2021
BGN ‘000
69 877
21 008
10 403
5 481
3 479
1 075
111 323

2020
BGN ‘000
71 272
21 572
10 809
5 399
2 813
915
112 780

16.2. Liabilities for retirement and other employee benefits
Post-employment obligations to employees recognized in the separate statement of financial position,
consist of the following amounts:
Non-current:
Non-current post-employment obligations to personnel
Current:
Current post-employment obligations to personnel
Other short-term payables to personnel
Current post-employment and other obligations to personnel

31.12.2021
BGN ‘000
45 350

31.12.2020
BGN ‘000
38 169

4 573
10 556
15 129

3 087
9 884
12 971

The current portion of payables to personnel represent obligations to employees of the Company, which
shall be settled in 2022. Since no employee is entitled to earlier retirement, the remaining portion of postemployment obligations are considered long-term.
According to Bulgarian Labour Legislation and the Collective Bargaining Agreement (CBA) upon
termination of the employment after the employee has acquired the right to retire due to length of service
and age, irrespective of the grounds for termination, the Company is obliged to pay to the person a certain
number of gross monthly salaries depending on the length of service in the Company.
According to Bulgarian Labour Legislation and the Collective Bargaining Agreement (CBA) the payments
upon retirement due to sickness amount to the sum of a certain number of gross monthly salaries
depending on the length of service of the person in the Company. The compensation shall be paid
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provided that the person has at least 5 years of total service and has not received any compensation on the
same grounds in the recent 5 years.
The main assumptions used upon defining payables for post employment benefits are given below:
Discount rate
Future increase of the remunerations for the following year
Future increase of the remunerations of any subsequent year
18-30 years
Staff turnover:
31-40 years
41-50 years
51-60 years
Over 60 years

31.12.2021
0.60%
0%
0%
7.00%
4.00%
3.00%
2.00%
0.00%

31.12.2020
0.50%
0%
0%
7.00%
4.00%
3.00%
2.00%
0.00%

The post employment benefits plan is not financed.
The plan exposes the Company to actuarial risks such as interest rate risk, risk of change in life expectancy
and inflation risk.
Interest rate risk
•
The present value of the obligations under defined benefit plans is calculated using a discount rate
determined on the basis of the market yield of government securities. The maturity of the securities
corresponds to the estimated term of the obligations under the defined benefit plans and they are
denominated in Bulgarian levs. A decline in the market yield of government securities will lead to increase
of the obligations under defined benefit plans of the Company.
Risk of change in life expectancy
•
Increase in the estimated life expectancy of employees would lead to increase in the obligations
under defined benefit plans.
Inflation risk
•
Increase of inflation would lead to increase in the obligations under defined benefit plans.
The management measures once a year, with the help of an independent actuary, the defined benefit
obligations. The actual value of the obligation may differ from the pre-assessment because of its
uncertainty. As of 31 December 2021 the estimate of the defined benefit obligations to the amount of
BGN 49 923 thousand (31 December 2020: BGN 41 256 thousand) is based on statistical indicators for
inflation, cost of health care and mortality rate. Another effective factor are the future increases in salaries
provided by the Company. Discount rates are determined as of the end of each year in relation to the
interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds, which are denominated in the currency, in which defined
benefits will be paid out, and which have maturity date, approximately corresponding to the maturity date
of the respective post-employment obligations. For the purposes of discounting, the effective annual
interest rate of 0.60% is used. It is based on the yield of emissions of long-term government securities
(with a 10-year maturity). Whereas, the average period to retirement is longer than 10 years, the effective
annual discount rate has to be determined by extrapolation of data on the effective annual yield of longterm government securities. Uncertainty in the estimate exists especially with respect to the trend for
change in healthcare costs, which can vary significantly in future estimates of the value of defined benefit
obligations.
The actuarial model is sensitive to changes in the actuarial assumptions. These assumptions determine the
values of model parameters and for the most part are based on information obtained from the Company.
Any changes in these assumptions would lead to a change in the amount of the current value of the
obligations, and also to the formation of actuarial profit or loss. In case of differences between adopted
actuarial assumptions and actually occurred events (changes in mortality rates, interest rates, staff turnover
rate, growth rate of salaries, etc.) there is a probability that an actuarial profit or loss could arise in a
subsequent accounting period.
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Any change in the Collective Bargaining Agreement (CBA) with respect to the rate of post-employment
payments or in the prerequisites for their receipt would also lead to a change in the present obligations
value and to occurrence of an expense for past service. In case the Company undertakes staff cuts, this
would also lead to a significant change in the present value of obligations upon their subsequent
evaluation, as well as to the realization of profit (loss) from these staff cuts.
The changes in present value of the obligation for post-employment benefits are, as follows:
Amount
BGN ‘000.
42 538
261
2 912
(3 993)
( 99)
12
( 111)
( 363)
335
( 698)
41 256
211
3 203
(4 303)
276
330
( 54)
9 280
8 125
1 155
49 923

Obligations for post employment benefits on 1 January 2020
Interest expenses
Current service expenses
Past service expenses
Paid employment benefits
Actuarial gains recognized in profit or loss, including:
Revaluations - actuarial losses arising from changes in demographic and financial assumptions
Revaluations - actuarial gains arising from changes in actual experience
Actuarial losses recognized in other comprehensive income, including:
Revaluations - actuarial losses arising from changes in demographic and financial assumptions
Revaluations - actuarial losses arising from changes in actual experience
Obligations for post employment benefits on 31 December 2020
Interest expenses
Current service expenses
Past service expenses
Paid benefits to employees
Actuarial gains recognized in profit or loss, including:
Revaluations - actuarial losses arising from changes in demographic and financial assumptions
Revaluations - actuarial gains arising from changes in actual experience
Actuarial losses recognized in other comprehensive income, including:
Revaluations - actuarial losses arising from changes in demographic and financial assumptions
Revaluations - actuarial losses arising from changes in actual experience
Obligations for post employment benefits on 31 December 2020
Expenses for post- employment benefits

The total amount of expenses under defined benefit plans of the Company, recognized in profit or loss,
can be presented as follows:
2021
2020
BGN ‘000 BGN ‘000
Current service expenses
Interest expenses
Net actuarial profits recognized during the year
Expenses for post employment benefits, recognized in profit or loss

3 203
211
276
3 690

2 912
261
(99)
3 074

Interest expenses and all other expenses presented above are included in the individual statement of profit
or loss under “Employee benefits expenses” (see Note 16.1). The Company recognizes all actuarial profits
and losses in accordance with the requirements of IAS 19.
The total amount of expenses under defined benefit plans of the Company, recognized in the other
comprehensive income, can be presented as follows:
2021
2020

TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD
Separate Financial Statements
for the year 2021

Revaluations - actuarial losses arising from changes in actual experience
Revaluations - actuarial losses arising from changes in demographic and
financial assumptions
Total expenses recognized in the other comprehensive income
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BGN ‘000

BGN ‘000

1 155

(698)

8 125
9 280

335
(363)

Actuarial profits and losses are recognized as income and expense or other comprehensive income, by the
actuarial profits/losses related to retirement due to old age and length of service are recognized as other
comprehensive income, and those related to retirement due to sickness are recognized in profit or loss.
Actuarial profits or losses are recognized for the estimated average number of remaining years of service
of the staff.
Past service expenses are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis for the average period until the
benefits become unconditionally vested. To the extent that benefits are already unconditionally vested
following the introduction of or changes in the post-employment benefits plan, the Company recognizes
the expenses for past service with immediate effect.
17.

Financing

31.12.2021 31.12.2020
BGN ‘000 BGN ‘000

On 1 January
Recognized in the profit or loss statement
On 31 December

25 238
(3 081)
22 157

28 324
(3 086)
25 238

Short-term
Long-term

3 043
19 114
22 157

3 081
22 157
25 238

Government grants are received under programs and funds for the construction of plant and equipment
for environmental purposes.
Funding is associated with the following projects:
- ISPA funding for the construction of FGD plants for Unit 5 and Unit 6. Assets have been constructed
and put into operation. The balance of funding as of 31 December 2021 includes the carrying value of
assets amounting to BGN 7 457 thousand (31 December 2020: BGN 8 326 thousand);
- Funding from KIDSF for the construction of a Gypsum Dewatering Plant and Circulation Pump
Station. Assets have been constructed and put into operation. The balance of funding as of 31 December
2021 includes the carrying value of assets amounting to BGN 12 782 thousand (31 December 2020: 14
800 thousand);
- Funding from Fund “Energy resources” for the construction of landfill. Assets have been constructed
and put into operation. The balance of funding as of 31 December 2021 includes the carrying value of
assets amounting to BGN 1 918 thousand (31 December 2020: 2 112 thousand);
As of 31 December 2021 none unfulfilled requirements and breaches have been found in relation to
fundings received.
18.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables

31.12.2021
BGN ‘000

31.12.2020
BGN ‘000

9 668

38 206

TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD
Separate Financial Statements
for the year 2021

55

Payables under performance guarantees
Insurance liabilities
Deposit for participation in electricity auction
Payables for guarantees for participation in public procurement
Financial liabilities

6 211
679
20
21
16 599

5 726
5 430
20
36
49 418

Advances received
Payables on contributions of SES fund
Budget payables
Non-financial liabilities

107 883
13 759
44 749
166 391

39
2 055
4 244
6 338

Current trade and other payables

182 990

55 756

The advances received represent prepaid amounts under contracts for future delivery of net active
electricity with counterparties on the liberalized market.
The conditions for the afore-mentioned trade and other payables are, as follows:
- Trade payables are not interest-bearing and on a regular basis, according to the contractual relations
they shall be settled within 60 days;
- Tax liabilities are not interest-bearing and shall be settled within the statutory time limits;
- All other liabilities are not interest-bearing and usually they are settled within 14 days.
Trade payables included in the separate statement of financial position include:

Supplies of civil construction works, plant and equipment
Supplies of materials and spare parts
Supplies of natural gas and black oil
Other supplies
Total trade payables

31.12.2021
BGN ‘000

31.12.2020
BGN ‘000

4 196
2 454
213
2 805
9 668

22 122
9 752
591
5 741
38 206

The net carrying value of current trade and other payables is considered to be a reasonable approximate
estimate of their fair value.
19.

Liabilities to related parties

Liabilities under received loans
Trade liabilities
Other liabilities
Financial liabilities at amortized cost to related parties
20.

31.12.2021
BGN ‘000

31.12.2020
BGN ‘000

1 134 477
27 324
21 070
1 182 871

698 862
102 813
21 070
822 745

Revenues from sales

Sales revenues of the Company can be analyzed as follows:
20.1. Revenues from contracts with customers
Markets and significant products and services:
Revenues from sales of electricity

2021

2020

BGN ‘000
1 329 501

BGN ‘000
446 465

TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD
Separate Financial Statements
for the year 2021
Revenues from other contracts with customers
Revenue under contracts with customers

56

2 190

1 764

1 331 691

448 229

In the amount of the revenues from contracts with customers the following revenues from sale of
electricity and available capacity were included:
2021
2020
BGN ‘000 BGN ‘000
Revenue from sales of electricity and available capacity to NEK
Revenue from sales of electricity to NEK - comp. Electricity System Security
Fund
Revenue from sales of electricity on the free market, incl. IBEX
Revenue from participation in regulation up and activated cold reserve to ESO
Revenue from sales of primary and secondary regulation to ESO
Revenue from sales of availability of cold reserve to ESO
Revenue from sales of balancing energy to ESO

Services
Revenues from transportation cards and entrance passes
Revenues from telephone services

Balances on contracts with customers
Trade receivables
Trade receivables, related parties
Trade receivables, impairment

862 468

16 529

215 703

130 742

203 334
43 592
4 335
69
1 329 501

285 735
9 679
2 850
59
871
446 465

2021
BGN ‘000

2020
BGN ‘000

2 152
32
6
2 190

1 712
45
7
1 764

31.12.2021
BGN ‘000
486
166 567
( 2)
167 051

31.12.2020
BGN ‘000
212
45 678
( 2)
45 888

Incomes recognition
Point in time for income recognition
Products that are transferred at a specific point of time
Products and services that are transferred over time
Total:

2021
BGN ‘000

2020
BGN ‘000

38
1 331 653
1 331 691

52
448 177
448 229

Additional clarifications on the revenues from sales are set out in Explanatory Note 4.4.
Revenue/
Income

Approach to recognition under IFRS 15

Approach to recognition under
IFRS 18
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Revenues from
sales of electricity

Electricity supplies are carried out year-round in a
continuous mode of operation. As the customer receives
and consumes benefits simultaneously, the company
transfers control over electricity over time and therefore
meet the obligation to perform and recognize revenue
over time.
Sales revenue is recognized on each transfer of control
over electricity when it is supplied to the buyer and there
are no outstanding obligations that could affect the
buyer’s electricity acceptance.
For each performance obligation that is met over time,
the Company recognizes revenue over time by measuring
the progress achieved towards the full implementation of
the obligation.
There is no financing component in the sales of
electricity as the payment on sales for contracts with
period of duration up to 31 days (one month) is made in
advance and by the latest of the 20th day of the month
following the month of sales for contracts with duration
more than 31 days (one month).
Upon electricity supply a receivable is recognized as this
is the moment when the right to remuneration becomes
unconditional and only expiration of time is required
before the payment becomes due.
Revenue is invoiced under the terms of the contract
concluded.

Revenue is recognized when the
Company has transferred to the
buyer the significant benefits and
risks of ownership of the supplied
electricity.

Revenues from
electricity
balancing

Supplies in electricity balancing are made year-round in a
continuous mode of operation. They are result of
transactions to compensate for the difference between
the quantities of electricity generated and the quantities
under the supply/delivery schedules. As the customer
receives and consumes the benefits simultaneously the
Company transfers the control over electricity from
balancing over time and therefore meets the obligation to
perform and recognizes revenue over time.
Sales revenue is recognized on each transfer of control
over electricity when it is supplied to the buyer and there
are no outstanding obligations that could affect the
buyer’s electricity acceptance. There is no financing
component in electricity sales as the payment on sales is
made within a period of up to 20 days deferred payment.
Upon electricity supply a receivable is recognized as this
is the moment when the right to remuneration becomes
unconditional and only expiration of time is required
before the payment becomes due.

Revenue is recognized when the
Company has transferred to the
buyer the significant benefits and
risks of ownership of the supplied
balancing electricity.

Revenues from
sales of available
capacity

Revenue from provision of cold reserve units is
recognized in the accounting period, in which those units
are provided. By the latest amendments to Electricity
Trading Rules as of 05.05.2020, a centralized market of
ancillary services was integrated through tenders
organized by ESO EAD. In fact, the delivery of ancillary
services after the tenders for primary regulation reserve,
automatic reserve for secondary regulation and manual
reserve for secondary regulation started in January 2021.
Company transfers the control over time and therefore
meets the performance obligation and recognizes income
over time. At the end of the reporting period income is
recognized based on the actual net availability [MWh] of

Revenue is recognized when the
Company has transferred to the
buyer the significant benefits and
risks of ownership of the supplied
available capacity.
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the actual net active capacity (MW) of the contracted
units that are in a Cold reserve state.
Revenues from
disposal of short term assets

Revenues from sales of short-term assets is recognized
when the control over the asset sold is transferred.
Supply arises when assets have been sent to the
customer, risks of potential losses have been passed to
the buyer and/or it has accepted the assets in accordance
with the contract for sale.

Revenue is recognized when the
Company has transferred to the
buyer the significant benefits and
risks of ownership of the supplied
assets. It is considered that the
significant risks and benefits are
transferred to the buyer, when the
customer has accepted the assets
without objection.

Revenues from
services

Revenues from services is recognized in the accounting
period in which the services are provided. Company
transfers control over services over time and therefore
meet the performance obligation and recognize income
over time. If, at the end of the reporting period, the
service under the contract is not fully realized revenue is
recognized on the basis of the actual service provided by
the end of the reporting period as a proportion of the
total services to be provided as the customer receives and
consumes benefits simultaneously. This is determined on
the basis of actual spent or reported time for the work
executed compared to the total expected time for the
service performance.

Revenues from provision of
services are recognized based on
the stage of completion of the
transaction as of the reporting
date. The stage of completion of
the transaction is determined in
proportion to the contract
duration, for which the provision
of the services is agreed. When the
result of the transaction (contract)
cannot be reliably measured, the
revenue is recognized only insofar
as the costs incurred are
recoverable.

21.

Other income

Other revenues of the Company include:

Income from positivie financial result of insurance policies
Income from financing for fixed assets
Income from surplus assets
Revenues from financing for current activities
Income from recovered material impairment
Income from write-offs for liabilities
Rental income
Revenues from penalties/interest of suppliers/customers contracts
Income from insurance claims
Others

2021
BGN ‘000

2020
BGN ‘000

4 510
3 081
1 370
707
172
90
34
31
44
10 039

3 086
1 145
34
34
13
5 734
204
10 250

Income from fundings, recognized in proportion to depreciation, accrued for the period, of assets
acquired with the funding received, is presented as follows:

Financing under:
Grant 12 – Kozloduy International Fund
ISPA Program

2021
BGN ‘000

2020
BGN ‘000

2 018
869

2 023
869
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194
3 081

194
3 086

In connection with the Program for Compensation of Non-Household End Users and compensation
agreements signed between the Ministry of Energy and TPP Maritza East 2 EAD, income from financing
for current activities in the amount of BGN 707 thousand was received as compensation for auxiliary
electricity costs of facilities outside the power plant network.
22.

Expenses for materials

Material expenses include fuel expenses and expenses for other materials, as indicated below:
22.1.

Fuel and electricity costs

Lignite coal
Natural gas
Boiler fuel (heavy oil)
Other liquid fuels
Electricity from balancing market ESO
Auxiliary electricity
Electricity purchased on free market
Electricity from balancing market ESO – regulation
22.2.

Costs of other materials

Limestone
Spare parts
Repairs and maintenance
Labour safety materials
Reagents
Lubricants
Tools and machinery
Other

2021
2020
BGN ‘000 BGN ‘000
173 927
112 747
1 377
782
835
1017
755
614
578
633
511
628
25
212
1
4
178 009
116 637
2021
BGN ‘000

2020
BGN ‘000

14 935
4 287
2 827
624
426
199
170
5
23 473

10 563
6 530
5 348
626
436
181
145
5
23 834

2021
BGN ‘000

2020
BGN ‘000

14 287
12 077
8 222
3 858

14 219
6 983
8 244
3 644

23. Hired services expenses
Hired services expences include:

Repairs and maintenance
Transmission of electricity ESO
Insurance policies
Security
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Staff transportation
Ash disposal
Fee on use of process water
Taxes and charges under the Local Taxes and Charges Act, excise duty
Legal and other consultation
Use of drinking water
Labour safety
Licenses
Telecommunication services
Fixed-terms contracts
Transportation of wastes
Media
Rentals
Other

24. Greenhouse gas emissions costs

Purchase costs for greenhouse gas emissions
Provision costs for greenhouse gas emissions (net)

25.

Accrued/reversed impairment of financial assets

Cash and short-term deposits
Court receivables
Receivables from customers
Loans granted to related parties
Accrued/reversed impairment
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3 163
3 057
1 754
1 402
501
382
299
263
246
240
125
33
4
430
50 343

2 858
1 601
1 726
1 398
413
417
234
383
228
248
203
36
5
438
43 278

2021
BGN ‘000
1 135 635
(285 294)
850 341

2020
BGN ‘000
309 736
29 941
339 677

2021
BGN ‘000
(39)
632
(1)
592

2020
BGN ‘000
(115)
210
(8)
(7)
80

2021
BGN ‘000

2020
BGN ‘000

66 228

22 095

26.
Other expenses
Other expenses of the Company include:

Electricity System Security Fund fee
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11 553
9 238
7 161
4 063
414
69
60
54
31
26
13
6

682
247
5 159
90
58
41
42
25
36
4

2

80

-

117

-

11

356
99 274

302
28 989

2021
BGN ‘000

2020
BGN ‘000

32 385
690
242
211
2
33 530

28 964
712
31
261
26
29 994

2021
BGN ‘000

2020
BGN ‘000

95
17
112

75
62
137

Expenses for interest on overdue payments
Impairment of investment
Impairment of inventories
Expenses for donations
Exchange market charges
Entertainment allowances
Training and qualification
Cost for tax (on expenses) under Corporate Income Tax Act
Other taxes and fees
Expenses for business trips
Expenses for write-offs of claims due to expired limitation period
Penalties under contracts for impaired ecology
Rejection and shortage of property, plant and equipment
Expenses for lawsuits awarded to the respondent
Interests and sanctions to the budget – SES Fund
Other

27.

Financial income and costs

Financial expenses for the accounting periods presented can be analyzed, as follows:

Expenses for interests on loans and borrowings
Interest costs under rescheduling agreements
Expenses for fees and commissions
Net expenses for interests on defined benefit plans
Negative differences from changes in foreign exchange rates

Financial income for the presented accounting periods can be analyzed, as follows:

Other financial income
Bank account interest income

28.

Income tax expenses

The expected tax expenses based on the applicable tax rate for Bulgaria to the amount of 10% (2020:
10%), and actually recognized tax expenses in the profit or loss can be reconciled, as follows:
2021
2020
BGN ‘000 BGN ‘000
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Loss before taxation
Tax rate
Expected income tax expense

(119 465)
10%
-

(339 599)
10%
-

Tax effects from:
Increases in the financial result for tax purposes
Decreases in financial result for tax purposes
Current revenue from income tax

(22 332)
39 884
-

(47 735)
36 286
-

Deferred tax income /(expenses):
Origination and reversal of temporary differences
Income tax expenses

(17 961)
(17 961)

10 974
10 974

Deferred tax expenses, recognized in other comprehensive income

(22 834)

(40)

Unrecognized deferred tax assets

2021
BGN‘000

Tax loss for the period
Tax rate
Unrecognized deferred tax asset on tax loss for the period

294 994
10%
29 499

2020
BGN ‘000
225 109
10%
22 511

Note 9 provides information on deferred tax assets and liabilities, including the amounts recognized in the
other comprehensive income.
29.

Dividends

In 2021 and 2020 the Company did not distribute any dividends.
30.
Related parties and transactions with related parties
The Company discloses the following related parties:
Owner of the equity of the Company exercising control /Parent Company/
Bulgarian Energy Holding EAD
Owner of the equity of the parent company
The Bulgarian State through the Minister of Energy
Subsidiaries
PFC Beroe – Stara Zagora EAD
TPP Maritsa East 2 (9 and 10) EAD until 26.10.2020
Entities under common control with the Company (entities within the Group)
National Energy Company EAD, NPP Kozloduy EAD, Mini Maritsa - Iztok EAD, Bulgargaz EAD,
Bulgartel EAD, Bulgartransgaz EAD, Electricity System Operator EAD, NPP Kozloduy – New Builds
EAD, HPP Kozloduy EAD, Interpriborservice OOD, Bulgartel-Skopje DOOEL, Balkan Gas Hub EAD.
Joint ventures and Associates for BEH Group
ICGB AD, South Stream Bulgaria AD, ContourGlobal Maritsa East 3 AD, ContourGlobal Operations
Bulgaria AD, Transbalkan Electric Power Trading SA - NECO S.A., Hydro Power Company Gorna Arda
AD, ZAD Energy, POD Allianz Bulgaria AD
Other
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Independent Bulgarian Energy Exchange EAD and all entities related to the State.
Key management personnel of the Company:
Boncho Ivanov Bonev - Chairman of the BoD
Zhivko Dimitrov Dinchev – Member of the BoD and Executive Director
Boyan Ivanov Boev – Member of the BoD
Ruslan Tanev Germanov - Member of the BoD
Milan Angelov Milanov - Member of the BoD
Key management personnel of the Parent company:
Veselina Lachezarova Kanatova-Buchkova – Chairman of the BoD
Ivan Todorov Andreev – Member of the BoD and Executive Director
Stelian Penchev Koev – Member of the BoD
Diyan Stanimirov Dimitrov - Member of the BoD
Zheko Mihailov Zhekov - Member of the BoD
Plamen Dilkov Dilkov - Member of the BoD
Anton Georgiev Simeonov - Member of the BoD
Unless otherwise explicitly specified, the transactions with related parties have not been carried out under
special terms and no guarantees have been provided or received. Estimated amounts are usually paid
through bank transfer or by offsetting.
30.1.

Transactions with the sole owner

Purchase of goods and services:
- purchase of services from BEH EAD
- purchase of GHG emissions from BEH EAD
- accrued interest on late payments for green house emmissions
- accrued interests on loan from BEH EAD
- accrued interest on late payments for dividend and under holding
agreement from BEH EAD
Payments of principals on loans received from BEH EAD
Payments for purchases of GHG emissions from BEH EAD
Renegotiation of loan quota obligations
Renewal of liabilities
Equity increase,
including capitalization of trade receivables
capitalization of interest on loans
capitalization of loan principals
30.2.

Transactions with subsidiaries

Sale of goods and services
- accrued interest on loan granted to PFC Beroe EAD
Purchase of goods and services

2021
BGN ‘000

2020
BGN ‘000

189
1 164 168
2912
32 385

180
309 736
28 964

43

39

10 000
891 498

45 000
-

86 373
1 048 161

350 091

-

597 955

-

11 479
25 599
560 877

2021
BGN ‘000

2020
BGN ‘000

16
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- granted free funding to PFC Beroe EAD
- Obtained materials from PFC Beroe EAD
Proceeds under loan granted to PFC Beroe EAD
Proceeds from the merger of TPP Maritsa East -2 (9 and 10) EAD
Payment for capital increase of PFC Beroe EAD
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3 950

5 000

36

36

133
-

51*

1 950

550

* Information regarding the termination of TPP Maritza East 2 (9 and 10) EAD by merging into
TPP Maritza East 2 EAD
TPP Maritza East 2 (9 and 10) EAD was established in 2012 as a subsidiary of TPP Maritza East 2 EAD.
The Company was established as a sole joint stock company with a one-tier management system and it
was registered in the Commercial Register on September 29, 2012. The capital of the Company amounted
to BGN 50,000 distributed in 50,000 shares, with a nominal value of BGN 1 (one ) each. The sole owner
of the capital is TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD. The ultimate owner is Bulgarian Energy Holding EAD, which
is 100% owned by the Bulgarian state through the Minister of Energy.
The subsidiary “TPP Maritsa East 2 (9 and 10)” EAD did not carry out commercial or other economic
activity, did not own property and assets from the date of its establishment until the moment of its
termination, except BGN 51 thousand available in a bank account in connection with the requirement for
BGN 50 thousand minimum amount of capital for Joint stock companies. Also, the company did not
have a license issued under the Energy Act.
For the period of its existence the Company did not carry out real economic activity and did not realize
revenues, it had no participations in other companies.
In view of the lack of investment intentions related to the realization of the initial goals leading to the
establishment of the subsidiary, the lack of economic activity and income, it was proposed to the Board of
Directors of TPP Maritza East 2 EAD to perform a transformation of TPP Maritza East 2 (9 and 10)
EAD by merging into TPP Maritza East 2 EAD under Chapter Sixteen of the Commercial Act, in order
to improve the organization and optimize the processes of administration of the companies.
Given the above circumstances, the Board of Directors of TPP Maritza East 2 EAD with a decision under
item 1 of Protocol № 21 / 28.05.2020 decided to start a transformation procedure under Chapter XVI of
the CA, Art. 262, para 1 of the CA, by merging TPP Maritza East 2 (9 and 10) EAD into the sole owner
of its capital - TPP Maritza East 2 EAD. It also assigns to the Executive Director of TPP Maritza East 2
EAD to request approval of the above decisions from the sole owner of the capital - "Bulgarian Energy
Holding" EAD and instructs the Executive Director of TPP Maritza East 2 EAD to submit to the
National Revenue Agency a notification under Art. 77, para. 1 of the Tax Insurance Procedure Code,
regarding the intention to submit an application for a circumstance subject to registration - merger under
Chapter Sixteen of the Commercial Act, assigns the Executive Director of TPP Maritza East 2 EAD to
submit a request to the Energy and Water Regulatory Commisssion, pursuant to Art. 52 of the EA and
Art. 87 of Ordinance № 3 of 21.03.2013 on licensing of energy activities for obtaining a permit for
transformation of a licensee by merging TPP Maritza East 2 (9 and 10) EAD into TPP Maritza East 2
EAD and also assigns and authorizes the Executive Director of TPP Maritza East 2 EAD to perform all
necessary actions for the preparation of the merger, as well as to vote and sign the Transformation
Agreement and to declare the announcement of the Transformation Agreement in the Business Register
and the Register of Non-Profit Legal Entities..
With a decision under Protocol № 38-2020 / 17.06.2020, the Board of Directors of BEH EAD gave prior
consent for initiating a procedure for transformation under Chapter XVI of the CA, Art. 262, para 1 of
the CA, by merging TPP Maritza East 2 (9 and 10) EAD into the sole owner of its capital - TPP Maritza
East 2 EAD under the specified conditions.
On 06.07.2020 it was submitted to the Energy and Water Regulatory Commission on the grounds of Art.
52 of the EA and Art. 87 of Ordinance № 3 of 21.03.2013. Application for issuance of a license for
transformation of a licensee, which requested permission for transformation through merger of the
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subsidiary "TPP Maritsa East 2 (9 and 10)" EAD in the host company "TPP Maritsa Iztok 2 EAD, and by
decision № R-316 / 05.08.2020, the Energy and Water Regulatory Commission issued a permit for
transformation through merger of the subsidiary.
The transformation was entered in the Commercial Register on 26.10.2020.
30.3.

Transactions with other related parties under common control

31.12.2021
BGN ‘000

31.12.2020
BGN ‘000

Sale of goods and services
- sale of services to Mini Maritsa - Iztok EAD
- sale of electricity and capacity to NEK EAD
- sale of services to NEK EAD
- sale of capacity and services to the Power transmission system of ESO EAD

55
419 037
10
47 996

416 477
9
13 459

Purchase of goods and services
- purchase of coal from Mini Maritsa - Iztok EAD
- purchase of services from Mini Maritsa - Iztok EAD
- accrued interest for late payment from Mini Maritsa - Iztok EAD
- payment of “obligation to society” fee to NEK EAD
- purchases of electricity from ESO EAD
- electricity transmission fee ESO EAD

172 312
3 215
9 289
1 592
711
12 077

111 532
1 769
1 355
1 596
726
6 983

30.4.

Transactions with other related parties

Purchase of goods and services
-purchase of services from Insurance Joint Stock Company “Energy”
Received dividends
Compensated damage under insurance event

30.5.

2020
BGN ‘000

95
-

75
5 734

Transactions with other related entities inder statutory control

Sale of goods and services
- sale of electricity to IBEX EAD
Purchases of goods and services
- purchases of electricity from IBEX EAD
- purchases of services from IBEX EAD
30.6.

2021
BGN ‘000

2021
BGN ‘000

2020
BGN ‘000

347 252

16 528

25
415

212
90

Transactions with key management personnel

The key management personnel of the Company includes members of the Board of Directors.
Remunerations of key management personnel include, as follows:
2021
2020
BGN ‘000
BGN ‘000

Short-term remuneration:
Salaries, including bonuses

288

167
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Social security costs
Total short-term remuneration
Total remuneration
31.

Related party balances as of the year end

Current
Rceivables from:
- owners
BEH EAD – loan (novation of payables)
- subsidiaries
PFC Beroe EAD – granted loan
PFC Beroe EAD – delay interest
PFC Beroe EAD – impairment
PFC Beroe EAD – payment for capital increase
- other related parties
NEK EAD – sale of electricity
ESO EAD – sale of electricity
ESO EAD – guarantees

Mini Maritsa Iztok EAD - sale of materials
IBEX EAD - sale of electricity
IBEX EAD - guarantees
Total current receivables from related parties
Total receivables from related parties
Non-Current
Payables to:
- owners
BEH EAD – loan (novation of payables)
- other related parties
Mini Maritsa - Iztok EAD – loan (agreement for rescheduling of debts)
Total non-current payables to related parties
Current
Payables to:
- owners
BEH EAD – loan (novation of payables)
BEH EAD – holding agreement and interest for delay
BEH EAD – ceded receivables of BEH EAD from CCB
- other related parties
Mini Maritsa - Iztok EAD – loan (agreement for rescheduling of debts)
Mini Maritsa - Iztok EAD – commercial
NEK EAD
ESO EAD
IBEX EAD
Total current payables to related parties
Total payables to related parties
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15
303
303

7
174
174

31.12.2021
BGN ‘000

31.12.2020
BGN ‘000

65 441

-

-

1 260
117
(1)
550

87 237
13 847
2 315
32
6 202
10
175 084
175 084

42 927
2 750
937
1
465
49 006
49 006

981 734

567 050

55 729
1 037 463

567 050

66 427
34
21 070

131 812
526
21 070

30 587
21 525
160
5 550
55
145 408
1 182 871

5 91495 248
319
806
255 695
822 745
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With the exception of the electricity sales to NEK EAD on the regulated market and the sale of available
capacity to ESO EAD at prices fixed by EWRC and the purchase of coal from Mini Maritsa - Iztok EAD
at prices approved by the Minister of Economy and Energy, the sales of and purchases from related
parties, as well as sales of electricity to IBEX EAD upon trading “day ahead” and bilateral contracts, shall
be fulfilled as per the negotiated prices. Unpaid amounts at the year end are settled in cash or through
offset of mutual obligations.
All receivables from related parties as of 31.12.2021 have been reviewed for indications of impairment.
As of 31 December 2021 impairment is calculated in accordance with the methodology, adopted in the
accounting policy of the Company.
As of 31.12.2021 the reversed impairment of receivables from related parties is to the amount of BGN 1
thousand (31 December 2020: BGN 7 thousand). The impairment is reported in the individual statement
of profit or loss under “Accrued/reversed impairment of financial assets”.
The change in the impairment of trade receivables from related parties and of the loans granted to related
parties can be presented in the following way:

Balance as of 1 January
Reversed impairment
Balance as of 31 December
incl.:
Loans granted to related parties

2021
BGN ‘000

2020
BGN ‘000

1
(1)
-

8
(7)
1
-

1

Loans received from the Sole shareholder
(1) Commercial loan dated 29 May 2018, effective from 01 January 2018, for conversion of part of the
liabilities of TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD to BEH EAD resulting from a contract for sale of GHG emission
allowances No. 22-2017/30.03.2017 to the amount of BGN 70,000 thousand with an agreed interest rate
5.575% annual interest and penalty interest BIR plus 10% annual interest calculated for each day of
overdue payment, according to Decree of the Council of Ministers No.426/18 December 2014. The loan
is without collateral, with a repayment term until 31 December 2022.
Based on the decision under item 2 of Protocol No.59/20 December 2017 of the BoD of TPP Maritsa
East 2 EAD the conversion of the liabilities was agreed. On the grounds of the decision under item І.4 of
Protocol No.7-2018/06 February 2018 of the meeting of the Board of Directors of Bulgarian Energy
Holding EAD and Protocol No.E-RD-21-9 dated 20 March 2018 of the Minister of Energy permission
was granted to BEH EAD aiming the consolidation and novation of the aforementioned liabilities of TPP
Maritsa East 2 EAD to BEH EAD amounting to BGN 70,000 thousand with a term of validity until 31
December 2022 and a grace period of the principal until 31 December 2018. Base referent interest rate of
5.125% and applicable allowance of 0.45% determined on the basis of a decision of the BoD of BEH
EAD under item 1.2 of Protocol No.52-2016/23 August 2016 and penalty interest BIR plus 10%
calculated for each day of overdue payment, according to Decree of the Council of Ministers No.426/18
December 2014.
As of 09.03.2020 the loan principal is included to increase the amount of the share capital of TPP Maritsa
East 2 EAD pursuant to Art. 193 of the Commercial Act through non-monetary contribution (in-kind
contribution).
(2) Commercial loan as of 12 February 2018, for conversion of part of the liabilities of TPP Maritsa East 2
EAD to BEH EAD resulting from the liabilities for divident from the profit of TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD
for 2013 and Holding Agreement No.86/29.06.2009 and included interest due as of the contract signing
date to the total amount of BGN 5,904 thousand with an agreed interest rate 5.475% annual interest and
penalty interest BIR plus 10% annual interest calculated for each day of overdue payment, according to
Decree of the Council of Ministers No.426/18 December 2014. The loan is without collateral, with a
repayment term until 30 September 2022.
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Based on the decision under item 1 of Protocol No. 44/05 September 2017 of the BoD of TPP Maritsa
East 2 EAD the conversion of the liabilities was agreed. On the grounds of decision under item І.1 of
Protocol No.60-2017/12 September 2017 of the meeting of the Board of Directors of Bulgarian Energy
Holding EAD and Protocol No. E-RD-21-29 dated 16 October 2017 of the Minister of Energy permission
was granted to BEH EAD aiming the consolidation and novation of the aforementioned liabilities of TPP
Maritsa East 2 EAD to BEH EAD to the amount of BGN 5 904 thousand with a validity term until 30
September 2022 and a grace period of the principal until 30 September 2018. Base referent interest rate of
5.125% and applicable allowance of 0.35% determined in accordance with a decision of the BoD of BEH
EAD under item 1.2 of Protocol No.52-2016/23 August 2016 and penalty interest BIR plus 10% annual
interest calculated for each day of overdue payment, according to Decree of the Council of Ministers
No.426/18 December 2014.
As of 09.03.2020 the loan principal is included to increase the amount of the share capital of TPP Maritsa
East 2 EAD pursuant to Art. 193 of the Commercial Act through non-monetary contribution (in-kind
contribution).
(3) Commercial loan from 1 January 2019 – consolidation and novation as a new loan of the liabilities under
Loan Agreement No.39-2015/13790 dd 25.05.2015, Loan Agreement No.62-2016/14587 dd 10.06.2016,
Loan Agreement No.74-2016/14674 dd 12.08.2016, Loan Agreement No.87-2016/14832 dd 24.11.2016
and Loan Agreement No.28-2017/15132 dd 27.04.2017 and Contract for sale of greenhouse gas emission
allowances No.15710 dd 12.04.2018 (BEH No.31-2018/12.04.2018) at the amount of BGN 484,973
thousand effective from 1 January 2019 until 31 December 2023 and a grace period of the principal until 31
December 2019. The agreed interest rate is at the amount of the base reference interest rate of 4.61%,
according to the interest rates for intra-group loans adopted by BEH EAD with the decision under it. I.1 of
Protocol No.53-2018/11.09.2018, and a penalty interest at the amount of BIR + 10% calculated for each
day of overdue payment, according to Decree of the Council of Ministers No.426/18 December 2014.
By letter of BEH EAD Ref. No.01-0650/4 dated 11.10.2018, taking into consideration the large amount of
accumulated liabilities of TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD to the principal, whose repayment period has expired,
proposal was made that the liabilities under Loan Agreement No.39-2015/13790 dd 25.05.2015, Loan
Agreement No.62-2016/14587 dd 10.06.2016, Loan Agreement No.74-2016/14674 dd 12.08.2016, Loan
Agreement No.87-2016/14832 dd 24.11.2016 and Loan Agreement No.28-2017/15132 dd 27.04.2017 and
Contract for sale of greenhouse gas emission allowances No.15710/12.04.2018 (BEH No.312018/12.04.2018) shall be consolidated and novated in the form of a new loan.
The total amount of the above liabilities is BGN 484,973,126.53.
Based on the decision under item 6.1 of Protocol No.50/15.10.2018 of the Board of Directors of TPP
Maritsa East 2 EAD, decision under item I.1 of Protocol No.61-2018/23.10.2018 of the Board of Directors
of BEH EAD, Protocol No. E-RD-21-34/13.11.2018 of the Minister of Energy and on the Decision No.P281 of 20.12.2018 of the EWRC, on 10.01.2019 a Contract was signed on consolidation and formation as a
commercial loan between TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD, as a Borrower, and BEH EAD, as a Lender, for the
above liabilities in the total amount of BGN 484,973,126.53 with a repayment period of 60 months and a
grace period of the principal for 12 months from 01.01.2019.
As of 09.03.2020 the loan principal is included to increase the amount of the share capital of TPP Maritsa
East 2 EAD pursuant to Art. 193 of the Commercial Act through non-monetary contribution (in-kind
contribution).
(4) Commercial loan as of 16 October 2019 – consolidation and novation as a new loan of the liabilities
under Contract for sale of greenhouse gas emission allowances No.16215/30.01.2019 (BEH No.102019/30.01.2019) for the amount of BGN 398,025 thousand effective from 01.07.2019 to 30.06.2024 and a
grace period of the principal until 30 June 2020. The agreed interest rate is at the amount of the base
reference interest rate of 4.61%, according to the interest rates for intra-group loans adopted by BEH EAD
with the decision under it. I.1 of Protocol No.53-2018/11.09.2018, and a penalty interest at the amount of
BIR + 10% calculated for each day of overdue payment, according to Decree of the Council of Ministers
No.426/18 December 2014.
Based on the decision under item 1 from Protocol No.22/09.07.2019 the Board of Directors of TPP
Maritsa East 2 EAD took decision to novate the company liabilities to the amount of BGN 398,025
thousand, as a commercial loan.
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Based on the decision under item 3 from Protocol No.48-2019/22.07.2019 the Board of Directors of BEH
EAD approved the novation of TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD liabilities due to the Bulgarian Energy Holding
EAD to the amount of BGN 398,025 thousand, resulting from a contract for purchase and sale of GHG
emission allowances No.10-2019/30.01.2019 and Additional agreement No.1 dated 23.04.2019 to the Loan
Contract.
By Protocol No.E-RD-21-16/27.08.2019 the Minister of Energy gave his permission a Loan contract to be
concluded for conversion of the liabilities of the subsidiary in favour of the holding into loan upon the
provisions set in Decision under item 3 of Protocol No. 48-2019/22.07.2019 of the Board of Directors of
BEH EAD.
By decision No.R-295 dated 08.10.2019 the EWRC gave its permission for conclusion of Loan contract for
conversion of the subsidiary liabilities due in favour of the holding upon provisions set in decision taken
under Protocol No. E-RD-21-16/27.08.2019 of the Minister of Energy.
(5) Commercial loan as of 31 December 2020 – consolidation and novation as a new loan of the liabilities
under Contract for sale of greenhouse gas emission allowances No.16906/27.04.2020 (BEH No.282020/27.04.2020) at the amount of BGN 309,726 thousand, liabilities for interest due under a loan
agreement No.15583/12.02.2018 (BEH No.7-2018/12.02.2018) at the amount of BGN 329 thousand,
liabilities for interest due under a loan agreement No.15827/29.05.2018 (BEH No. 51-2018/29.05.2018) at
the amount of BGN 3,786 thousand, liabilities for interest due under a loan agreement
No.16189/10.01.2019 (BEH No.2-2019/10.01.2019) at the amount of BGN 19,186 thousand and liabilities
for interest due under a loan agreement No. 16646/16.10.2019 (BEH No.55-2019/16.10.2019) at the
amount of BGN 17,055 thousand, valid since 01.07.2020 to 30.06.2025 and grace period of the principal
due 30 June 2021. The agreed interest rate is at the amount of the base reference interest rate of 4.61%,
according to the interest rates for intra-group loans adopted by BEH EAD with the decision under it. I.1 of
Protocol No.53-2018/11.09.2018, and a penalty interest at the amount of BIR + 10% calculated for each
day of overdue payment, according to Decree of the Council of Ministers No.426/18 December 2014.
Based on the decision under item 2 from Protocol No.30/18.08.2020, the Board of Directors of TPP
Maritsa East 2 EAD took decision to novate the company liabilities to the amount of BGN 350,091
thousand, as a commercial loan.
Based on the decision under item I.3 from Protocol No.54-2020/06.10.2020 the Board of Directors of
BEH EAD approved the novation of TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD liabilities due to the Bulgarian Energy
Holding EAD to the amount of BGN 350,091 thousand, resulting from above- described liabilities under a
contract for purchase and sale of GHG emission allowances and interest due under loan agreements.
By Protocol No.E-RD-21-21/27.11.2020 the Minister of Energy gave his permission a Loan contract to be
concluded for conversion of the liabilities of the subsidiary in favour of the holding into loan upon the
provisions set in Decision under item I.3 of Protocol No. 54-2020/06.10.2020 of the Board of Directors of
BEH EAD.
By decision No.R-327 dated 23.12.2020 the EWRC gave its permission for conclusion of Loan contract for
conversion of the subsidiary liabilities due in favour of the holding upon provisions set in decision taken
under Protocol No. E-RD-21-21/27.11.2020 of the Minister of Energy.
As of 01.08.2021 the balance on the principal and the accrued interest on the loan as of 31.07.2021 are
included in consolidation and renewal as a new loan.
(6) Commercial loan dated 06 December 2021 - consolidation and innovation as a new loan of obligations
under a contract for the sale of greenhouse gas emission allowances № 17375 / 20.04.2021 (BEH № 212021 / 20.04.2021). ) in the amount of BGN 341,023 thousand (including principal in the amount of BGN
338,111 thousand and interest in the amount of BGN 2,912 thousand), the obligations under the loan
agreement № 16646 / 16.10.2019 (BEH № 55-2019 / 16.10.2019) in the amount of BGN 339,563
thousand, including principal in the amount of BGN 323,026 thousand and interest in the amount of BGN
16,537 thousand .), the obligations under the loan agreement № 17255 / 31.12.2020 (BEH № 58-2020 /
31.12.2020) in the amount of BGN 367 575 thousand, including principals in the amount of BGN 350,091
BGN thousand and interest in the amount of BGN 17,484 thousand), valid from 01.08.2021 to 31.07.2028
and grace period of the principal until July 31, 2022. The agreed interest rate is in the amount of of the basic
reference interest rate of 3.225%, according to the interest rates adopted by BEH EAD with a decision
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under item I. 1.1 of Protocol №41-2021 / 30.07.2021 for intragroup loans and penalty interest for arrears in
the amount of BIR + 10%, calculated for each day of arrears, according to the Council of Ministers №426 /
18 December 2014.
With a decision under item I.1 of Protocol № 49-2021 / 21.09.2021, the Board of Directors of BEH EAD
has approved the renewal of the liabilities of TPP Maritza East 2 EAD to Bulgarian Energy Holding EAD
in the amount of BGN 1,048,161 thousand, arising from the above - described liabilities under a contract
for purchase - sale of allowances for greenhouse gas emissions and interest due under loan agreements.
By Protocol № E-RD-21-34 / 15.10.2021, the Minister of Energy has given permission for signing a loan
agreement with the purpose of conversion the obligations of the subsidiary into a loan to the holding, under
the conditions specified in a decision under item I.1 of Protocol № 49-2021 / 21.09.2021 of the Board of
Directors of BEH EAD.
By decision № № R-362 of 02.12.2021, the Energy and Water Regulatory Commission authorized the
signing of a loan agreement in order to convert the obligations of the subsidiary to the holding under the
conditions described in the decision under Protocol № E- RD-21-34 / 15.10.2021 of the Minister of
Energy.
(7) Loan agreement (credit line) dated November 22, 2021. Pursuant to the Decision under item 2.3 of
Protocol № 35-2021 dated 09.07.2021 of the Board of Directors of Bulgarian Energy Holding EAD and
the Decision under item 10 of Protocol №26 / 08.07.2021 of the Board of Directors of TPP Maritza East 2
EAD a framework agreement was signed for purchase and sale of greenhouse gas allowances № 51 of
16.07.2021 (№ 17460 /16.07.2021).
The term of the framework contract for the purchase and sale of greenhouse gas allowances is 12 months
from the date of its signing and it determines the general conditions applicable to transactions for the
purchase and sale of greenhouse gas emission allowances of the type "EUA" between " Bulgarian Energy
Holding EAD and TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD.
Essentially, the provisions of this contract apply to the purchase of greenhouse gas emission allowances that
are realized or will be realized after its entry into force and do not cover the greenhouse gases emitted by
TPP Maritza East 2 EAD as a result of the quantities of electricity produced and realized by the company
within the period from 01.01.2021 to 30.06.2021.
Pursuant to a Decision under item I.2. of Record № 58-2021 / 27.10.2021 of the Board of Directors of
Bulgarian Energy Holding EAD and of Decision under items 9.1 and 9.2 of Record № 46 / 28.10.2021 of
the Board of Directors of TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD Annex № 1 / 01.11.2021 to the framework contract
for purchase - sale of greenhouse gas allowances № 51 of 16.07.2021 (№ 17460 / 16.07.2021) was
concluded, which regulates the relations between the parties in connection with the purchase of the
necessary quantities of quotas for greenhouse gases, as a result of the quantities of electricity produced and
realized by TPP Maritza East 2 EAD within the period from 01.01.1921 to 30.06.2021.
In Annex № 1 / 01.11.2021 signed additionally to the Framework agreement regarding purchase and sale of
greenhouse gas allowances № 51 from 16.07.2021 (№ 17460 / 16.07.2021) the parties agreed on the use of a
credit line in the following conditions:
• Limit: BGN 100,000,000 (one hundred million);
• Purpose: Repayment of obligations under the Framework Agreement № 51 of 16.07.2021, for quantities of
allowances purchased for the purpose of securing the production activity of TPP Maritza East 2 EAD during the
period from 01.01.2021 to 30.06.2021. ;
• Validity period: 12 months from the date of signing this credit agreement;
• Interest rate: 3.225% per annum on the utilized amount, according to the interest rates for intragroup loans
adopted by the Board of Directors of BEH EAD with a decision under item I.1.1 of Protocol №41-2021 /
30.07.2021.
It has been agreed that the utilized funds from the credit line may be used by TPP Maritza East 2 EAD only for
repayment of liabilities for purchased greenhouse gas emission allowances during the period from January 1,
2021 to June 30, 2021.

The Lender provides the Borrower with a credit line for circulating assets / hereinafter referred to as
"credit" /, with a credit limit of up to BGN 100,000,000 / one hundred million BGN /, without collateral.
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The loan funds are provided to the Borrower for circulating assets related to repayment of obligations
under applications for purchase of greenhouse gas emission allowances issued during the period from
01.01.2021 to 30.06.2021, arising from a framework purchase agreement. - sale of greenhouse gas
allowances № 51 of 16.07.2021 (№ 17460 / 16.07.2021).
The Borrower shall pay to the Lender interest on the utilized part of the loan for the period from the day
following the day of utilization of the funds until the day of repayment of the utilized part (partially or fully),
inclusive.
The applied interest rate is 3.225% per annum on the utilized amount, according to the interest rates for
intragroup loans under interest rate convention 365/360 adopted by the Board of Directors of BEH EAD
with a decision under item I.1.1 of Protocol №41-2021 / 30.07.2021.
The interest is accrued daily on the amount utilized and not repaid at the end of each day by the Borrower
and it is payable monthly, until the 25th of the month for the previous one-month period.
In case the Borrower does not repay the due payment by the 25th of the month for the expired previous
one-month period, the Lender shall accrue default interest on the amount of the portion not paid in time
for each day of delay. The legal interest for delay is determined under the terms and conditions of the
Council of Ministers №426 / 18.12.2014. No interest for late payment is charged on the principal that has
not matured.
Agreement for rescheduling of receivables and liabilities
Pursuant to a decision of Record №44 / 11.10.2021, item 15 of the Board of Directors of TPP Maritza East
2 EAD, a decision of Record №25-2021 / 15.10.2021 of the Board of Directors of Mini Maritza Iztok
EAD and decision of Record №57-2021 / 19.10.2021 of the Board of Directors of BEH EAD an
agreement was signed on October 20, 2021 for rescheduling the outstanding monetary obligations of TPP
Maritsa Iztok 2 EAD to Mini Maritza Iztok ”EAD, arising from invoices for delivery of lignite coal, issued
by Mini Maritza Iztok EAD as of 24.09.2021. in the amount of BGN 85,225,385.68 (eighty-five million two
hundred and twenty-five thousand three hundred and eighty-five levs and sixty-eight stotinki), including
interest accrued as of 30.09.2021 for late payment on issued invoices for delivered lignite coal in the amount
of BGN 8,598,638.70 (eight million five hundred ninety-eight thousand six hundred thirty-eight levs and
seventy stotinki).
The agreement is valid from 20.10.2021 to 20.09.2024. The agreed interest rate is in the amount of the basic
reference interest rate of 3.225%, according to the decisions adopted by BEH EAD with a decision under
item I. 1.1 of Protocol №41 -2021 / 30.07.2021 interest rates for intragroup loans and penalty interest in
arrears in the amount of BIR + 10%, calculated for each day of arrears, according to the Council of
Ministers №426 / 18 December 2014.
As of December 31, 2021, TPP Maritza East 2 EAD has no overdue loan obligations to BEH EAD and
Mini Maritza East EAD.
Loans granted to subsidiaries
(1)
On 12.12.2011 the Company entered into a commercial loan contract with PFC Beroe – Stara Zagora
EAD to fund its core business activity. The total amount of the loan is BGN 700 thousand under agreed
interest rate of 2.5% annual interest. The loan was unsecured and matured on 31 December 2012. Through
Annex dated 17.12.2012 the loan was renegotiated, by the principal to the amount of BGN 600 thousand
(six hundred thousand) was due until 30.06.2013. By an Annex dated 27.06.2013 the repayment schedule
was amended and deadline fixed on 31.12.2014. As of 31.12.2014 the liability to the owners included
interest at the rate of BGN 38 thousand and principal under the loan amounting to BGN 600 thousand. On
04.02.2015 a portion of the due principal for the amount of BGN 100 thousand, as well as the due interest
accrued on it until 03.02.2015 for the amount of BGN 39 thousand was repaid. By an Additional
Agreement dated 25.03.2015 the loan was renegotiated for the outstanding balance of principal amounting
to BGN 500 thousand. The deadline for repayment of the outstanding remainder of the principal was up to
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31.07.2016, by a grace period was fixed until 30.09.2015. By an Additional Agreement dated 23.08.2017 the
loan was renegotiated for the outstanding balance of principal amounting to BGN 500 thousand. The
deadline for repayment of the outstanding remainder of the principal was up to 31.12.2019, by a grace
period was fixed until 01.02.2018. In 2018 principal was repaid to the amount of BGN 100 thousand. In
2019 principal was repaid to the amount of BGN 100 thousand.
By additional agreement dated 04.03.2020 the loan is renegotiated for the outstanding remainder of the
principal at the rate of BGN 300 thousand. The deadline for repayment of the outstanding remainder of the
principal was up to 31.12.2021.
On 11.03.2020 an agreement was signed between the “Professional Football Club Beroe – Stara Zagora”
EAD and “TPP Maritsa East 2” EAD to reschedule the overdue interest payment under the loan from
2015 to 2017.
As of 31.12.2020 the outstanding remainder of the principal is at the rate of BGN 300 thousand and the
interest accrued on it is BGN 63 thousand.
As of February 25, 2021, the principal balance due in the amount of BGN 300,000 is included in the
simultaneous reduction and increase of the club's capital, interest is accrued in the amount of BGN 1,000 .
(2)
On 30 January 2020 the Company concluded a contract for commercial loan with the subsidiary PFC
Beroe - Stara Zagora EAD in order to repay the tax donation due from the subsidiary to the Municipality of
Stara Zagora. The total loan amount is BGN 960 thousand, without collateral with a validity term up to 30
December 2020 and a grace period of the principal until 30 June 2020. The main reference interest rate of
4.31% and applicable margin of 0.15%, determined in accordance with a decision of the Board of Directors
of BEH EAD under item 1.1 of Protocol No. 53-2018/11 September 2018 and a penalty interest on arrears
amounting to BIR+10%, calculated for each day of delay, under Decree No.426/18 December 2014. The
contract entered into force on 30 December 2019.
In connection with decision of the Board of Directors of TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD and BEH EAD from
December 2019 repayment was approved of the due amount of BGN 960 thousand for tax donation. The
amount was transferred to the bank account of subsidiary „PFC Beroe - Stara Zagora“ EAD on 30
December 2019.
As of 31.12.2020 the due remainder of the principal is for the amount of BGN 960 thousand and the
interest accrued on it is BGN 54 thousand.
As of February 25, 2021, the principal balance due in the amount of BGN 960 thousand is included in the
simultaneous reduction and increase of the club's capital, interest is accrued in the amount of BGN 6
thousand.
The simultaneous decrease and increase of the capital of "Professional Football Club Beroe - Stara Zagora"
EAD was entered in the Commercial Register on 25.02.2021.
On March 10, 2021 the amount of BGN 133 thousand were paid to "TPP Maritsa East 2" EAD from
"Professional Football Club Beroe - Stara Zagora" EAD including interest accrued until 25.02.2021 on
trade loans № 11258 / 12.12.2011. and № 16786 / 30.01.2020, with which payment the liabilities were fully
repaid.
32.
Non-cash transactions
In 2021 and 2020 none non-cash transactions with related parties were used.
33.

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities

Capital commitments
Under requirements of European Directives, national standarts and IPPC Permit (Complex permit), as well
as in relation to the realization of the projects included in the National Investment Plan for the period 20132020 (NIP), National Investment Framework for the period 2021-2030, Recovery and Sustainability Plan,
the Company is obliged to achieve certain environmental standards, which will be achieved by constructing
and putting into operation assets with environmental purpose. As of 31 December 2021 the Company has
capital commitments of BGN 95 129 thousand. Projects in the National Investment Plan for the period
2013-2020 (NIP) related to full engineering of low emission burners and replacement of Lower Radiation
Part with inlet and outlet collectors KA- 11; Construction of gas-fired installation of Unit 2; Manufacture
and installation of gas-tight screens of Boiler-3 and Boiler-4; Construction of an ignition installation with
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gas on Unit-2. Conceptual designs under the Recovery and Sustainability Plan are Construction of a pilot
installation of technology for capture and utilization of carbon dioxide, Construction of a steam-gas cycle
increasing the efficiency of the existing cycle.
Other activities included in the Investment Program of the Company are Replacement of the central
distribution collectors at nozzle levels; Installation of 5 (fifth) nozzle level FGD-7; major overhaul of Unit-7
and minor repairs of all other Units 1 to 6 and Unit-8.
Commitments to BEH EAD for the purchase of allowances for greenhouse gas emissions
As of 31.12.2021 TPP Maritza East 2 EAD has a commitment to BEH EAD in connection with a
framework agreement, dated 16.07.2021 for purchase and sale of greenhouse gas emission allowances ,
concluded between TPP Maritza East 2 EAD and BEH EAD. Based on the framework agreement, BEH
EAD undertakes to purchase a currently determined amount of European greenhouse gas emission
allowances after an application submitted by TPP Maritza East 2 EAD for the purchase of required amount
of greenhouse gas emission allowances. As of 31.12.2021 the Company has a commitment to BEH EAD in
the amount of BGN 110,106 thousand, in connection with prepared and submitted applications for
purchase of the required amount of allowances for greenhouse gas emissions.
Legal claims
During the year various legal claims were filed against the Company. The management of the Company
considers that the claims are unfounded and that the probability of settling them will lead to costs for the
Company is negligible. This assessment of the management is supported by the opinion of an independent
legal adviser.
None of the above claims are set out in detail here in order not to affect seriously the Company's position
in future resolving disputes.
Other
Recent tax audits of the Company have been held by tax authorities, as follows:
№

Taxes
1
2
3
4
5
6
7

Period
from
01.01.2015
01.01.2015
01.01.2015
01.01.2015
01.10.2015
01.10.2015
01.12.2015

Income tax
Representative office tax
Tax on social expenses under CITA, provided in kind
Vehicle cost tax
Tax on dividends and liquidation shares of legal entities
Income tax on foreign legal entities
Value added tax
Inspection regarding the observance of the insurance
8 legislation and the obligations under the Personal Income Tax 01.01.2015
Act

to
31.12.2015
31.12.2015
31.12.2015
31.12.2015
31.12.2015
31.12.2015
31.12.2015
31.12.2020

The tax audit of the Company for liabilities under CITA and VAT for the period from 01.01.2016 to
31.12.2020 has not been completed as of the date of approval of the separate financial statements. The
management of the Company does not consider that there are significant risks as a result of the
incomplete tax audit, which would require adjustments in the separate financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2021.
As of December 31, 2021, the Company has no financial assets pledged in favor of counterparties as
collateral for loans.
34. Categories of financial assets and liabilities
The carrying values of financial assets and liabilities of the Company can be presented in the following
categories:
Financial assets

31.12.2021

31.12.2020
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Loans and receivables:
Receivables from related parties (Note 12)
Judicial and award receivables (Note 11)
Other receivables-paid collateral (Note 11)
Commercial receivables (Note 11)
Financial assets at fair value (Note 8)
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 13)
Total financial assets
Financial liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost
Payables to related parties
Current financial liabilities
Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost
Trade and other payables
Payables to related parties
Total financial liabilities
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BGN ‘000
175 084
843
313
484
470
12 654
189 848

BGN ‘000
49 006
1 048
313
210
437
26 690
77 704

31.12.2021
BGN ‘000

31.12.2020
BGN ‘000

1 037 463
1 037 463

567 050
567 050

145 408
16 599
162 007

255 695
49 418
305 113

1 199 470

872 163

See Note 4.13 for information on the accounting policy for each category of financial instruments.
Description of the policy and objectives for risk management of the Company with respect to financial
instruments is presented in Note 35.
35.

Risks related to financial instruments

Objectives and policy of the management with regard to the risk management
The Company is exposed to various types of risks related to its financial instruments. The most significant
financial risks to which the Company is exposed are the market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Company risk management is carried out by the Company Management in cooperation with the
Board of Directors. Priority of Management is to provide cash flows for timely payment in accordance
with the contractual obligations with counterparties.
The Company is neither actively committed with trading of financial assets for speculative purposes, nor it
issues any options.
The most significant financial risks the Company is exposed to, are described below.
35.1.

Market risk analysis

35.2.
Due to the use of financial instruments the Company is exposed to market risk, and in particular to risk of
changes in exchange rates, interest rate risk, as well as risk of change in specific prices, which is due to the
operating and investment activity of the Company.
35.2.1. Foreign currency risk
The Company makes purchases, sales, grants and receives loans in foreign currencies – Euro and Japanese
Yen. Since the exchange rate BGN/EUR is pegged at 1.95583, the foreign currency risk arising from the
exposures of the Company in Euros is minimum.
The major part of the Company transactions are carried out in BGN.
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35.1.2 Interest rate risk
The Company policy is aimed at minimizing the interest rate risk upon long-term financing. Therefore,
long-term loans usually have fixed interest rates. As of 31 December 2020, the Company is not exposed to
risk of changing the market interest rates on its variable-rate bank loans. All other financial assets and
liabilities of the Company have fixed interest rates. All investments in bonds of the Company are paid on
the basis of fixed interest rates.
The tables below show the sensitivity of the annual net financial result after taxes and the equity to the
possible change in the interest rates under floating rate loans based on BIR, fixed by BNB at the rate of
+/- 0.01% (for 2020 +/- 0.01%) and floating rate loans based on EURIBOR/LIBOR at the rate of +/0.01% (for 2020 +/- 0.01%). These changes are considered probable based on observations of current
market conditions. The calculations are based on the change in the average market interest rate and the
financial instruments held by the Company as of the end of the reporting period, which are sensitive to
changes in the interest rate. All other parameters are accepted to be constant.
31 December 2021

Net financial result
Interest rate
Interest rate
increase
decrease

Loans in BGN (BIR 0.01%)

(69)

31 December 2020

Equity
Interest rate
Interest rate
increase
decrease
69

Net financial result
Interest rate
Interest rate
increase
decrease

Loans in BGN (BIR 0.01%)

(47)

(69)

Interest rate
increase
47

69

Equity
Interest rate
decrease

(47)

47

35.2.3. Other price risks
The Company is not exposed to other price risks due to the fact that it does not own publicly traded
shares, bonds and participation in other public companies.
35.3.

Credit risk analysis

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty may not pay its obligation to the Company. The Company is
exposed to this risk in connection with various financial instruments, by for example occurrence of
receivables from customers, deposit of funds, etc. The Company trades solely with recognized,
creditworthy counterparties. Its policy is to not trade on a deferred payment principle. Payment periods
are kept to a minimum – from 5 to 10 calendar days, by a big part of the transactions on the free market
are subject to advance payment. The Company requires from the commercial counterparties a collateral
under the form of a bank or financial guarantee. Furthermore, the balances of trade receivables are being
currently monitored, which results in an insignificant exposure of the Company to doubtful and bad
debts. There are no significant concentrations of credit risk in the Company. Credit risk arising from other
financial assets of the Company, such as cash and other financial assets, represents the Company credit
exposure arising from the possible failure of its counterparties to meet their obligations. Maximum credit
exposure of the Company in relation to recognized financial assets amounts to their respective value in the
separate individual of financial position as of 31 December 2021.
The Company has not pledged any financial assets as collateral.
The ageing structure of trade receivables from parties non-related to the Company, and respectively the
expected credit losses are, as follows:
31 December 2021

Expected rate
of credit loss

Gross value of
trade receivables

Expected
credit loss

Net value
of trade
receivables
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%

BGN ‘000

BGN ‘000

BGN ‘000

Non-matured
From 0 to 30 days
From 31 to 60 days
From 61 to 90 days
Above 90 days

0%
0%
0%
0%
13%

683
29
66
6
15
799

(2)
(2)

683
29
66
6
13
797

31 December 2020

Expected rate
of credit loss

Gross value of
trade receivables

Expected
credit loss

%

BGN ‘000

BGN ‘000

Net value
of trade
receivables
BGN ‘000

0%
0%
0%
0%
6%

467
15
4
4
35
525

(2)
(2)

467
15
4
4
33
523

Non-matured
From 0 to 30 days
From 31 to 60 days
From 61 to 90 days
Above 90 days

The ageing structure of trade receivables from related parties of the Company and respectively the
expected credit losses are, as follows:
31 December 2021

Expected
rate of credit loss

Gross value of
trade receivables

Expected
credit loss

%

BGN ‘000

BGN ‘000

Net value
of trade
receivables
BGN ‘000

175 084
175 084

-

175 084
175 084

Expected
rate of credit loss

Gross value of
trade receivables

Expected
credit loss

%

BGN ‘000

BGN ‘000

Net value
of trade
receivables
BGN ‘000

47 080
47 080

-

47 080
47 080

Non-matured

31 December 2020

Non-matured

For financial assets, recognized at the end of the reporting period, the impairment as of 31.12.2021 and
31.12.2020 is calculated in accordance with the methodology, adopted in the accounting policy of the
Company.
As of 31.12.2021 and 31.12.2020 the impairment of financial assets is reported in the individual statement
of profit or loss under “Accrued/reversed impairment of financial assets”.
35.4.

Liquidity Risk Analysis

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to repay its obligations. The Company meets its
needs of liquid funds by careful monitoring of payments under repayment schedules of the long-term
financial obligations and the incoming and outgoing cash flows arising in the course of the operating
activity. The needs of liquid funds are monitored for different time periods – daily and weekly, as well as on
the basis of 30-day forecasts. The needs of liquid funds in the long term – for periods of 180 and 360 days
are determined quarterly. The needs of cash are compared with available loans to establish surpluses or
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deficits. This analysis determines whether available loans will be sufficient to cover the needs of the
Company for the period.
Funds for long-term liquidity needs are secured through loans in the relevant amount.
Effective management of the Company’s liquidity involves the provision of sufficient working capital,
primarily through the maintenance of unused granted credit lines.
As of 31 December 2021 the maturity structure of the contractual liabilities of the Company (containing
interest payments, where applicable) are summarized, as follows:
31 December 2021

Non-derivative financial
liabilities
Trade and other payables

Carrying
value

Contractual cash
flows

On
demand
(without
maturity)

Up to 6
months

6-12
months

1-2
years

2-5
years

More
than 5
years

thousand
BGN

thousand
BGN

thousand
BGN

thousand
BGN

thousand
BGN

thousand
BGN

thousand
BGN

thousand
BGN

16 599

16 599

41

10 347

6 211

-

-

-

Payables to related parties under
common control (BEH Group)

1 182 871

1 312 286

-

60 560

120 398

225 083

601 653

304592

Total

1 199 470

1 328 885

41

70 907

126 609

225 083

601 653

304592

As of 31 December 2020 the maturity structure of the contractual liabilities of the Company (containing
interest payments, where applicable) are summarized, as follows:
Carrying
value

Contrac
-tual
cash
flows

On
demand
(without
maturity)

Up to 6
months

6-12
months

1-2
years

2-5
years

More
than 5
years

thousand
BGN

thousand
BGN

thousand
BGN

thousand
BGN

thousand
BGN

thousand
BGN

thousand
BGN

thousand
BGN

49 418

49 418

56

43 636

5 726

-

-

-

Payables to related parties under
common control (BEH Group)

822 745

894 488

-

161 928

123 650

205 161

403 749

-

Total

872 163

943 906

56

205 564

129 376

205 161

403 749

-

31 December 2020

Non-derivative financial
liabilities
Trade and other payables

The values disclosed in this analysis of the maturities of obligations represent undiscounted cash flows
under contracts, which may differ from the carrying values of obligations as of the reporting date.
Financial assets as a means for management of the liquidity risk
Upon measuring and managing liquidity risk the Company takes into account the expected cash flows
from financial instruments, in particular available cash holdings and trade receivables. Pursuant to the
contracts concluded, all cash flows of trade and other receivables are due in advance or within 5 working
days.
36.

Fair value measurement

The Company groups its assets and liabilities reported at fair value in three levels depending on the
importance of the input information used in determining the fair value of assets and liabilities. The fair
value hierarchy includes the following levels:
1 level: market prices (unadjusted) on active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
2 level: input information other than market prices included at level 1, which can be observed in respect of
an asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. on the basis of the prices); and
3 level: input information on an asset or liability, which is not based on observed market data.
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A financial asset or liability is classified at the lowest level of significant input information that is used to
determine its fair value.
36.1. Fair value measurement of financial assets
Financial instruments, which are measured at fair value, are disclosed in Explanatory Note 8.
36.2. Fair value measurement of non-financial assets
The following table presents the levels in the hierarchy of non-financial assets as of 31 December 2021
and 31 December 2020, which are periodically measured at fair value.
31.12.2021
31.12.2020
Level 3
Level 3
BGN ‘000
BGN ‘000
Property, plant and equipment

1 572 123

1 349 243

As of 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020 the independent valuators conducted an impairment
test, according to which the carrying amount of the assets did not substantially differ from the fair value of
the revalued assets as of the end of the reporting period.
The most recent fair value measurement was performed as of 31.12.2021 and is based on observed prices
of recent market transactions for similar assets, adjusted for specific factors such as area, location and
current use. Significant unobservable data is related to the adjustment for the factors specific for the
Company assets. The extent and the direction of this adjustment depends on the number and features of
the observed market transactions with similar assets that are used for the purpose of the valuation.
Although these data is subjective, the management believes that the final assessment would not be
significantly influenced by other possible assumptions.
37.

Changes in liabilities, resulting from financing activities

Reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in the individual statement of financial position
as of 31 December 2021 of liabilities, resulting from financing activities:

Cash flows from
financial activity
Liabilities, resulting from
financing activities

Loans to related parties
Renegotiation of quota obligations
to related parties in loans
Agreement for rescheduling
obligations to related parties
Total liabilities from financing
activities:

On
1 January

Payment
s

Proceeds

Changes of non-monetary nature
(non-cash)
Effect from
changes
Acquisitions
Other
in foreign
(increases)
changes
exchange
rates

On 31
December

-

(24
110)

341 024

-

-

(86 373)

86 373

-

5 914

-

(14 112)

93 824

-

690

86 316

704 776

-

(124 595)

521 221

-

33 075

1 134 477

698 862

32 385

1 048 161
-
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Reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in the individual statement of financial position
as of 31 December 2020 of liabilities, resulting from financing activities:
Cash flows from
financial activity

Liabilities, resulting from
financing activities

Loans to related parties
Agreement for rescheduling
obligations to related parties
Total liabilities from financing
activities:

38.

On
1 January

991 640

Changes of non-monetary nature
(non-cash)
Effect from
On 31
changes in
December
Acquisitions
Other
Proceeds Payments
foreign
(increases)
changes
exchange
rates
(45 000)
379 055
- (626 833)
698 862

40 812

-

(35 610)

712

1 032 452

-

(80 610)

379 767

- (626 833)

5 914
704 776

Policy and and procedures for capital management

The objectives of the Company with respect to capital management are:
• to ensure the Company ability to continue as a going concern;
• to ensure adequate profitability for the owners by determining the price of goods and services in
accordance with the level of risk, and
• to ensure stable credit rating and capital indicators.
The Board of Directors of BEH EAD exercises the rights of sole owner of the Company’s capital. As
such it makes decisions for increasing or decreasing the capital of the Company, for dissolving or
reorganizing, as well as for distribution of the profit and its payment, the amount of dividends and
tantiemmes. As a company entirely state-controlled, upon distribution of dividends the Company
complies with the requirements of the Council of Ministers Decree for implementing the State Budget for
the respective year. In 2021, as well as in 2020, there are no changes in objectives, policies or processes
related to the capital management of the Company.
The Company monitors its equity capital through the financial results achieved during the reporting
period, as follows:
The Company monitors the capital on the basis of indebtedness ratio, representing the ratio of net debt to
the total capital.
The net debt includes the amount of loans less the carrying value of cash and cash equivalents.
Total capital is the sum of adjusted equity and net debt.
The capital for the presented reported periods can be analyzed, as follows:
31.12.2021
BGN ‘000

31.12.2020
BGN ‘000

368 525

300 445

Loans
Cash and cash equivalents
Net debt

1 134 477
(12 654)
1 121 823

704 776
(26 690)
678 086

Total equity (equity capital + net debt)

1 490 348

978 531

Equity capital
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Indebtedness ratio (net debt/total equity)

80

75%

69%

The increase in the indebtedness ratio of TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD in 2021 compared to 2020 is mainly
due to an increase in the company's loans to the sole owner of the capital BEH EAD (see Note 31).
39.

Events after the end of the reporting period

After the end of the reporting period until the date of approval of the individual financial statements for
issue no other adjusting and non-adjusting events have occurred that require additional disclosures, except
the following:
Information on actions taken by TPP Maritza East 2 EAD, the sole owner of the capital of
Professional Football Club Beroe - Stara Zagora EAD, for sale of shares of Professional Football
Club Beroe - Stara Zagora EAD
In accordance with the government's policy for optimizing the costs of state energy companies, the Board
of Directors of TPP Maritza East EAD, according to item 13 of Protocol № 54 / 15.12.2021. decided to
take the necessary actions to transfer the ownership of all available, ordinary, registered shares in the
amount of 5,480,000 shares, owned by TPP Maritza East 2 EAD, representing 100% of the capital of
Professional Football Club Beroe - Stara Zagora ”EAD, after receiving prior consent from Bulgarian
Energy Holding EAD - sole owner of the capital of TPP Maritza East 2 EAD.
In connection with the above, with a decision under item II.9 of Protocol № 67-2021 / 22.12.2021, the
Board of Directors of Bulgarian Energy Holding EAD gave prior consent to the above decisions and
assigned to the Executive Director of TPP Maritsa East 2 ”EAD to report all pre-agreed terms of the
disposal transaction before implementing the legal and actual actions for the transfer of ownership of the
shares in order to get the final decision by the Board of Directors of Bulgarian Energy Holding EAD.
Pursuant to the above decisions, on December 23, 2021, an announcement for the sale of 100% of the
shares of "Professional Football Club Beroe - Stara Zagora" EAD was published on the website of TPP
Maritsa East 2 EAD, PFC Beroe - Stara Zagora EAD, BTA EAD and Stara Zagora News.
The deadline for expressing interest by potential buyers and submitting bids was 09.011.2022. PFC Beroe
sent additional questions to the financial proposals, requesting to specify their proposed strategy for the
development of the club, including their financial capabilities for its maintenance with deadline
12.01.2022, 1 o'clock p.m. No offers were received within the specified additional period at the e-mail
addresses provided for this purpose, in response to clarifying inquiries from any of the interested parties.
Due to the above, it was not possible to rank the received proposals.
On February 2, 2022, TPP Maritza East 2 EAD received a Notification of an investment proposal from
the NGO "Association for Support of Football-Beroe", UIC 206794473, represented by its chairman,
Attorney. Svetoslav Minevski, who expressed his readiness to acquire 100% of the shares of the football
club and to finance it, and in view of this proposes to acquire the shares free of charge by donation or for
a total value of BGN 1 (one), but only if all the obligations of the club currently due are paid before the
transfer or on the date of the transfer.
According to a check in the Commercial Register and the Register of Non-Profit Legal Entities at the
Registry Agency, it was established that the said non-profit association was newly established, with a date
of initial registration 20.01.2022, i.e. after the deadline for submission of bids for purchase of the
announced for sale shares of PFC Beroe. According to the information published in the Commercial
Register, the purpose of the association is in the public interest, as it follows: “1. The comprehensive
development of football, preservation of good traditions, popularity and support for football, by attracting
the public in Stara Zagora and other regional centers, encouraging activity and initiative of athletes,
coaches, professionals, activists, leaders and amateurs and increase social importance of Football as a
social phenomenon, by supporting existing formations for the training of athletes and professionals; 2.
Preparation of programs for the development of teams for high sportsmanship, children and youth sports,
organizing, conducting and participation of the Association in the national calendar of events related to
Bulgarian and world football, etc."

TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD
Separate Financial Statements
for the year 2021

81

The following are indicated as means for achieving the set goals of the association: “1. Interaction with state
and municipal institutions, individuals and legal entities to achieve the goals of the association and increase
the social significance of football; 2. Organizing, supporting, encouraging and guiding all forms of football
practice by all comers, including members of the association and its supporters; 3. Selection, training, initial
sports training, training and competition process in children and youth, adolescent, elite and professional
sports; 4. Free exchange of information, ideas, knowledge and experience between football fans, supporters
and members of the association, etc.
During the years in which TPP Maritza East 2 EAD is the owner of PFC Beroe, the managements of both
companies have consistently pursued a policy of financing and management of the football club in public
benefit in view of the importance of the team as an emblem of Stara Zagora and the region. In view of this
focus and due to the desire to continue as much as possible the direction of the club for the benefit of its
supporters and the public in Stara Zagora and the region, as well as due to the fact that other serious interest
in acquiring property of the club was not confirmed, the management of TPP Maritza East 2 EAD proposed
to hold negotiations to reach a mutually satisfactory agreement on the acquisition of 100% of the shares of
PFC Beroe from the NGO "Association for Support of Football-Beroe".
In view of the condition that according to the Investment proposal of the NGO "Football Support
Association-Beroe" in the transfer of ownership of the shares of the football club the company has no due
obligations, it was found that for January 2022. "Professional Football Club Beroe - Stara Zagora" EAD has
current liabilities for payment of wages, which are due in February 2022, as well as liabilities to contractors
under contractual relations, which are overdue. As it is publicly known, at the moment the football club is in a
difficult financial situation and does not have the necessary funds to repay the accumulated debts. The total
amount of the due liabilities of Professional Football Club Beroe - Stara Zagora EAD due in February and
the overdue ones amounts to approximately BGN 236,000.
In connection with the decision taken by the Board of Directors of TPP Maritza East 2 EAD to announce
the sale of 100% of the available, ordinary, registered shares of the capital of Professional Football Club
Beroe - Stara Zagora EAD was assigned to conduct an assessment of equity of Professional Football Club
Beroe - Stara Zagora EAD with derived value per share of a licensed appraiser. The purpose and application
of the assessment is to determine the market value for accounting purposes, as well as to determine the value
for rapid non-compulsory realization (liquidation value) of the equity of "Professional Football Club Beroe Stara Zagora" EAD in connection with the forthcoming sale of shares of the football club.
The value of the capital of the football club according to the prepared Assessment of the capital of
"Professional Football Club Beroe - Stara Zagora" EAD with a derived value of one shareamounts to BGN
235,286 (two hundred and thirty-five thousand two hundred and eighty-six) BGN as of 31.12.2021. (with
market adequacy until July 1, 2022), as the value of one share is set at BGN 0.043.
Based on the above facts that the assessment of the equity of "Professional Football Club Beroe - Stara
Zagora" EAD and the amount of accumulated liabilities of the club as of February 2022 are estomated of
very close values and in connection with negotiations with the interested party, a proposal was made to
transfer 100% of the shares of PFC Beroe - Stara Zagora EAD to the interested NGO NGO "Association
for Support of Football-Beroe" to be done by a contract for purchase and sale of shares under Article 185 of
the CA against the amount of BGN 1 (one), the acquirer undertakes to repay the existing at the time of the
transfer transaction obligations of "Professional Football Club Beroe - Stara Zagora" EAD.
Pursuant to Art. 25, para. 2, item 1 in connection with Art. 20, para. 2, vol. 11 of the Articles of Association
of TPP Maritza East 2 EAD, the Board of Directors of TPP Maritza East 2 EAD, according to item 1 of
Protocol №10 / 21.02.2022 decided to transfer 5,480,000. available, ordinary, registered shares, owned by
TPP Maritza East 2 EAD to the NGO "Association for Support of football-Beroe "with UIC 206794473 ,
representing 100% of the capital of Professional Football Club Beroe - Stara Zagora EAD EAD, registered in
the Commercial Register and the Register of Non-Profit Legal Entities with UIC 200106240, under the
following conditions:
- through a remunerative contract for purchase and sale of shares by the order of art. 185 of the CA;
- against a selling price of BGN 1 (one);
- method of payment - upon signing the contract for purchase and sale of shares, after obtaining a permit for
this from Bulgarian Energy Holding EAD.
With decisions under item II.7 of Protocol №10-2022 / 23.02.2022, the Board of Directors of Bulgarian
Energy Holding EAD gives permission for the sale of the shares of Professional Football Club Beroe - Stara
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Zagora EAD under the above conditions . It recommends the contract of sale to include that the buyer
undertakes to repay the accumulated obligations of "Professional Football Club Beroe - Stara Zagora" EAD
within a certain period. In case the buyer does not repay the accumulated obligations of the Professional
Football Club Beroe - Stara Zagora EAD, TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD has the right to unilaterally terminate the
contract of sale of shares.
On February 25, 2022, in the town of Stara Zagora, between TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD, UIC 123531939, with
registered office and address of management: Kovachevo village, PO Box 6265, municipality Radnevo, region
Stara Zagora, represented by Eng. Zhivko Dimitrov Dinchev - Executive Director, as the owner of 5,480,000
(five million four hundred and eighty thousand) ordinary registered voting shares, with a nominal value of
BGN 1 (one) each, representing 100% of the capital of "Professional Football Club Beroe - Stara Zagora"
EAD and NGO "Association for Support of Football-Beroe", UIC 206794473, with registered office and
address: Stara Zagora, p.k. 6000, 87 Hadji Dimitar Assenov Str., 6th floor, apt. Office 2, represented by
Svetoslav Mitkov Minevski - Chairman of the Management Board, a contract was signed for the purchase and
sale of 5,480,000 shares, representing 100% (one hundred percent) of the capital of Professional Football
Club Beroe - Stara Zagora EAD.
On March 10, 2022, the changes in the current state of the club were published in the Commercial Register.
Since March 10, 2022, the Company has been managed by a Board of Directors (Board of Directors)
consisting of:
Stelian Nikolaev Popchev - Chairman of the Board of Directors and Executive Director
Zhelyazko Dinkov Dinev - Member of the Board of Directors
Rumyana Atanasova Atanasova - Member of the Board of Directors
The sole owner of the capital of "Professional Football Club Beroe - Stara Zagora" EAD is NGO
"Association for Support of Football-Beroe".
In the early hours of February 24, 2022, Russia took military action in neighboring Ukraine. This conflict is
growing rapidly and is considered the most serious military situation in Europe since the end of the World
War II.
Although the Russian military may have planned the attack on Ukraine and mobilized in the year ending
December 31, 2021, this should not be considered a critical event to suggest that the conflict was obvious at
the time. In view of this fact, the Company does not consider it necessary to take into account additional
adjustments to the separate financial statements as of 31.12.2021 and the current conflict should be
considered as a non-adjusting event.
Following this military conflict, some countries have announced new packages of sanctions against the state
debt of the Russian Federation and a number of Russian banks, as well as personal sanctions against a
number of individuals. At a later stage, sanctions were imposed on Belarus as well. As of the date of the
report, individual countries and the EU have imposed four categories of sanctions on Russia and Belarus:
• sanctions against individuals and enterprises / organizations
• restrictions on business
• diplomatic measures
• restriction of economic cooperation
Due to the growing geopolitical tensions since February 2022, there has been a significant increase in the
volatility of securities and currency markets, fluctuations in energy and gasoline prices, a significant
depreciation of the ruble against the US dollar and the Euro currencies.
The international situation related to the conflict between Russia and Ukraine has led to changes in the
economic aspect and market conditions associated with rising inflation, a dynamic rise in prices for basic raw
materials.
The gradual recovery of economic activities expected over the next few years, in the period 2022-2026, at
other equal conditions, TPP Maritza East 2 EAD could achieve better overall efficiency, while stabilizing
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the financial condition of the company for the period, through gradual reduction of operating losses and
realization of positive results and regular servicing of financial liabilities under the consolidated trade loan
from BEH EAD.
Management is closely monitoring the situation and looking for ways to reduce its impact on the
Company.
Management will continue to monitor the potential impact and will take all possible steps to mitigate the
potential impacts.
40.

Disclosure according to legal requirements

These individual financial statements have been audited by an audit firm of HLB Bulgaria OOD on the
grounds of a contract signed between Bulgarian Energy Holding EAD and HLB Bulgaria OOD. The
Company does not charge amounts for an independent financial audit. The consolidated financial
statement of Bulgarian Energy Holding EAD includes disclosure of accrued amounts for services
provided by the registered statutory auditor for an independent financial audit.
41.

Approval of the individual financial statements

The individual financial statements as of 31 December 2021 (including comparative information) is
approved and adopted by the Board of Directors by resolution under item 1 of Protocol No.18/23 March
2022.

